
 
 
 

 
Despatched: 23.12.13 

 

HEALTH LIAISON BOARD  

09 January 2014 at 2.00 pm 

Conference Room, Argyle Road, Sevenoaks 
 

AGENDA 

 
Membership: 

 
Chairman: Cllr. Mrs. Cook  Vice-Chairman: Cllr. Davison 

Cllrs. Mrs. Bosley, Brookbank, Mrs. George and Searles 

 

 
 

Apologies for Absence 

 

Pages Contact 

1. Minutes  (Pages 1 - 6)  

 To agree the Minutes of the meeting of the Board 

held on 11 September 2013, as a correct record 

 

  

2. Declarations of Interest    

 Any interests not already registered. 

 

  

3. Actions from the last meeting of the Board  (Pages 7 - 8) 

 
 

 
4. Updates from Members   

 
 

 
5. Carers First   

 
 

 
6. Older People's Housing Strategy - Brief Update  (Pages 9 - 10) 

 
Gavin Missons 

Tel: 01732 

227332 

 
7. 'Mind the Gap' Action Plan  (Pages 11 - 64) 

 
Hayley Brooks 

Tel: 01732 

227272 

 
8. Update on Dementia Friendly Communities  (Pages 65 - 68) 

 
Hayley Brooks 

Tel: 01732 

227272 

 Verbal update 

 

  

9. Annual Report  (Pages 69 - 104) 

 
Hayley Brooks 

Tel: 01732 

227272 
10. Autism and Asperger Syndrome - Members 

Discussion  

 

 

 

 
 

 



 

 

11. 111 - Health Telephone Service - Members 

Discussion  

 

 
 

 
 

12. Mapping the Future  (Pages 105 - 112) 

 
Hayley Brooks 

Tel: 01732 

227272 

 
13. Work Plan  (Pages 113 - 114) 

 
 

 

 EXEMPT ITEMS 

 

(At the time of preparing this agenda there were no exempt items.  During any such 

items which may arise the meeting is likely NOT to be open to the public.) 

    

To assist in the speedy and efficient despatch of business, Members wishing to obtain 

factual information on items included on the Agenda are asked to enquire of the appropriate  

Contact Officer named on a report prior to the day of the meeting. 

 

Should you require a copy of this agenda or any of the reports listed on it in another format 

please do not hesitate to contact the Democratic Services Team as set out below. 

 

For any other queries concerning this agenda or the meeting please contact: 

 

The Democratic Services Team (01732 227241) 

 

 

 

 

 



 

5 
 

HEALTH LIAISON BOARD 

 
Minutes of the meeting held on 11 September 2013 commencing at 12.30 pm 

 

 

Present: Cllr. Mrs. Cook (Chairman)  

 

Cllr. Davison (Vice-Chairman) 

  

 Cllrs. Brookbank, Davison, Mrs. George and Searles 

 

 Apologies for absence were received from Cllrs. Mrs. Bosley 

 

 Cllrs. Fittock and Sargeant were also present. 

 

 

 

7. Declarations of Interest  

 
No declarations of interest were made.  

 

Change of order of the agenda 

 

With the Board’s agreement the Chairman put back consideration of items three and 

four.   

8. Minutes  

 
Resolved:  That the meeting of the Health Liaison Board held on 11 July 2013, be 

approved and signed by the Chairman as a correct record.  

 

9. Children Centres Consultation  

 
The Board considered the Kent County Council’s (KCC) consultation document ‘Shaping 

the Future of Children’s Centres in Kent.  The consultation would run until 4 October. A 

corporate Council response would be sent to KCC putting together the collected views 

from Members. The proposal aims were to: deliver savings on at least £1.5 million; 

protect services which improved health, education and social care; continue to offer 

parents and expectant parents a choice about which Centre they used; ensure support 

was given to those children and families who needed it most; and improve co-ordination 

and access to a range of services for families with children aged 0 -11 where at least one 

child in the family is under five years old. 

 

There were currently seven centres operating in the Sevenoaks District. KCC would be 

looking to align the different areas around the Clinical Commissioning Group areas for 

Dartford, Gravesham and Swanley and for West Kent.  

 

Members were advised that the figures provided within the document were from October 

2011 to September 2012. It was felt that the projections provided needed further 

investigation as they did not correctly forecast population increases for the District.  It 

was felt that the figures showed the success of the Children’s Centres in this District with 

Agenda Item 1

Page 1



Health Liaison Board - 11 September 2013 

6 

 

relatively high numbers of attendance and working with the correct age ranges, rather 

than demonstrating evidence for closure or re-aligning centres.  

 

Members were concerned that the figures provided for the use of libraries did not add up 

to 100% and that there were also inconsistencies with other figures. The Community 

Planning and Projects Officer advised that the figures were provided by KCC.  

 

Members raised concerns that the figures related to 2011/12 and that no allowance had 

been made for any new developments. There were particular concerns in respect of 

population growth in Dunton Green and the restriction of services.  If Children’s Centres 

were to be linked then this would also affect many parents who travelled on public 

transport. There would be an increase in time and cost to many parents. Concerns were 

also raised over the number of primary schools and that there would not be enough 

places in the existing primary schools for the growing number of children in the District, 

which also provided evidence of population growth in the District.  

 

Members felt that the Children’s Centres provided the vital skills that children needed to 

learn before starting at primary school and essential support for new parents. This was 

particularly important in deprived and isolated areas. Concerns were also raised that 

links to other centres would be taken though libraries. It was suggested that the CCGs 

should work with libraries, the HERO service and Sevenoaks District Housing team and 

the new gateway to include more liaison with Children’s centres.  

 

The Health and Communities Manager brought Members attention to the usage 

summary of Children’s Centres in the District. It was felt that it the figures in red proved 

the Children’s centres were effective. 

 

Action 1: The Health and Communities Manger will map the figures against the 

latest census data to show the population growth.  

 

It was felt that Children’s Centres were valuable to families of ethnic minority populations 

to provide them with advice for registering with a doctor and helping them to have a 

support network.  

 

The Community Planning and Projects officer would feed these comments back into the 

survey as part of a corporate response.  

  

10. Local Children's Trust Board arrangements  

 
The Community Planning and Projects Officer tabled a briefing on the draft organisational 

structure of the proposed Sevenoaks District Strategic Board.  

 

Local Children’s Trust Boards had been replaced across the County by new children’s 

Local Operational Groups, which would feed in to the Health and Wellbeing Boards.  This 

was because it had been considered by County that there was a significant link between 

children’s issues and health.  

  

11. Dementia Friendly Communities Update  

 
The Health and Communities Manager updated the Board on the developments of the 

Dementia Friendly Communities project in Swanley and other local areas.  An event took 

Agenda Item 1

Page 2



Health Liaison Board - 11 September 2013 

7 

 

place on the 9 August 2013 in Swanley that involved different local bodies and people 

from the local areas. The event looked at identifying gaps and raising awareness of 

places to go for sufferers, carers and other organisations.  

 

Meeting notes had been created which provided information of what was preventing 

Swanley from being a Dementia Friendly Community and what actions could be taken to 

make it one.  

 

Action 2: The Health and Communities Manager to circulate the meeting notes to 

Members of the Board.  

 

Members questioned whether it was something that GPs could investigate the creation 

of a directory for those who received the diagnosis of having Dementia or Alzheimer’s to 

have a list of all the organisations that can provide help and support. There were bits of 

information available but it needed to be pulled together.  

 

There was an increase in people who were requesting training for awareness of 

Alzheimer’s and Dementia and support that could be offered for those who had contact 

with sufferers. This was not just something that Officers were requesting but also local 

businesses as they also had a role to play in the Community. Physical changes could be 

made to help but also training within customer services.  

 

It was agreed that a representative of Carers First be invited to give a presentation to the 

Health Liaison Board at the January meeting.  

 

Action 3: The Health and Communities Manager to invite a member of Carers First 

to the January Health Liaison Board meeting.  

 

Ms Yardley, a member of the public was allowed to address the Board and she expressed 

her interest with the work that was being done around Dementia, particularly in the 

Swanley area.   

  

12. Mind The Gap - District Level Health Inequalities Plan  

 
The Health and Communities Manager gave a presentation on the Sevenoaks District 

Health Inequalities Action Plan, ‘Mind the Gap’. The PowerPoint highlighted areas the 

District Council would be looking at to address known health inequalities.  

 

Members discussed the ‘Life Expectancy Gap’ and the reasons why the trends varied in 

different wards. It was questioned why information provided by Ward was missing 

information for Swanley St Mary’s. The Health and Communities Manager would look into 

this.  

 

Action 4: The Health Leisure and Tourism Manger to contact KCC to find out why 

Swanley St Mary’s was excluded from the information provided.  

 

It was agreed that the Housing Policy Manager would be invited to attend the next 

meeting to discuss the development of an Older People’s Housing Needs Survey.  

 

Agenda Item 1

Page 3



Health Liaison Board - 11 September 2013 

8 

 

If Members had any thoughts or comments on the Health Inequalities Plan they were 

asked to send them to the Health and Communities Manager. The Health Inequalities 

Plan was still in its draft form but once it had been finalised it would be circulated.  

  

13. Action from the last meeting of the Board  

 
The completed actions were noted.  

 

14. Updates from Members  

 
Cllr Davison informed the Board that he had attended the latest West Kent CCG Board 

meeting. The information provided in the agenda was a key issue within the CCG. Cllr 

Davison also brought Members’ attention to the ‘NHS – A call to action’ document. It was 

agreed that the document should be referred to the Economic and Community 

Development Advisory Committee. The Board confirmed that they would look at what 

they felt were important topics for the District and refer these to the Economic and 

Community Development Advisory Committee. The Advisory Committee would then 

decide where it should be referred to for action.  

 

It was felt that the alternative housing options to traditional nursing homes such as a 

‘retirement village ’would be something that could be looked into, as this featured within 

the ‘Call to Action’ document as good practice.  

 

‘Mapping The Future’ by West Kent CCG was tabled. It was felt that this was a key 

document for KCC’s Health and Scrutiny Overview. It would be looked at in more detail at 

the meeting on the 9 January 2014.  

 

Action 5: ‘Mapping The Future’ to be added to the agenda for the 9 January 2014.  

 

Cllr Searles informed Members that the next informal Dartford, Gravesham and Swanley 

CCG Health and Wellbeing Board would be on 15 October 2013 with the Board looking to 

go in to public and formal status from November 2013.  

 

Cllr Fittock addressed the Board. He informed the Members that he was aware of the two 

different CCGs that were to meet the needs of local people and more co-ordination 

between the two was required. He felt that the information that was discussed at the 

meetings needed to be fed into the District Council so that the information was known. 

 

It was agreed that a representative of each CCG should be invited to do a presentation.  

  

15. Work Plan  

 
It was agreed that the following items be added to the meeting of the Board on the 9 

January 2014: 

 

• Older people’s strategy to the meeting  

• Older People Housing Needs Survey 

• Finalised Mind the Gap report 

• Update on Dementia Friendly Communities 

• Mapping the Future 

Agenda Item 1

Page 4



Health Liaison Board - 11 September 2013 

9 

 

• Speaker from Dartford, Gravesham and Swanley CCG and West Kent CCG. 

 

16. Date of next meeting  

 
It was confirmed that the next meeting would be held on the 9 January 2014. The time of 

the meeting was to be confirmed. Members felt more meetings were required, possibly 

six per municipal year, and asked for one to be scheduled in order to feed into the 

Sevenoaks District ‘Mind the Gap’ Health Inequalities Action Plan before its 

consideration at the Economic and Community Development advisory Committee.  

 

It was agreed that if a meeting could be scheduled before the 9 January 2014 then the 

following items would be moved to the next scheduled meeting: 

 

• Older people’s Housing Needs Survey 

• Mind the Gap 

• Update on Dementia Friendly Communities 

• Mapping the Future.  

 

 

 

 

THE MEETING WAS CONCLUDED AT 2.35 PM 

 

 

 

 

CHAIRMAN 

 

Agenda Item 1

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



ACTIONS FROM THE MEETING HELD ON 11.09.13 

Action Description Status and last updated  Contact Officer 

ACTION 1 
Children’s centre usage figures will be mapped 

against the latest census data to show the 

population growth. 

Figures were circulated to Members via 

email on 19.12.13  

Hayley Brooks  

ACTION 2 
Meeting notes of the Dementia Friendly 

Community day on 9 August will be circulated to 

Members of the Board 

Meeting notes have been circulated and are 

available on the website. 

Hayley Brooks 

ACTION 3 
A representative of Carers first be invited to the 

January meeting  
A representative of Carers First has been 

invited to the January meeting and will be 

doing a presentation. 

Hayley Brooks 

ACTION 4 
Look into why Swanley St Mary’s was excluded 

from the information provided regarding the 

‘Life Expectancy Gap.’  

Presentation has been updated and has 

been circulated and is available on the 

website.  

Hayley Brooks 

ACTION 5 
‘Mapping the future’ be added to the agenda 

for the 9 January’ 
Added to the January agenda Charlie Shacklock  

 A
genda Item

 3

P
age 7



P
age 8

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Health Liaison Board 

09/01/14 

Update on older people’s housing needs study  

 

 

- An initial housing stock-need analysis has been completed (available by request, 

though not particularly user-friendly); 

- Provides stock type, size and numbers down to MSOA; and 

- Provides projections to plan strategy around housing provision (to 2030). 

 

- Intending to undertake a separate study which will provide more detailed 

information around housing and related support services; 

- This study will help to plan strategy around those older people wishing to remain 

independent in their own homes, as is becoming more and more the norm; 

- Currently trying to link this in with wider studies to ensure the same methodology 

is used and best value for public money; and 

- Intend to produce an action plan for older people’s housing, once this is 

complete. 

 

 

- To consider some research around excess winter deaths amongst older people 

here in Sevenoaks; thermal efficiency and fuel poverty; and the effective use of 

homes and heating technologies; and 

- Also working with KCC on excess winter death issue.     

 

 

 
Gavin Missons 

Housing Policy Manager  

Agenda Item 6

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



S
E

V
E

N
O

A
K

S
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 ‘
M

IN
D

 T
H

E
 G

A
P

’ 
P

L
A

N
 -

  
B

u
ild

in
g
 b

ri
d
g
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
tt
e
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

1
 

S
e
v
e
n

o
a
k

s
 D

is
tr

ic
t’

s
 H

e
a
lt

h
 I

n
e
q

u
a
li

ti
e
s
 A

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
 

2
0

1
3
/1

5

Agenda Item 7

Page 11



S
E

V
E

N
O

A
K

S
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 ‘
M

IN
D

 T
H

E
 G

A
P

’ 
P

L
A

N
 -

  
B

u
ild

in
g
 b

ri
d
g
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
tt
e
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

2
 

F
o

re
w

o
rd

 
C

llr
 P

e
te

r 
F

le
m

in
g

 
L
e
a
d

e
r 

o
f 

S
e
v
e

n
o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

‘W
e

 w
a

n
t 

S
e

v
e

n
o
a

k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

to
 b

e
 a

 p
la

c
e

 w
h

e
re

 

p
e

o
p

le
 h

a
v
e

 h
e

a
lt
h
y
 l
if
e

s
ty

le
s
 a

n
d

 w
h

e
re

 h
e
a

lt
h

 

in
e

q
u
a

lit
ie

s
 a

re
 r

e
d
u

c
e
d

’,
 t

h
is

 i
s
 w

h
a

t 
lo

c
a

l 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 t

o
ld

 u
s
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
o

u
r 

S
e

v
e

n
o

a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 P

la
n

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

s
. 

  

T
h

e
 M

in
d

 t
h

e
 G

a
p

 A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
s
 k

e
y
 h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n
d

 w
e

llb
e

in
g

 

a
c
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 P

la
n
. 

  
A

 r
a

n
g

e
 o

f 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 h

a
v
e

 s
ig

n
e

d
 u

p
 

to
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e

 a
c
ti
o
n

s
 t
o

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

 t
h

is
. 

  
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
 a

re
 c

o
m

m
it
te

d
 t

o
 

w
o

rk
in

g
 t

o
g
e

th
e

r 
to

 e
n

a
b
le

 r
e
s
id

e
n

ts
 o

f 
S

e
v
e

n
o
a

k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

to
 b

e
n

e
fi
t 

fr
o

m
 b

e
tt

e
r 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o

 l
o
c
a
l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

n
d

 i
n

te
rv

e
n
ti
o
n

s
 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 

h
e

a
lt
h

 a
n
d

 w
e

llb
e
in

g
. 
 

F
ro

m
 o

u
r 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

s
, 

w
e

 k
n
o

w
 t

h
a

t 
tr

a
n
s
p

o
rt

 t
o

 l
o

c
a

l 
h
e

a
lt
h

 

fa
c
ili

ti
e

s
 i
s
 a

n
 i
s
s
u

e
 f
o

r 
m

a
n

y
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 d

o
 n

o
t 

d
ri

v
e

, 
p

a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 i
n

 

ru
ra

l 
a

re
a

s
. 

R
e

s
id

e
n

ts
 a

re
 c

o
n
c
e

rn
e
d

 t
o

 m
a
k
e

 s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 h

e
a

lt
h
 

n
e

e
d
s
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n

 a
n
d

 y
o

u
n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 a

re
 t
a

k
e

n
 i
n

to
 a

c
c
o

u
n
t 

a
n

d
 t

h
a
t 

w
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o

 h
e

a
lt
h

 a
d

v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 a

d
v
ic

e
 

a
b

o
u

t 
d

ru
g
 a

n
d
 a

lc
o

h
o
l 
m

is
u

s
e
. 

It
 i
s
 a

ls
o

 i
m

p
o

rt
a
n

t 
to

 m
a
in

ta
in

 

a
c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 t
h

e
 D

is
tr

ic
t’
s
 l
e

is
u

re
 f
a

c
ili

ti
e

s
, 
o

p
e
n

 s
p

a
c
e

s
 a

n
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

c
o

u
n
tr

y
s
id

e
 a

n
d
 t

o
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 h

e
a

lt
h

y
 l
if
e

s
ty

le
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
. 

W
e
 a

re
 a

w
a

re
 o

f 
th

e
 c

h
a

lle
n

g
e
s
 w

e
 f

a
c
e

 i
n

 p
la

n
n

in
g
 t

h
e
 h

e
a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 

s
o

c
ia

l 
c
a

re
 n

e
e

d
s
 o

f 
a
n

 a
g
e

in
g
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 b

e
c
a

u
s
e

 p
e
o

p
le

 a
re

 l
iv

in
g

 

lo
n

g
e

r 
a

n
d

 w
e

 k
n

o
w

 t
h

a
t 

b
o

th
 d

ia
b

e
te

s
 a

n
d
 d

e
m

e
n

ti
a

 w
ill

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
 

o
v
e

r 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 

1
5

 y
e

a
rs

. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 w

h
y
 i
t 

is
 s

o
 i
m

p
o

rt
a
n

t 
to

 r
e

d
u
c
e

 h
e

a
lt
h

 

in
e

q
u
a

lit
ie

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 D

is
tr

ic
t 
n

o
w

, 
to

 p
re

p
a
re

 f
o

r 
th

e
 c

h
a

lle
n
g

e
s
 o

f 

th
e

 n
e

x
t 

1
5

 y
e

a
rs

. 
I 

w
e

lc
o
m

e
 t
h

is
 p

la
n
 a

n
d
 l
o
o

k
 f
o

rw
a

rd
 t

o
 s

e
e

in
g

 t
h

e
 

im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

ts
 t
h

a
t 
it
 w

ill
 m

a
k
e
. 

P
ro

fe
s

s
o

r 
C

h
ri

s
 B

e
n

tl
e
y

 

V
is

it
in

g
 C

h
a
ir
 o

f 
P

u
b

lic
 H

e
a

lt
h
 a

t 

S
h
e
ff

ie
ld

 H
a

lla
m

 U
n
iv

e
rs

it
y

K
e

n
t 

C
o

u
n

ty
 C

o
u

n
c
il,

 t
o

g
e

th
e

r 
w

it
h

 i
ts

 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

, 
is

 s
tr

o
n

g
ly

 c
o

m
m

it
te

d
 t

o
 

a
d

d
re

s
s
in

g
 t
h

e
 h

e
a

lt
h

 i
n

e
q

u
a

lit
ie

s
, 

w
h

ic
h

 

th
e

y
 h

a
v
e

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e
d

 a
s
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
is

s
u

e
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ty

. 
 

T
h

ro
u

g
h

 m
y
 f

o
rm

e
r 

ro
le

 a
s
 H

e
a

d
 o

f 
th

e
 H

e
a

lt
h
 I

n
e
q

u
a
lit

ie
s
 

N
a

ti
o

n
a
l 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 T

e
a
m

, 
I 

w
o

rk
e

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 7

0
 m

o
s
t 

d
e
p

ri
v
e

d
 

a
re

a
s
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 p

o
o

re
s
t 

h
e

a
lt
h

 a
c
ro

s
s
 E

n
g

la
n

d
, 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 

th
e

m
 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
n

d
 d

e
liv

e
r 

o
n

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 t
o

 n
a

rr
o

w
 

th
e

 g
a
p

 w
it
h

 t
h

o
s
e

 m
o

re
 f

o
rt

u
n
a

te
. 

 K
e
n

t 
h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 k

e
e

n
 t
o

 

d
ra

w
 o

n
 t

h
e

 l
e

s
s
o

n
s
 l
e

a
rn

e
d

 f
ro

m
 t

h
is

 n
a

ti
o

n
a
l 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

. 
 

T
h

e
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 i
s
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e
 b

a
s
e
d

, 
a

n
d
 i
n

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 a
 r

e
a

l 

d
if
fe

re
n

c
e

 i
n
 t

h
e

 h
e

a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o
n

, 
th

e
y
 

a
re

 t
a
k
in

g
 g

o
o

d
 a

c
c
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
s
y
s
te

m
, 
s
c
a

le
 a

n
d

 s
u
s
ta

in
a

b
ili

ty
 o

f 

th
e

 c
o

n
s
ti
tu

e
n

t 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s
. 
I 
a

m
 v

e
ry

 p
le

a
s
e
d

 t
o

 

a
c
k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

 t
h

e
 e

x
te

n
s
iv

e
 u

s
e

 t
h

a
t 
is

 b
e

in
g

 m
a

d
e

 o
f 
m

y
 

‘C
h

ri
s
tm

a
s
 T

re
e

’ 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

 i
n

 t
h

is
 p

la
n

. 
T

h
is

 b
ri

n
g

s
 t
o

g
e

th
e

r 

a
n

 a
p
p

ro
a
c
h

 w
h

ic
h
 b

a
la

n
c
e

s
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
o

f 
g
o

o
d

 q
u

a
lit

y
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 w

it
h

 a
tt
e

n
ti
o

n
 t
o

 h
o

w
 t
h

e
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o
n

 u
s
e

s
 t
h

e
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
, 
a

n
d

 i
s
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
o

 d
o

 s
o

. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 o

ft
e

n
 n

e
g
le

c
te

d
. 
I 

a
m

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n
t 

th
a
t,

 w
it
h

 p
ra

c
ti
c
a

l 
a
c
ti
o
n

, 
th

is
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 c
a

n
 

h
a

v
e

 a
 r

e
a

l 
im

p
a
c
t.
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 12



S
E

V
E

N
O

A
K

S
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 ‘
M

IN
D

 T
H

E
 G

A
P

’ 
P

L
A

N
 -

  
B

u
ild

in
g
 b

ri
d
g
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
tt
e
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

3
 

C
o

n
te

n
ts

  
W

h
a

t 
p

e
o
p

le
 i
n

 S
e

v
e

n
o
a
k
s
 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
th

in
k

��
��
�
��
��
	
��

�
��
�
	

��
��
�
��
��
�
�
�

	
��
�
��
��
�
��

�
�
	
�
��
��
�

�
	


�
�
�
�
��
�
	


�
�

In
tr

o
d

u
c

ti
o

n

1
. 

H
e

a
lt
h

 I
n

e
q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 i
n

 K
e

n
t 
 

P
g
 4

2
. 

W
h
o
 W

ill
 d

o
 w

h
a

t 
 

3
. 

W
h
a
t 
th

is
 P

la
n

 w
ill

 d
o

 t
o

 t
a

c
k
le

 
H

e
a

lt
h

 I
n

e
q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 i
n

 K
e

n
t 

4
. 

T
h
e

 T
o
o

ls
 W

e
 U

s
e
 

 

O
b

je
c

ti
v
e

s
 

1
. 
 G

iv
e

 e
v
e

ry
 c

h
ild

 t
h

e
 b

e
s
t 

s
ta

rt
 i
n
 l
if
e

  
  

P
g
 1

0

2
. 

E
n

a
b

le
 a

ll 
c
h

ild
re

n
, 

y
o
u

n
g
 p

e
o
p

le
 &

  
  

  
 a

d
u

lt
s
 t
o

 m
a

x
im

is
e

 t
h

e
ir
 c

a
p
a

b
ili

ti
e

s
  

P
g
 2

3
a

n
d

 h
a

v
e

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 
o

v
e

r 
th

e
ir
 l
iv

e
s
  

 
 

 
  

  
  
 

3
. 

C
re

a
te

 f
a

ir
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n
t 

&
 g

o
o

d
  

P
g
 3

3
w

o
rk

 f
o

r 
a

ll 
 

  
  

  
  

  
  
 

 
 

 
 

 
4

. 
 E

n
s
u

re
 a

 h
e

a
lt
h

y
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
 o

f 
liv

in
g
  

P
g
 3

9
fo

r 
a

ll 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
5

. 
C

re
a

te
 a

n
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 h
e
a

lt
h

y
 a

n
d
 

s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 p
la

c
e

s
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

P
g
 4

4

6
. 

S
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n

 t
h

e
 r

o
le

 a
n
d

 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o
f 

 
P

g
 5

2
ill

 h
e

a
lt
h

 P
re

v
e

n
ti
o

n
  

 
 

 
 

��
�
�
	

��
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�

�
��
���
�
�

��
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
	
�
	
��
�
��

��
��
�
�
�

	
�
��
���

�
�	
��
�

�
�
���
��
��
	
��
	

��

�
	
�
�

�
�

��
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
��


�
�
	
�
�
��
�

�
�

�	
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
	

��
�
��
��
�
�
��

��
�
�

�
��
�
��

�
���
	
��
�

��
�
	

��
��
��
	
��
�
��
�


�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
	
�

��

�
	
�
��
�

��
�
��

��
��
�
�
���

�
�
��
�
��
��
��

�
�
�
���
�

��
�
	
�

�
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
���
��
��
�
�
��
��
�

	
�

�
�
��
�
��
�

�
�
���
�
�
��
�	
��

�
�
� 
��
�
�
��
��
�

�!
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��

�
�
�"
�
��
"
�
��
�

�

�
�	
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
��

� ���

Agenda Item 7

Page 13



S
E

V
E

N
O

A
K

S
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 ‘
M

IN
D

 T
H

E
 G

A
P

’ 
P

L
A

N
 -

  
B

u
ild

in
g
 b

ri
d
g
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
tt
e
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

4
 

In
tr

o
d

u
c
ti
o
n

  

1
. 

W
h

a
t 

is
 H

e
a
lt

h
 I

n
e
q

u
a
li

ti
e
s
?

 

H
e

a
lt
h

 i
n
e

q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 i
s
 t
h

e
 r

e
s
u

lt
 o

f 
a

 m
ix

tu
re

 o
f 

fa
c
to

rs
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
: 
 

• 
th

e
 l
o

n
g
-t

e
rm

 e
ff

e
c
ts

 o
f 

a
 d

is
a

d
v
a

n
ta

g
e

d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
p

o
s
it
io

n
  

• 
d

if
fe

re
n

c
e

s
 i
n
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
, 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
  

• 
d

if
fe

re
n

c
e

s
 i
n
 e

x
p

o
s
u
re

 t
o

 r
is

k
  

• 
la

c
k
 o

f 
c
o

n
tr

o
l 
o

v
e

r 
o

n
e

’s
 o

w
n

 l
if
e

 c
ir
c
u

m
s
ta

n
c
e

s
  

• 
a

 h
e

a
lt
h
 s

y
s
te

m
 t
h

a
t 
m

a
y
 r

e
in

fo
rc

e
 s

o
c
ia

l 
a
n

d
 e

c
o

n
o
m

ic
 i
n
e

q
u

a
lit

ie
s
. 
 

T
h
e

s
e

 f
a

c
to

rs
 a

ll 
a
ff

e
c
t 
a

 p
e

rs
o

n
’s

 a
b

ili
ty

 t
o

 w
it
h

s
ta

n
d

 t
h

e
 b

io
lo

g
ic

a
l,
 s

o
c
ia

l,
 p

s
y
c
h

o
lo

g
ic

a
l 
a
n

d
 e

c
o

n
o
m

ic
 t
h

a
t 
c
a

n
 t
ri
g

g
e

r 
ill

 h
e

a
lt
h

, 
th

e
s
e
 f

a
c
to

rs
 a

re
 d

e
m

o
n

s
tr

a
te

d
 i
n

 F
ig

u
re

 1
. 
T

h
e

y
 a

ls
o

 a
ff

e
c
t 
th

e
 c

a
p
a

c
it
y
 t

o
 c

h
a
n

g
e

 b
e
h

a
v
io

u
r.

 

M
e

a
s
u

re
s
 o

f 
h
e

a
lt
h
 i
n

e
q
u

a
lit

y
 a

re
 n

o
t 

p
ri
m

a
ri
ly

 a
b

o
u

t 
h

e
a

lt
h

 b
u

t 
a
b

o
u

t 
s
o

c
io

-e
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 s
ta

tu
s
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 a

n
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 h
e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 

c
a

n
 l
e
a

d
 t
o

 d
is

e
a

s
e

. 
R

e
la

ti
v
e

 d
e

p
ri
v
a

ti
o

n
 i
m

p
a

c
ts

 o
n

 a
 p

e
rs

o
n

’s
 a

b
ili

ty
 t

o
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

 i
n

 o
r 

h
a

v
e

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t,

 o
c
c
u

p
a

ti
o

n
, 

e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
, 
re

c
re

a
ti
o

n
, 
fa

m
ily

 a
n

d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
s
h

ip
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 c

o
m

m
o

n
ly

 e
x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 m
a

in
s
tr

e
a

m
. 

P
e
o

p
le

 i
n

 
d

e
p

ri
v
e

d
 c

ir
c
u

m
s
ta

n
c
e
s
 o

ft
e
n

 d
o

 n
o

t 
p

re
s
e

n
t 
w

it
h

 m
a

jo
r 

h
e
a

lt
h

 p
ro

b
le

m
s
 u

n
ti
l 
to

o
 l
a
te

. 
B

a
rr

ie
rs

 t
o

 p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 s
tr

u
c
tu

ra
l 

is
s
u

e
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 p

o
o

r 
a

c
c
e

s
s
 a

n
d

 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

; 
la

n
g
u

a
g
e

 a
n

d
 l
it
e

ra
c
y
 p

ro
b

le
m

s
; 
p

o
o

r 
k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

; 
lo

w
 e

x
p

e
c
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
h
e

a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 h

e
a

lt
h

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
; 

fe
a

r 
a

n
d

 d
e

n
ia

l 
a

n
d

 l
o

w
 s

e
lf
 e

s
te

e
m

. 

F
ig

u
re

 1
 

D
a
h
lg

re
n
 a

n
d
 W

h
it
e
h
e
a
d
 (

1
9
9
1
)

Agenda Item 7

Page 14



S
E

V
E

N
O

A
K

S
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 ‘
M

IN
D

 T
H

E
 G

A
P

’ 
P

L
A

N
 -

  
B

u
ild

in
g
 b

ri
d
g
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
tt
e
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

5
 

2
. 

S
e
v
e
n

o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

H
e
a
lt

h
 O

v
e
rv

ie
w

 

T
h
e

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

im
p

re
s
s
io

n
 o

f 
a
ff

lu
e
n

c
e

 i
n

 S
e

v
e

n
o
a

k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

m
a

s
k
s
 l
o

c
a
l 
p

o
c
k
e

ts
 o

f 
u

rb
a
n

 a
n

d
 r

u
ra

l 
d

e
p

ri
v
a

ti
o

n
. 
 F

o
re

c
a

s
ts

 s
h
o

w
 t

h
a

t 
in

 t
h

e
 p

e
ri
o
d

 o
f 

2
0
1

0
-2

0
2

6
, 
w

e
 w

ill
 s

e
e

 a
 3

1
%

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 p
e

o
p

le
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 a

g
e

 o
f 

6
5
 a

n
d

 a
 6

2
.9

9
%

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n
 t

h
e
 p

e
o
p

le
 o

v
e

r 
8
5

. 
 

T
h

is
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e

 a
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
im

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 t
h
e

 f
u

tu
re

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

h
o
u

s
in

g
 a

n
d

 h
e

a
lt
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 i
n

 t
h

is
 D

is
tr

ic
t.

  
In

 a
d

d
it
io

n
, 

w
e

 k
n

o
w

 t
h

a
t 

b
o

th
 d

ia
b
e

te
s
 a

n
d

 d
e

m
e

n
ti
a

 w
ill

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

 o
v
e

r 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 

1
5

 y
e

a
rs

. 
 A

lt
h
o

u
g
h

 t
h

e
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

o
v
e

ra
ll 

is
 r

e
le

v
a

n
tl
y
 h

e
a

lt
h

y
, 

in
 

c
o

m
p
a

ri
s
o

n
 w

it
h

 E
n

g
la

n
d

 a
n

d
 K

e
n
t 

a
v
e

ra
g
e

s
, 
w

h
e

n
 t

h
is

 d
a

ta
 i
s
 b

ro
k
e

n
 d

o
w

n
 t

o
 w

a
rd

 l
e

v
e

l 
it
 s

h
o

w
s
 i
n

c
o

n
s
is

te
n

c
ie

s
 r

e
la

ti
n

g
 t

o
 

a
c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

n
d
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n
t 

h
e
a

lt
h

 i
n

e
q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

re
a

s
. 

  

F
ro

m
 t

h
e

 2
0

1
2

 S
e

v
e

n
o
a

k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

H
e

a
lt
h

 P
ro

fi
le

 w
e

 k
n

o
w

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 k
e
y
 h

e
a

lt
h

 p
ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 f
o

r 
th

is
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

in
c
lu

d
e

: 

•
T

h
e

re
 i
s
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
d

if
fe

re
n

c
e

 i
n

 l
if
e
 e

x
p

e
c
ta

n
c
y
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t

h
e

 m
o

s
t 
d

e
p

ri
v
e

d
 a

n
d

 m
o

s
t 
a
ff

lu
e

n
t 
w

a
rd

s
, 

th
e

re
fo

re
 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
 

h
e

a
lt
h

 i
n

e
q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 D

is
tr

ic
t.

•
T

h
e

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
h

a
s
 t

h
e

 s
e
c
o

n
d

 h
ig

h
e

s
t 

p
re

v
a

le
n

c
e

 o
f 

T
y
p

e
 2

 D
ia

b
e

te
s
 i
n

 W
e
s
t 

K
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 t
h

is
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
is

 e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 t
o

 r
is

e
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 

1
5

 y
e

a
rs

. 
 T

y
p
e

 2
 D

ia
b

e
te

s
 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
 t

h
e

 r
is

k
 f

a
c
to

rs
 o

f 
lo

n
g
 t

e
rm

 h
e

a
lt
h
 c

o
n
d

it
io

n
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 h

e
a

rt
 d

is
e
a
s
e

, 
s
tr

o
k
e
, 

k
id

n
e

y
 f

a
ilu

re
 a

n
d

 b
lin

d
n

e
s
s
 a

n
d

 c
a

n
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 t
h

e
 l
if
e

 e
x
p

e
c
ta

n
c
y
 o

f 
a

 p
e

rs
o

n
 b

y
 u

p
 t
o

 1
0

 y
e

a
rs

.

•
A

ro
u

n
d

 1
6
.1

%
 o

f 
y
e

a
r 

6
 c

h
ild

re
n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

a
re

 c
la

s
s
if
ie

d
 a

s
 o

b
e

s
e

 a
n
d

 a
n

 e
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 1

8
%

 o
f 

a
d

u
lt
s
 s

m
o

k
e

 w
it
h

 2
3

.9
%

 o
f 

a
d

u
lt
s
 b

e
in

g
 c

la
s
s
e
d

 a
s
 o

b
e

s
e

. 
T

h
e

s
e

 a
re

 a
ll 

b
e

lo
w

 t
h

e
 E

n
g
la

n
d

 a
v
e

ra
g
e

 b
u

t 
s
ti
ll 

c
a
u

s
e

 h
e
a

lt
h

 i
n
e

q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 D
is

tr
ic

t.
  

T
h
e

 r
a

te
 o

f 
h

ig
h

e
r 

ri
s
k
 d

ri
n

k
in

g
 i
s
 h

ig
h

e
r 

th
a
n

 t
h

e
 U

K
 a

v
e

ra
g
e

 a
t 

2
3

.7
%

.

•
S

ix
 o

u
t 

o
f 

th
e

 7
4

 s
m

a
lle

s
t 

m
e

a
s
u

ra
b

le
 a

re
a

s
 i
n

 t
h
e

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
a

re
 m

o
re

 d
e

p
ri
v
e

d
 t

h
a

n
 t
h

e
 U

K
 a

v
e

ra
g
e

. 

•
1

1
.6

%
 o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 i
n

 t
h

is
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

a
re

 i
n

 f
a

m
ili

e
s
 o

n
 o

u
t 
o
f 

w
o

rk
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 a
n
d

 c
h

ild
re

n
 i
n

 t
w

o
 w

a
rd

s
 a

re
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 t
o
p

 2
0

%
 o

f 
c
h

ild
 p

o
v
e

rt
y
 l
e

v
e

ls
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t

o
 t
h

e
 c

o
u
n

ty
 a

n
d

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

v
e

ra
g
e

. 
 

2
0

1
3

 S
e

v
e

n
o

a
k

s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 P

la
n

 C
o

n
s

u
lt

a
ti

o
n

s
 

R
e

c
e

n
t 

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
e

d
 b

y
 2

0
1

2
 H

e
a

lt
h

 &
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 B
ill

 m
e
a

n
s
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 c

a
m

e
 i
n

to
 f

o
rc

e
 f

ro
m

 A
p
ri
l 
2

0
1

2
 

w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 c
h

a
n

g
e

 t
h

e
 w

a
y
 h

e
a

lt
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

re
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
, 

g
iv

in
g
 g

re
a

te
r 

c
o
n

tr
o

l 
fo

r 
s
p

e
n

d
in

g
 a

n
d

 c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 t

o
 

G
P

’s
 a

n
d

 u
p

p
e

r 
ti
e

r 
lo

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 t
a

k
e
n

 o
v
e

r 
th

e
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
p

u
b

lic
 h

e
a

lt
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

F
ro

m
 t

h
is

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 P

la
n

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
s
 w

it
h

 l
o

c
a

l 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 a
n
d

 s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
, 

w
e

 k
n

o
w

 t
h

a
t:
 

•
 

N
o

t 
a

ll 
g
ro

u
p

s
 h

a
v
e

 e
q
u

a
l 
a

c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
, 

fa
c
ili

ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
  

•
 

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 t
o

 l
o

c
a

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 f
a

c
ili

ti
e

s
 i
s
 a

n
 i
s
s
u
e

 f
o

r 
m

a
n

y
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 d

o
 n

o
t 

d
ri
v
e

, 
p

a
rt

ic
u

la
rl
y
 i
n

 r
u

ra
l 
a

re
a

s
. 

  

•
 

R
e

s
id

e
n

ts
 w

e
re

 c
o

n
c
e

rn
e

d
 t
o

 m
a

k
e

 s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 h
e

a
lt
h
 n

e
e

d
s
 o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 w

e
re

 t
a

k
e

n
 i
n
 t

o
 a

c
c
o
u

n
t 
 

•
 

A
c
c
e

s
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n

ts
 a

re
 n

e
e

d
e

d
 t
o

 h
e

a
lt
h
 a

d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 a

d
v
ic

e
 a

b
o

u
t 
d

ru
g
 a

n
d

 a
lc

o
h
o

l 
m

is
u
s
e

. 
  

•
 

L
o

c
a

l 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 a

ls
o

 t
o

ld
 u

s
 t
h

a
t 
it
 i
s
 i
m

p
o

rt
a
n

t 
to

 m
a

in
ta

in
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 t
h

e
 D

is
tr

ic
t’
s
 l
e

is
u

re
 f
a

c
ili

ti
e

s
, 

o
p
e

n
 s

p
a

c
e

s
 a

n
d
 

c
o

u
n

tr
y
s
id

e
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 h

e
a

lt
h

y
 l
if
e

s
ty

le
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
. 

Agenda Item 7

Page 15



S
E

V
E

N
O

A
K

S
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 ‘
M

IN
D

 T
H

E
 G

A
P

’ 
P

L
A

N
 -

  
B

u
ild

in
g
 b

ri
d
g
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
tt
e
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

6
 

F
ig

u
re

 2

L
if

e
 E

x
p

e
c

ta
n

c
y
 a

t 
b

ir
th

 i
n

 S
e

v
e

n
o

a
k

s
 D

is
tr

ic
t,

 2
0

0
8

-2
0

1
2
 

H
e

a
lt

h
 I

n
e

q
u

a
li
ti

e
s
 i

n
 S

e
v
e

n
o

a
k

s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

T
h
e

 c
a

lc
u

la
ti
o

n
 o

f 
lif

e
 e

x
p

e
c
ta

n
c
y
 a

t 
b

ir
th

 i
s
 a

 n
a

ti
o
n

a
l 
m

e
a

s
u

re
m

e
n

t 
u

s
e

d
 t
o

 a
s
s
e

s
s
 t
h

e
 d

if
fe

re
n

c
e

s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 m

o
re

 a
ff

lu
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 d

e
p

ri
v
e

d
 w

a
rd

s
. 

 T
h

e
 c

h
a

rt
 a

t 
F

ig
u

re
 2

 d
e
m

o
n

s
tr

a
te

s
 t

h
e

 d
if
fe

re
n
c
e

 i
n

 l
if
e

 e
x
p

e
c
ta

n
c
y
 a

t 
w

a
rd

 l
e

v
e

l 
a

c
ro

s
s
 S

e
v
e

n
o
a

k
s
 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
w

h
ic

h
 s

h
o

w
s
 t

h
e

 h
e
a

lt
h

 i
n
e

q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
is

 D
is

tr
ic

t.
  
T

h
is

 s
h

o
w

s
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

d
if
fe

re
n

c
e

 i
n

 l
if
e

 e
x
p

e
c
ta

n
c
y
 b

a
s
e

d
 

o
n

 t
h

e
 w

a
rd

 i
n

 w
h

ic
h

 y
o

u
 l
iv

e
 c

a
n

 d
if
fe

r 
b

y
 5

.8
 y

e
a

rs
. 

 A
re

a
s
 o

f 
is

o
la

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 d
e

p
ri
v
a

ti
o

n
 h

a
v
e

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 f

a
c
to

rs
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 

lif
e

s
ty

le
, 

e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t,

 a
n

d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
s
ta

n
d

in
g
s
. 

 “
A

ll 
a

g
e

 A
ll 

C
a

u
s
e
 M

o
rt

a
lit

y
” 

is
 t

h
e

 
a

c
c
e

p
te

d
 m

e
a

s
u

re
 o

f 
th

e
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

h
e

a
lt
h

 s
ta

tu
s
 o

f 
c
o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
. 
 B

y
 

s
h

o
w

in
g
 m

o
rt

a
lit

y
 r

a
te

s
 c

h
a

rt
e
d

 t
o
 

d
e

p
ri
v
a

ti
o

n
 w

e
 c

a
n

 d
e
m

o
n

s
tr

a
te

 t
h
e

 
o

v
e

ra
ll 

m
o

rt
a

lit
y
 g

a
p

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 t
h
e

 
ri
c
h

e
s
t 

a
n
d

 p
o

o
re

s
t 
in

 S
e

v
e

n
o

a
k
s
 

D
is

tr
ic

t.
  

 

T
h
e

re
 i
s
 a

ls
o
 a

 d
if
fe

re
n
c
e

 i
n

 l
if
e

 
e

x
p

e
c
ta

n
c
y
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
w

a
rd

s
 

in
 t

h
e
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

w
it
h

 m
e

n
 a

n
d
 w

o
m

e
n

 
liv

in
g
 i
n

 m
o

re
 d

e
p

ri
v
e

d
 a

re
a

s
 h

a
v
in

g
 

a
 7

.8
 y

e
a

rs
 s

h
o

rt
e

r 
lif

e
 e

x
p

e
c
ta

n
c
y
 

th
a

n
 t

h
o

s
e

 l
iv

in
g
 i
n

 l
e

s
s
 d

e
p

ri
v
e

d
 

w
a

rd
s
. 

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 16



S
E

V
E

N
O

A
K

S
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 ‘
M

IN
D

 T
H

E
 G

A
P

’ 
P

L
A

N
 -

  
B

u
ild

in
g
 b

ri
d
g
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
tt
e
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

7
 

3
. 

W
h

a
t 

th
is

 P
la

n
 w

il
l 

d
o

 t
o

 t
a
c
k
le

 H
e
a
lt

h
 I

n
e
q

u
a
li
ti

e
s
 i
n

 S
e
v
e
n

o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

  

W
e
 w

ill
 a

im
 t

o
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 h
e

a
lt
h

 i
n

e
q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 i
n

 t
h
is

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
b

y
 r

e
d

u
c
in

g
 t

h
e

 g
a

p
 i
n
 h

e
a

lt
h

 s
ta

tu
s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 o

u
r 

ri
c
h

e
s
t 
a
n

d
 p

o
o

re
s
t 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
, 

th
ro

u
g
h

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 k
e

y
 a

g
e

n
c
ie

s
, 

th
e

 v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 s
e

c
to

r 
a

n
d

 l
o

c
a

l 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
. 
 

M
o

s
t 

im
p
o

rt
a

n
tl
y
 w

e
 w

ill
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 h
e

a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
 f

o
r 

e
v
e

ry
o

n
e

 i
n

 S
e

v
e

n
o
a

k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

b
u

t 
w

e
 w

ill
 a

im
 t

o
 “

im
p

ro
v
e

 t
h

e
 

h
e

a
lt
h

 o
f 

th
e

 p
o
o

re
s
t 
fa

s
te

s
t”

 s
o

 t
h

a
t 
m

o
re

 p
e

o
p

le
 w

ill
 l
iv

e
 l
o

n
g
e

r 
in

 b
e

tt
e

r 
h
e

a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 d

if
fe

re
n

c
e

 i
n

 l
if
e

 e
x
p

e
c
ta

n
c
y
 w

it
h

in
 

a
n

d
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 w

ill
 r

e
d

u
c
e

. 

T
h

is
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 w
ill

 b
e

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 a
n
d

 m
o

n
it
o

re
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 S
e

v
e

n
o

a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

H
e

a
lt
h

 A
c
ti
o
n

 T
e

a
m

 w
h

ic
h

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 a

 h
e

a
lt
h

 d
e

liv
e

r 
s
u

b
-g

ro
u

p
 o

f 
th

e
 l
o

c
a

lit
y
 H

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
 B

o
a

rd
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 L

o
c
a
l 
S

tr
a

te
g
ic

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
te

s
 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 
k
e

y
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e
d

 b
y
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 S
e

v
e

n
o

a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 P

la
n

. 
 I

t 
w

ill
 a

ls
o

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

te
 t

o
 t
h

e
 w

id
e

r 
K

e
n

t 
‘M

in
d

 t
h

e
 G

a
p

’ 
H

e
a

lt
h
 I
n

e
q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n
. 

T
h

e
 E

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 B
e

n
e

fi
t 

o
f 

R
e

d
u

c
in

g
 I

n
e

q
u

a
li
ti

e
s

 w
ill

 y
ie

ld
 t

a
n

g
ib

le
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 f

o
r 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

ls
, 
fa

m
ili

e
s
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
. 

F
o

r 
e

x
a

m
p

le
, 
e

a
c
h

 t
e
e

n
a

g
e

 p
re

g
n

a
n

c
y
 a

v
o

id
e

d
 w

ill
 s

a
v
e

 a
 t

o
ta

l 
o
f 

£
4

0
0

,0
0
0

 i
n

 e
x
tr

a
 c

o
s
ts

 t
o

 t
h

e
 t
a

x
p

a
y
e

r 
in

 h
e

a
lt
h

, 
b

e
n
e
fi
ts

, 
ta

x
 

fr
o
m

 e
a

rn
in

g
s
 a

n
d

 l
o

s
t 
p

ro
d

u
c
ti
v
it
y
. 

1
,1

8
0
 m

o
re

 p
e
o

p
le

 i
n

 S
e

v
e

n
o

a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

w
e

re
 h

e
lp

e
d

 t
o
 s

to
p

 s
m

o
k
in

g
 i
n

 2
0
1

2
/1

3
 a

n
d

 o
n

 
a

v
e

ra
g
e

 e
v
e

ry
 s

m
o

k
e

r 
w

h
o

 q
u

it
s
 w

ill
 s

a
v
e

 o
v
e

r 
£

2
0

0
0

 p
a

. 
 E

v
e

ry
 p

o
u

n
d

 i
n

v
e

s
te

d
 i
n

 t
o

b
a

c
c
o

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 
a
n

d
 s

m
o

k
in

g
 c

e
s
s
a

ti
o
n

 
w

ill
 s

a
v
e

 £
1

1
 i
n

 h
e

a
lt
h

, 
s
o

c
ia

l 
c
a

re
 a

n
d

 r
e

la
te

d
 c

o
s
ts

. 

4
. 

W
h

o
 w

il
l 

D
o

 W
h

a
t 

 

T
h

is
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

 f
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 a

n
d

 t
o
o

ls
 t

o
 i
d
e

n
ti
fy

, 
a
n

a
ly

s
e

 a
n

d
 e

v
a

lu
a

te
 a

c
ti
o
n

s
 t
h

a
t 

c
a

n
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
te

 t
o

 r
e
d

u
c
in

g
 

h
e

a
lt
h

 i
n

e
q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 i
n

 S
e

v
e

n
o

a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t.

  
T

h
is

 A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n
 u

s
e

s
 t
h

e
 M

a
rm

o
t 
p

ri
n

c
ip

le
s
 t
o

 r
e
d

u
c
e

 h
e

a
lt
h

 i
n
e

q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 h

is
 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
e
d

 l
if
e

 c
o

u
rs

e
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
, 
fr

o
m

 b
ir
th

 t
o

 e
n
d

 o
f 

lif
e

, 
to

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 p
e

o
p

le
’s

 h
e
a

lt
h

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

o
u

t 
e

a
c
h

 s
ta

g
e

 o
f 

th
e

ir
 l
if
e

 
c
o

u
rs

e
. 

 W
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 A
c
ti
o

n
, 
e

a
c
h
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

 m
a
p

s
 t

h
e

 p
ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 f
o

r 
th

is
 D

is
tr

ic
t,

 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 K

e
n

t 
p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
, 
a

n
d
 h

ig
h

lig
h

ts
 t

h
e

 
h

ig
h

e
r 

p
ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 f

o
r 

th
is

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
th

a
t 
n

e
e
d

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
w

o
rk

, 
th

ro
u

g
h

 t
a

rg
e

te
d

 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
o

rk
in

g
. 

  

E
a

c
h

 o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 t

h
e

 e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 d
a

ta
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 h
ig

h
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
, 

w
h

e
th

e
r 

th
is

 i
s
 b

e
c
a

u
s
e

 i
t 
b

e
in

g
 w

o
rs

e
 t

h
e

n
 t
h

e
 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 o
r 

K
e
n

t 
a

v
e

ra
g
e

, 
o

r 
a

 g
a

p
 i
n

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
. 
 F

ro
m

 p
a

g
e

s
 3

5
, 

th
e
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 A

c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
 s

e
ts

 o
u

t 
th

e
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 t

h
a

t 
p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 w
ill

 d
e

liv
e

r 
to

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

 t
h

e
 h

e
a

lt
h

 o
u

tc
o
m

e
s
 a

n
d

 h
ig

h
lig

h
ts

 t
h
e

 h
ig

h
e
r 

p
ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

o
n

it
o

re
d

 
th

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 S

e
v
e

n
o

a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

H
e

a
lt
h

 A
c
ti
o

n
 T

e
a
m

. 
 O

th
e

r 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e
d

 p
ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 (

h
ig

h
lig

h
te

d
 g

re
y
 i
n

 t
h

e
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

) 
w

ill
 a

ls
o

 b
e

 
m

o
n

it
o

re
d
 t

o
 a

s
s
e

s
s
 t
h
e

 d
ir
e

c
ti
o
n

 o
f 

tr
a

v
e

l 
o
f 

e
a

c
h

 a
c
ti
o

n
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t
h

is
 w

o
rk

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

s
 t

o
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 t
o

 m
a

k
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

. 

Agenda Item 7

Page 17



S
E

V
E

N
O

A
K

S
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 ‘
M

IN
D

 T
H

E
 G

A
P

’ 
P

L
A

N
 -

  
B

u
ild

in
g
 b

ri
d
g
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
tt
e
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

8
 

S
e

v
e

n
o

a
k

s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o

u
n

c
il
 

A
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 m

a
in

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
P

u
b

lic
 H

e
a

lt
h

 s
it
s
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 u

p
p
e
r 

ti
e

r 
lo

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 i
e

 K
e

n
t 

C
o

u
n
ty

 C
o

u
n

c
il,

 t
h

e
 p

u
b

lic
 

h
e

a
lt
h

 r
e
fo

rm
s
 e

n
h
a

n
c
e

 t
h
e

 r
o

le
 o

f 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o
u

n
c
ils

 i
n

 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 h

e
a
lt
h

 a
n
d

 w
e

llb
e

in
g
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o

r 
lo

c
a

l 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

. 
F

ro
m

 
e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
, 

h
o
u

s
in

g
 a

n
d
 o

p
e

n
 s

p
a

c
e

s
, 

to
 t
h

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

le
is

u
re

 f
a

c
ili

ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
in

g
 e

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 g
ro

w
th

, 
d

is
tr

ic
t 

c
o

u
n

c
il 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 h

a
v
e

 a
 v

it
a

l 
im

p
a

c
t 
o

n
 t
h

e
 w

id
e

r 
d

e
te

rm
in

a
n

ts
 o

f 
h
e

a
lt
h

, 
a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 a

 m
a

jo
r 

ro
le

 i
n

 h
e

a
lt
h
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 h

e
a

lt
h

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
, 
a

s
 s

h
o

w
n

 i
n

 F
ig

u
re

 3
. 

S
o
u
rc

e
: 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o
u
n
c
ils

’ 
N

e
tw

o
rk

 –
 D

is
tr

ic
t 
A

c
ti
o
n
 o

n
 P

u
b
lic

 H
e
a
lt
h

S
e

v
e

n
o

a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o
u

n
c
il 

re
c
o

g
n

is
e

s
 t
h

e
 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
c
e

 o
f 

re
d
u

c
in

g
 h

e
a

lt
h

 i
n

e
q
u

a
lit

ie
s
. 
 T

h
e
 S

e
v
e

n
o

a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 P

la
n

 
c
re

a
te

s
 a

 l
o

n
g
-t

e
rm

, 
s
u
s
ta

in
a
b

le
 v

is
io

n
 f

o
r 

th
e

 S
e

v
e

n
o

a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

a
n

d
 s

e
ts

 o
u

t 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
’s

 p
ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 f

o
r 

a
 a

c
ti
o
n

, 
re

fl
e

c
ti
n

g
 

w
h

a
t 

p
e

o
p

le
 h

a
v
e

 t
o

ld
 u

s
 i
s
 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 

to
 t

h
e

m
. 

 I
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 t

h
e

 h
e

a
lt
h
 a

n
d

 w
e

llb
e

in
g
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 r
e
d

u
c
in

g
 h

e
a

lt
h

 i
n

e
q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 

p
la

y
s
 a

 v
it
a

l 
ro

le
 w

it
h

in
 a

ll 
s
ix

 e
le

m
e

n
ts

 o
f 

th
is

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 v

is
io

n
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 m

a
k
in

g
 S

e
v
e

n
o

a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

a
 p

la
c
e
 w

it
h

: 

•
S

a
fe

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 

 
A

 s
a
fe

r 
p

la
c
e
 t

o
 l
iv

e
, 

w
o

rk
 a

n
d
 t

ra
v
e

l 
•

H
e
a
lt

h
y
 E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

 
P

e
o

p
le

 c
a
n

 h
a

v
e

 h
e

a
lt
h

y
 l
if
e

s
ty

le
s
, 

a
c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 q

u
a

lit
y
 

h
e

a
lt
h

c
a

re
 a

n
d
 h

e
a

lt
h

 i
n

e
q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 a

re
 r

e
d
u

c
e
d

. 

F
ig

u
re

 3

Agenda Item 7

Page 18



S
E

V
E

N
O

A
K

S
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 ‘
M

IN
D

 T
H

E
 G

A
P

’ 
P

L
A

N
 -

  
B

u
ild

in
g
 b

ri
d
g
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
tt
e
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

9
 

•
C

a
ri

n
g

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
  

C
h

ild
re

n
 a

re
 e

n
a

b
le

d
 t
o

 h
a

v
e

 t
h

e
 b

e
s
t 

s
ta

rt
, 
p
e

o
p

le
 c

a
n

 
b

e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 t
o

 l
e
a

d
 i
n
d

e
p
e

n
d
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 f
u

lf
ill

in
g
 l
iv

e
s
 

•
D

y
n

a
m

ic
 E

c
o

n
o

m
y
  

A
 t

h
ri
v
in

g
 l
o

c
a

l 
e

c
o

n
o
m

y
 w

h
e

re
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 f
lo

u
ri
s
h

, 
w

h
e

re
 

p
e

o
p

le
 h

a
v
e

 s
k
ill

s
 f

o
r 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 t
o

u
ri
s
m

 i
s
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
. 

•
G

re
e
n

 E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
  

P
e

o
p

le
 c

a
n

 e
n

jo
y
 c

le
a

n
 a

n
d

 h
ig

h
 q

u
a

lit
y
 u

rb
a
n

 a
n
d

 r
u

ra
l 

e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t.
 

•
S

u
s
ta

in
a
b

le
 E

c
o

n
o

m
y

  
 

P
e

o
p

le
 c

a
n

 l
iv

e
, 

w
o

rk
 a

n
d

 t
ra

v
e

l 
m

o
re

 e
a

s
ily

 a
n

d
 a

re
 

e
m

p
o

w
e

re
d

 t
o

 s
h

a
p

e
 t
h

e
ir
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
. 

K
e

n
t 

C
o

u
n

ty
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 

K
e

n
t 

C
o

u
n
ty

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

is
 t

a
k
in

g
 o

n
 n

e
w

 r
e

s
p

o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 f

o
r 

P
u
b

lic
 H

e
a
lt
h

 a
n
d

 f
o

r 
ta

c
k
lin

g
 t

h
e

 s
o

c
ia

l 
d

e
te

rm
in

a
n

ts
 o

f 
h

e
a

lt
h

 
in

e
q
u

a
lit

ie
s
. 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r 
th

e
y
 r

e
c
o

g
n

is
e

 t
h
a

t 
th

is
 w

ill
 o

n
ly

 s
u

c
c
e

e
d

 i
f 

a
ll 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
a

n
d

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 C
o

u
n

c
ils

 a
n

d
 o

u
r 

k
e

y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 a

c
ro

s
s
 

e
a

c
h

 a
re

a
 a

re
 e

n
g
a

g
e

d
 a

n
d

 c
o
m

m
it
te

d
 t

o
 r

e
d
u

c
in

g
 h

e
a

lt
h

 i
n

e
q
u
a

lit
ie

s
 i
n

 t
h
e

ir
 a

re
a

s
. 

  T
h
e

 o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
 a

n
d

 p
ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 C
o
u

n
ty

 a
re

 s
e

t 
b

y
 t

h
e

 M
a

rm
o

t 
re

v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 K
e

n
t 
J
o

in
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 N
e

e
d

s
 A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d
 

th
e

 p
ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 a
c
ti
o
n

s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 K
e

n
t 

‘M
in

d
 t

h
e

 G
a
p

’ 
H

e
a

lt
h

 I
n
e

q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 P

la
n

 a
d

ju
s
te

d
 t
o

 m
e

e
t 
th

e
 n

e
e

d
s
 o

f 
lo

c
a

l 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 w

it
h

in
 e

a
c
h

 D
is

tr
ic

t.
  
 

C
li

n
ic

a
l 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 G

ro
u

p
s

 (
C

C
G

s
) 

A
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 n
e

w
 h

e
a

lt
h

 c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 a

rr
a
n

g
e

m
e
n

ts
, 

th
e

 N
H

S
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 B

o
a

rd
 a

n
d

 C
C

G
s
 w

ill
 n

e
e

d
 t
o

 a
d

o
p

t 
a

 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
 t
h

a
t 
d

e
m

o
n

s
tr

a
te

s
 w

h
a

t 
th

e
y
 h

a
v
e

 d
o

n
e

 t
o

 f
u

lf
ill

 t
h

e
ir
 h

e
a

lt
h

 i
n

e
q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 d

u
ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
o

rk
in

g
. 

 E
m

p
h

a
s
is

 o
n

 
re

d
u

c
in

g
 i
n

e
q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 f
o

c
u

s
e

d
 o

n
 d

e
liv

e
ri
n

g
 s

c
re

e
n

in
g
 a

n
d

 p
re

v
e

n
ti
o
n

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 H

e
a

lt
h

 C
h

e
c
k
s
, 

im
m

u
n

is
a

ti
o
n

s
, 
e

a
rl
y
 d

ia
g
n

o
s
is

 a
n
d

 r
e

d
u

c
in

g
 t
h

e
 b

u
rd

e
n

 o
f 

lo
n

g
 t

e
rm

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
 t
o

 t
h

e
 r

ig
h

t 
p

o
p
u

la
ti
o

n
s
 n

o
t 

ju
s
t 
th

o
s
e

 t
h

a
t 

p
re

s
e

n
t 
th

e
m

s
e

lv
e

s
. 

  

T
h
e

re
 a

re
 t

w
o

 C
C

G
s
 c

o
v
e

ri
n

g
 S

e
v
e

n
o

a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

w
h

ic
h

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 t
h

e
 W

e
s
t 
K

e
n

t 
C

C
G

 c
o

v
e

ri
n

g
 S

e
v
e

n
o

a
k
s
 c

e
n

tr
a

l 
a

n
d

 s
o

u
th

, 
T

u
n

b
ri
d

g
e

 W
e
lls

, 
T

o
n

b
ri
d

g
e

 &
 M

a
lli

n
g
 a

n
d

 M
a
id

s
to

n
e

 l
o

c
a

lit
y
 a

re
a

s
. 
 T

h
e

 n
o

rt
h

 o
f 

th
e

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
is

 c
o

v
e

re
d

 b
y
 t

h
e
 D

a
rt

fo
rd

, 
G

ra
v
e

s
e

n
d

 &
 S

w
a

n
le

y
 (

D
G

S
) 

C
C

G
 w

h
ic

h
 c

o
v
e

rs
 S

w
a

n
le

y
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 n
o

rt
h

e
rn

 p
a

ri
s
h

e
s
 o

f 
S

e
v
e

n
o

a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t,

 D
a

rt
fo

rd
 B

o
ro

u
g
h

 
a

n
d

 G
ra

v
e

s
e

n
d

. 
 A

lt
h
o
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 D

G
S

 C
C

G
 l
o
o
k
s
 l
ik

e
 i
t 

c
o

v
e

rs
 a

 s
m

a
lle

r 
d

e
m

o
g
ra

p
h

ic
 a

re
a

 o
f 

th
e
 D

is
tr

ic
t,

 d
u
e

 t
o
 t

h
e

 p
o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 

s
p

re
a

d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

a
n

d
 t
h

e
 a

m
o

u
n

t 
o
f 
g
re

e
n

 b
e

lt
 l
a

n
d
, 

th
is

 C
C

G
 i
n

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

s
 a

lm
o

s
t 

h
a

lf
 o

f 
th

is
 D

is
tr

ic
t’
s
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 

(4
2

%
).

  
 

L
o

c
a

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 W

e
ll
b

e
in

g
 B

o
a

rd
s
 

E
a

c
h

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
C

o
u
n

c
il 

h
o

ld
s
 t

w
o

 s
e

a
ts

 (
o

n
e
 M

e
m

b
e

r 
a
n

d
 o

n
e

 O
ff

ic
e

r)
 o

n
 t

h
e

 H
e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
 B

o
a

rd
s
 c

o
-o

rd
in

a
te

d
 b

y
 e

a
c
h

 
C

C
G

 c
lin

ic
a

l 
le

a
d

. 
 T

h
e
 B

o
a

rd
s
 w

ill
 f

o
c
u

s
 o

n
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

o
rk

in
g
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

ta
rg

e
te

d
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 

p
o
p

u
la

ti
o
n

 
n

e
e
d

s
 a

n
d

 w
ill

 f
e

e
d

 i
n

to
 t

h
e

 o
v
e

ra
rc

h
in

g
 K

e
n

t 
H

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
 B

o
a

rd
. 
 I

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 w

ill
 f

lo
w

 t
o

 a
n
d

 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 K

e
n

t 
le

v
e

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
 B

o
a

rd
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

 l
o

c
a

l 
B

o
a

rd
s
. 

Agenda Item 7

Page 19



S
E

V
E

N
O

A
K

S
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 ‘
M

IN
D

 T
H

E
 G

A
P

’ 
P

L
A

N
 -

  
B

u
ild

in
g
 b

ri
d
g
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
tt
e
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

1
0

 

A
c

u
te

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

  
T

h
e

 N
H

S
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 d
e
fi
n
e

s
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
s
 c

lin
ic

a
l 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e

 r
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
h
e

a
lt
h
 i
n

e
q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 f

o
r 

N
H

S
 

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
e

rs
, 
e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
in

g
 t

h
e

m
 t
o

 w
o

rk
 i
n

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 p

u
b

lic
 h

e
a

lt
h

 s
y
s
te

m
 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 h
e

a
lt
h

 a
n
d

 w
e

llb
e

in
g
 a

n
d
 

re
d

u
c
e

 h
e
a

lt
h

 i
n
e

q
u

a
lit

ie
s
, 

u
n
d

e
rp

in
n

e
d
 b

y
 N

IC
E

 q
u

a
lit

y
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 o

r 
o

th
e

r 
a

c
c
re

d
it
e
d

 e
v
id

e
n

c
e

. 
In

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r,
 t
h

e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

fr
a
m

e
w

o
rk

s
 s

h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

lig
n

e
d

, 
w

it
h

 f
u

rt
h
e

r 
s
h
a

re
d

 o
u

tc
o
m

e
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 N

H
S

 a
n

d
 p

u
b

lic
 h

e
a

lt
h

 s
y
s
te

m
. 
  

  5
. 

T
h

e
 T

o
o

ls
 W

e
 U

s
e
  

W
h

a
t 

d
o

 w
e
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 d

o
: 

 T
h
e

 a
c
ti
o

n
 t
h

is
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

n
e
e

d
s
 t
o

 t
a

k
e

 i
s
 s

u
m

m
a

ri
s
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

is
 F

o
u

r 
P

o
in

t 
A

p
p

ro
a

c
h
, 

in
 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

K
e

n
t 

H
e

a
lt
h
 I

n
e

q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n
: 

i)
 

T
a

rg
e

ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 -
 U

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 t

h
e

 n
e
e

d
s
 o

f 
o

u
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
. 
 

 
T

h
e

 f
o

c
u

s
 o

f 
re

s
p

o
n

s
e
 s

tr
a

te
g
ie

s
, 

b
o

th
 c

o
u

n
ty

 a
n

d
 l

o
c
a

lit
y
 b

a
s
e

d
, 

s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
 i

n
 a

c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 p

ri
n

c
ip

le
s
 o

f 
e

q
u

it
y
 (

g
re

a
te

r 
a

tt
e
n

ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 i

n
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
to

 a
re

a
s
 a

n
d

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 o

f 
g
re

a
te

s
t 

n
e

e
d

) 
in

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 m

a
x
im

is
e

 a
n

d
 i

m
p

ro
v
e

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

o
u

tc
o
m

e
s
. 

 
T

h
e

re
 i

s
 a

 w
e

a
lt
h

 o
f 

re
s
e

a
rc

h
, 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
, 

d
a

ta
 a

n
d

 s
o
p

h
is

ti
c
a

te
d

 p
ro

fi
lin

g
 t

o
o

ls
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 i

n
 K

e
n

t 
to

 h
e

lp
 i

d
e

n
ti
fy

 t
h

o
s
e
 

a
re

a
s
 a

n
d

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 o

f 
g
re

a
te

s
t 

n
e

e
d
. 
 

o
J
o

in
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 N
e

e
d

s
 A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 m
a

p
s
 (

w
w

w
.k

m
p

h
o

.n
h

s
.u

k
/j
s
n

a
/)

o
D

is
tr

ic
t 

a
n

d
 K

e
n

t 
H

e
a

lt
h

 P
ro

fi
le

s
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e

 D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

H
e
a

lt
h

 
(w

w
w

.a
p

h
o

.o
rg

.u
k
/r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
/v

ie
w

.a
s
p

x
?

Q
N

=
H

P
_

R
E

S
U

L
T

S
&

G
E

O
G

R
A

P
H

Y
=

2
9

) 
o

K
e

y
 f

a
c
ts

 a
b

o
u
t 

th
e

 C
o
u

n
ty

 o
f 

K
e

n
t 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 D

e
p

ri
v
a

ti
o

n
, 

p
o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
, 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t,

 h
o

u
s
in

g
  

c
a

n
 b

e
 f
o

u
n

d
 a

t 
K

C
C

 
R

e
s
e

a
rc

h
 a

n
d
 I

n
te

lli
g
e

n
c
e

 U
n

it
 w

e
b

s
it
e

 (
w

w
w

.k
e

n
t.

g
o

v
.u

k
/y

o
u

r_
c
o
u
n

c
il/

k
e

n
t_

fa
c
ts

_
a

n
d

_
fi
g
u

re
s
.a

s
p

x
)

D
e
li

v
e
r 

th
is

 4
 P

O
IN

T
 A

P
P

R
O

A
C

H
: 

i)
 

T
a
rg

e
t 

th
e
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a
te

ly
b

y
 u

s
in

g
 l
o
c
a

l 
in

te
lli

g
e
n
c
e
, 

d
a
ta

 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 J

S
N

A
, 

lo
c
a
lit

y
 h

e
a
lt
h
 p

ro
fi
le

s
, 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 c

o
n
s
u

lt
a
ti
o
n
s
  

ii)
 

A
p

p
ly

 t
h

e
 H

IN
S

T
 C

h
ri

s
tm

a
s
 T

re
e
 T

o
o

l
to

 c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 i
n

te
rv

e
n
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
  

d
e
liv

e
re

d
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 t
o
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 p
o

p
u
la

ti
o
n
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
. 

iii
) 

A
s

s
e
s
s
 i

m
p

a
c
t

o
n
 h

e
a
lt
h
 i
n
e
q

u
a

lit
ie

s
 b

y
 a

p
p

ly
in

g
 t
h
e

 w
e

llb
e
in

g
 s

c
re

e
n

in
g
 t

o
o
l 
a
n
d

 b
y
 l
is

te
n

in
g
 t
o
 

lo
c
a
l 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 

iv
) 

O
w

n
e
rs

h
ip

a
n
d
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

p
ri
o
ri

ti
e
s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 l
o
c
a

lly
 a

g
re

e
d
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
s
 a

n
d

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
o
rk

in
g
 

�

Agenda Item 7

Page 20



S
E

V
E

N
O

A
K

S
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 ‘
M

IN
D

 T
H

E
 G

A
P

’ 
P

L
A

N
 -

  
B

u
ild

in
g
 b

ri
d
g
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
tt
e
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

1
1

 

+
 

+
 

=

+
 

1
3

. 
N

e
tw

o
rk

s
, 

L
e

a
d

e
rs

h
ip

 a
n

d
 C

o
-o

rd
in

a
ti

o
n

 

F
ig

u
re

 4

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 f

o
r 

B
e
s
t 

O
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 

(H
IN

S
T

) 
C

h
ri

s
tm

a
s
 T

re
e
 M

o
d

e
l 

P
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 F
o

c
u

s
 

O
p

ti
m

a
l

 P
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

  

O
u

tc
o

m
e

 

1
2

. 
B

a
la

n
c

e
d

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 P

o
rt

fo
li

o

1
1

. 
A

d
e

q
u

a
te

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 V

o
lu

m
e

s
 C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e
 t

o
 P

ro
v
id

e
rs

 

1
. 

K
n

o
w

n
In

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 

E
ff

ic
a

c
y

 

5
. 

E
n

g
a

g
in

g
 t

h
e

 

P
u

b
li

c
 

4
. 

A
c

c
e

s
s

ib
il

it
y

 

2
. 

L
o

c
a

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

E
ff

e
c

ti
v
e

n
e

s
s

 

3
.C

o
s

t 
E

ff
e

c
ti

v
e

n
e

s
s

 

6
. 

K
n

o
w

n
P

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n

N
e

e
d

s
 

1
0

. 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 S

e
lf

-
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

9
. 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
iv

e
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s

7
. 

E
x

p
re

s
s

e
d

 D
e

m
a

n
d

88
..

EE
qq

uu
ii tt

aa
bb

ll ee
RR

ee
ss

oo
uu

rr cc
ii nn

gg

+

ii)
 S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
  

U
s
in

g
 t

h
e

 H
IN

S
T

 C
h

ri
s
tm

a
s
 T

re
e

 M
o
d

e
l 
(F

ig
u

re
 

4
),

 T
h

e
 D

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

t 
o
f 
H

e
a

lt
h

 I
n

e
q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
S

u
p
p

o
rt

 T
e

a
m

 (
H

IN
S

T
) 

d
e

v
e

lo
p
e

d
 t
h

e
 

C
h

ri
s
tm

a
s
 T

re
e
 m

o
d
e

l 
to

 i
n

tr
o
d

u
c
e
 g

re
a

te
r 

e
m

p
h

a
s
is

 o
n

 t
h

e
 P

o
p
u

la
ti
o

n
 F

o
c
u

s
 (

le
ft

 h
a
n

d
 s

id
e

 
o
f 

th
e

 m
o

d
e

l)
. 

 T
h

is
 i
s
 n

e
e
d

e
d

 t
o

 f
u

lly
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 
e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 o
u

tc
o
m

e
s
. 
 

It
 h

a
s
 t

h
e

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
to

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e

rs
 t
o

e
n

g
a

g
e

 i
n

 t
h
e

 s
y
s
te

m
a
ti
c
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
e

 b
e

s
t 

h
e

a
lt
h

 o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f

ro
m

 a
 g

iv
e

n
 s

e
t 

o
f 

in
te

rv
e

n
ti
o

n
s
 

a
n

d
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
lo

c
a

l 
p
e

o
p

le
 h

a
v
e

 a
 v

o
ic

e
. 

iii
) 

 I
m

p
a

c
t 

A
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t 

 

S
u

p
p
o

rt
in

g
 O

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
a
l 
e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 t
h

e
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
o
f 

a
 h

e
a

lt
h

 i
n

e
q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
 

s
c
re

e
n

in
g
 t

o
o

l 
w

ill
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 m
o
d

e
l 
fo

r 
a

s
s
e

s
s
in

g
 

a
n

d
 m

e
a

s
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 o
f 

im
p

a
c
t 

o
f 

in
te

rv
e

n
ti
o
n

s
 

w
h

ic
h

 a
re

 i
n

te
g
ra

l 
to

 c
o

s
t 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 

a
n

d
 d

e
liv

e
ri
n

g
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 a
n

d
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o

r 
th

e
 p

o
p
u

la
ti
o
n

. 
 F

o
r 

e
x
a

m
p

le
, 

th
e

 M
e
n

ta
l 
W

e
ll-

b
e

in
g
 I

m
p

a
c
t 
A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
s
c
re

e
n

in
g
 t

o
o

l 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 N
a

ti
o
n

a
l 
M

W
IA

 C
o

lla
b
o

ra
ti
v
e

 
(E

n
g
la

n
d

) 
a

n
d

 p
u

b
lis

h
e

d
 i
n

 M
a

y
 2

0
1

1
 w

ill
 p

u
t 
w

e
llb

e
in

g
 a

t 
th

e
 c

e
n

tr
e

 o
f 

o
u

r 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 a

s
 a

 k
e

y
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

a
d

d
re

s
s
in

g
 i
n

e
q
u

a
lit

ie
s
. 
 

T
h

is
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 w
ill

 a
ls

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 t

h
e
 H

e
a

lt
h

 a
n
d

 W
e

llb
e

in
g
 B

o
a

rd
s
 w

it
h

 e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 o
f 

im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 f

a
c
ili

ta
te

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 t
h

e
 h

e
a

lt
h

 
p

re
m

iu
m

s
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
is

 p
ro

p
o

s
in

g
 t
o

 u
s
e
 t

o
 r

e
w

a
rd

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 o

n
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 p
u

b
lic

 h
e

a
lt
h

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
. 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
e

rs
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 a
w

a
re

 o
f 

a
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

to
o

ls
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 t
h

e
m

 a
s
s
e

s
s
 c

o
s
t 

b
e

n
e
fi
ts

. 
T

h
e

 N
a

ti
o
n

a
l 
In

s
ti
tu

te
 f
o

r 
H

e
a

lt
h

 
a

n
d

 C
lin

ic
a

l 
E

x
c
e

lle
n

c
e

 (
N

IC
E

) 
p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 a

 t
h

re
e

 s
te

p
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 t
o

 d
e

te
rm

in
e
 t

h
e
 b

e
n

e
fi
ts

 o
f 

p
u

b
lic

 h
e
a

lt
h

 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
s
 (

2
0

1
0

) 
a

n
d

 
re

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
e
d

 t
h

e
 n

e
e
d

 f
o

r 
b
e

n
e
fi
ts

 t
o

 b
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 i
n
 ‘
n

a
tu

ra
l 
u
n

it
s
’,
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 l
if
e

 y
e

a
rs

 s
a

v
e

d
 a

n
d

 r
e

d
u

c
ti
o
n

s
 i
n

 h
o
s
p

it
a

l 
a
d

m
is

s
io

n
s
 

a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
m

o
d

e
lin

g
.

Agenda Item 7

Page 21



S
E

V
E

N
O

A
K

S
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 ‘
M

IN
D

 T
H

E
 G

A
P

’ 
P

L
A

N
 -

  
B

u
ild

in
g
 b

ri
d
g
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
tt
e
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

1
2

 

G
iv

e
 e

v
e
ry

 c
h

il
d

 t
h

e
 b

e
s
t 

s
ta

rt
 i
n

 l
if

e
 

G
iv

e
 e

v
e
ry

 c
h

il
d

 t
h

e
 b

e
s
t 

s
ta

rt
 i
n

 l
if

e
 

1
: 

G
iv

e
 e

v
e
ry

 
c
h

il
d

 t
h

e
 b

e
s
t 

s
ta

rt
 i

n
 l

if
e

Im
p
ro

v
in

g
 h

e
a
lt
h
 i
n
 t
h
e
 e

a
rl
y
 y

e
a
rs

 o
f 
lif

e
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

s
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ra

b
ly

 t
o
 b

e
tt
e
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 i
n
 l
a
te

r 
lif

e
, 

w
it
h
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 
d
ia

b
e
te

s
, 
c
o
ro

n
a
ry

 h
e
a
rt

 d
is

e
a
s
e
 a

n
d
 

h
y
p
e
rt

e
n
s
io

n
, 
a
ll 

o
f 
w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t

h
e
 N

H
S

 a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 w

id
e
r 

s
o
c
ie

ty
, 
c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
ir
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
. 
 

K
e

y
 P

ri
o

ri
ty

 f
o

r 
S

e
v
e
n

o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t:

 

•
H

e
lp

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

h
e
a
lt

h
y
 b

ir
th

s
 

•
E

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 h

e
a
lt

h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 f

o
r 

a
ll
 

•
P

ro
m

o
te

 h
e
a
lt

h
y
 w

e
ig

h
t 

fo
r 

c
h

il
d

re
n

 
  

T
h

e 
fo

u
n

d
a

ti
o
n

s 
fo

r 
vi

rt
u

a
ll

y 

ev
er

y 
a

sp
ec

t 
o

f 
h

u
m

a
n

 

d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

–
 p

h
ys

ic
a

l,
 

in
te

ll
ec

tu
a

l 
a

n
d

 e
m

o
ti

o
n

a
l 

–
 

a
re

 l
a

id
 i

n
 e

a
rl

y 
ch

il
d

h
o

o
d

. 

(M
a

rm
o

t 
R

ev
ie

w
 2

0
1

0
)

Agenda Item 7

Page 22



S
E

V
E

N
O

A
K

S
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 ‘
M

IN
D

 T
H

E
 G

A
P

’ 
P

L
A

N
 -

  
B

u
ild

in
g
 b

ri
d
g
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
tt
e
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

1
3

 

O
b

je
c

ti
v
e
 1

(a
):

   
G

iv
e

 e
v
e
ry

 c
h

ild
 t
h
e

 b
e
s
t 
s
ta

rt
 i
n

 l
if
e

  
 

 
 

  
(C

o
n
c
e
p

ti
o

n
-9

 m
o

n
th

s
)  

D
e

li
v
e

re
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

: 
M

a
te

rn
it

y
 M

a
tt

e
rs

, 
In

fa
n

t 
F

e
e

d
in

g
 A

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
, 

C
h

il
d

re
n

 C
e

n
tr

e
s

 D
e

li
v
e

ry
 A

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
, 

S
e

v
e

n
o

a
k

s
 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
T

e
e

n
a

g
e

 P
re

g
n

a
n

c
y
 A

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
 

L
o

c
a

l 
P

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s
:

1
.1

 H
e
lp

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
h

e
a

lt
h

y
 b

ir
th

s
 

(H
ig

h
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 f
o

r 
S

e
v
e

n
o

a
k

s
 D

is
tr

ic
t)

1
.2

  
In

c
re

a
s

e
 b

re
a

s
t-

fe
e

d
in

g
 i

n
it

ia
ti

o
n

 r
a

te
s

 a
t 

6
-8

 w
e
e

k
s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 C

h
il

d
re

n
 C

e
n

tr
e

 
ta

rg
e

te
d

 l
o

c
a

ti
o

n
s
 

A
c

ti
o

n
s

:
 

1
.1

.1
 

R
u

n
 c

a
m

p
a

ig
n

s
 a

n
d
 d

e
liv

e
r 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 t

o
 

p
ro

m
o

te
 g

o
o
d

 h
e

a
lt
h

 i
n
 p

re
g
n

a
n

c
y
 a

n
d

 
p

ro
m

o
ti
o

n
 S

ta
rt

4
L

if
e
 

 
1

.2
.1

 
P

o
s
it
iv

e
 p

ro
m

o
ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 c

re
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
b

re
a

s
t-

fe
e

d
in

g
 f

ri
e
n

d
ly

 e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ts
 

 
1

.1
.2

 
E

n
s
u

re
 t
e

e
n

a
g
e

 p
a

re
n

ts
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

 h
o

lis
ti
c
 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
  

 
1

.2
.2

 
P

ro
v
id

e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

o
 n

e
w

 m
o
th

e
rs

 t
o

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 
th

e
 i
n

it
ia

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 c
o
n

ti
n
u

a
ti
o
n

 o
f 

b
re

a
s
t-

fe
e

d
in

g
 

 
1

.1
.3

 
E

a
rl
y
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 p

a
re

n
ts

 
s
m

o
k
in

g
 i
n

 p
re

g
n

a
n

c
y
 a

n
d

 w
o

rk
 t

o
 r

e
d

u
c
e
 

 
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 23



S
E

V
E

N
O

A
K

S
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 ‘
M

IN
D

 T
H

E
 G

A
P

’ 
P

L
A

N
 -

  
B

u
ild

in
g
 b

ri
d
g
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
tt
e
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

1
4

 

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e
 1

(a
) 

- 
G

iv
e
 e

v
e
ry

 c
h

il
d

 t
h

e
 b

e
s
t 

s
ta

rt
 i
n

 l
if

e
  

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 1

.1
 H

e
lp

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

h
e
a

lt
h

y
 b

ir
th

s
 

T
h

e
 N

H
S

 I
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

 C
e

n
tr

e
 f
o

r 
h

e
a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a

re
. 

©
 C

ro
w

n
 C

o
p

y
ri

g
h

t.
 

•
 

T
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
ra

te
 f

o
r 

in
fa

n
t 
m

o
rt

a
lit

y
 f

o
r 

K
e
n
t 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
tl
y
 l
o
w

e
r 

th
a
n
 t

h
e
 E

n
g

la
n
d
 a

n
d
 W

a
le

s
 r

a
te

. 
In

fa
n
t 
m

o
rt

a
lit

y
 r

a
te

 i
n
 S

e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
is

 h
ig

h
e
r 

th
a
n
 t

h
e
 K

e
n
t 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 a

n
d
 i
s
 t

h
e
 t
h
ir
d
 h

ig
h
e
s
t 

in
 K

e
n
t.
  
 T

h
is

 c
o
u
ld

 p
o
in

t 
to

 a
 h

e
a
lt
h
 i
n
e
q

u
a
lit

y
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 s

o
c
io

- 
e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 

c
ir
c
u
m

s
ta

n
c
e
s
. 
 

•
 

L
o
w

 b
ir
th

 w
e
ig

h
t 

h
a
s
 s

e
ri
o
u
s
 c

o
n
s
e
q

u
e
n
c
e
s
 f
o
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 i
n
 l
a
te

r 
lif

e
. 
In

c
re

a
s
e
d
 v

ia
b
ili

ty
 a

n
d
 s

u
rv

iv
a

l 
o
f 

v
e
ry

 p
re

-t
e
rm

 i
n
fa

n
ts

 d
u
e
 t

o
 a

d
v
a
n
c
e
s
 

in
 m

e
d
ic

a
l 
te

c
h
n
o
lo

g
y
 w

ill
 a

c
c
o
u
n
t 
fo

r 
s
o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 v

e
ry

 l
o

w
 b

ir
th

 r
a
te

 w
e
ig

h
ts

. 
 I
n
 2

0
0
8
-2

0
1
0
 1

.1
%

 o
f 

b
a
b
ie

s
 b

o
rn

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

h
a
d
 a

 
V

e
ry

 L
o
w

 B
ir
th

w
e

ig
h
t,
 h

ig
h
e
r 

th
a
n
 t
h
e
 K

e
n
t 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
1
%

. 
 D

u
ri
n
g

 t
h
e
 s

a
m

e
 t
im

e
 f
ra

m
e
, 

5
.5

%
 o

f 
b
a
b
ie

s
 b

o
rn

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 d

is
tr

ic
t 
w

e
re

 
c
la

s
s
if
ie

d
 a

s
 L

o
w

 B
ir
th

w
e
ig

h
t,
 b

e
lo

w
 t

h
e
 K

e
n
t 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
6
.2

%
. 

•
 

S
m

o
k
in

g
 i
n
 p

re
g

n
a
n
c
y
 i
s
 k

n
o
w

n
 t

o
 a

ff
e
c
t 

b
o
th

 b
ir
th

 w
e
ig

h
t 

a
n
d
 i
n
c
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
in

fa
n
t 
m

o
rt

a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t

o
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 h

e
a
lt
h
 o

f 
a
 c

h
ild

. 
 

S
m

o
k
in

g
 s

ta
tu

s
 a

t 
ti
m

e
 o

f 
d
e
liv

e
ry

 f
o
r 

S
e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

is
 1

2
.2

%
 (

L
o
c
a
l 
T

o
b
a
c
c
o
 P

ro
fi
le

s
 f

o
r 

E
n
g

la
n
d
, 

2
0
1
2
),

 t
h
is

 r
is

e
s
 t

o
 4

3
%

 f
o
r 

te
e
n
a
g

e
 

m
o
th

e
rs

. 
 T

h
e
 r

a
te

 o
f 

c
h
a
n
g

e
 i
n
 s

m
o
k
in

g
 s

ta
tu

s
 a

m
o
n
g

s
t 
u
n
d
e
r 

1
8
’s

 w
h
o
 a

re
 p

re
g

n
a
n
t 
is

 o
n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 h

ig
h
e

s
t 

in
 K

e
n
t.
 

•
 

D
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 v

io
le

n
c
e
 i
s
 m

o
re

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 o

c
c
u
r 

to
 w

o
m

e
n

 i
n
 t

h
e
ir
 r

e
p
ro

d
u
c
ti
v
e
 y

e
a
rs

, 
fr

o
m

 l
o
w

e
r 

s
o
c
io

-e
c
o
n

o
m

ic
 a

re
a
s
 a

n
d
 o

ft
e
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
s
 d

u
ri
n
g

 
p
re

g
n
a
n
c
y
. 

 3
0
%

 o
f 

n
e
w

 d
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 a

b
u
s
e
 c

a
s
e
s
 i
n
 E

n
g

la
n
d
 a

re
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
p
re

g
n
a
n
t 

w
o
m

e
n
. 

•
 

A
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 g
ro

u
p
 i
s
 t
e
e
n
a
g

e
 m

o
th

e
rs

 w
h
o
 a

re
 m

u
c
h
 m

o
re

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 b

e
 p

o
s
in

g
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ra

b
le

 r
is

k
 t
o
 b

o
th

 t
h
e
m

s
e
lv

e
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
ir
 

b
a
b
ie

s
. 
T

h
e
y
 a

re
 a

ls
o
 h

ig
h
ly

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 l
a
te

, 
p
o
te

n
ti
a
lly

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

c
o
m

p
ro

m
is

in
g

 t
h
e
ir
 c

a
re

. 
 T

e
e
n
a
g

e
 m

o
th

e
rs

 h
a
d
 a

 s
ta

ti
s
ti
c
a
lly

 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
h
ig

h
e
r 

ra
te

 o
f 
s
ti
llb

ir
th

s
. 
P

o
s
tn

a
ta

lly
 t

h
e
y
 h

a
d
 m

u
c
h
 l
o
w

e
r 

ra
te

s
 o

f 
b
re

a
s
tf
e
e
d
in

g
 a

t 
b
o
th

 b
ir
th

 a
n
d
 a

t 
6
-8

 w
e
e
k
s
.

P
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
b
ab

ie
s
 w

it
h
 a

 lo
w

 b
ir

th
 w

e
ig

h
t 
(<

25
00

 g
rm

s
) 
K
e
n
t 
d
is

tr
ic

ts
 2

01
0

5.
8

4.
9

6.
2

6.
4

7.
4

5.
8

6.
0

4.
7

6.
7

7.
8

6.
3

6.
4

0.
0

1.
0

2.
0

3.
0

4.
0

5.
0

6.
0

7.
0

8.
0

9.
0

A
sh

fo
rd

C
an

te
rb

ur
y

D
ar

tf
or

d
D

ov
er

G
ra

ve
sh

am
M

ai
ds

to
ne

S
ev

en
oa

ks
S

he
pw

ay
S

w
al

e
Th

an
et

To
nb

ri
dg

e 
an

d

M
al

lin
g

Tu
nb

ri
dg

e 
W

el
ls

percent of live and still births

In
fa

n
t 
m

o
rt

a
li
ty

 r
a
te

 p
e
r 
1
,0

0
0
 l
iv

e
 b

ir
th

s
: 
K

e
n
t 
D

is
tr

ic
ts

 2
0
1
0

3
.3

2
.0

0
.7

6
.4

4
.6

2
.7

4
.4

3
.4

3
.3

4
.3

2
.1

0
.7

0
.0

1
.0

2
.0

3
.0

4
.0

5
.0

6
.0

7
.0

A
sh

fo
rd

C
an

te
rb

ur
y

D
ar

tfo
rd

D
ov

er

G
ra

ve
sh

am

M
ai

ds
to

ne

S
ev

en
oa

ks

Sh
ep

w
ay

Sw
al

e

Th
an

et

To
nb

rid
ge

 a
nd

 M
al

lin
g

Tu
nb

rid
ge

W
el

ls

K
e
n
t 
=
 3

.1

Agenda Item 7

Page 24



S
E

V
E

N
O

A
K

S
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 ‘
M

IN
D

 T
H

E
 G

A
P

’ 
P

L
A

N
 -

  
B

u
ild

in
g
 b

ri
d
g
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
tt
e
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

1
5

 

O
b

je
c

ti
v
e
 1

(b
):

 G
iv

e
 e

v
e

ry
 c

h
ild

 t
h

e
 b

e
s
t 
s
ta

rt
 i
n

 l
if
e

   
 

 
(F

ro
m

 9
 m

o
n

th
s
 u

p
w

a
rd

s
)  

D
e

li
v
e

re
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

: 
K

e
n

t 
E

a
rl

y
 I

n
te

rv
e

n
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 P

re
v
e

n
ti

o
n

 T
e

a
m

; 
K

C
H

T
 C

h
il

d
 a

n
d

 Y
o

u
n

g
 P

e
o

p
le

’s
 W

e
ll

b
e

in
g

 T
e

a
m

; 
P

u
tt

in
g

 C
h

il
d

re
n

 F
ir

s
t 

- 
S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 a
n

d
 L

o
o

k
e

d
 A

ft
e

r 
C

h
il

d
re

n
’s

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

 I
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

P
la

n
; 

S
m

o
k

e
fr

e
e

 H
o

m
e

s
 i

n
it

ia
ti

v
e

; 
S

D
C

 F
a

m
il

y
 H

e
a

lt
h

y
 W

e
ig

h
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
; 

T
ro

u
b

le
d

 F
a

m
il

ie
s
 P

ro
je

c
t,

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

; 
C

C
G

s
; 

P
a

ti
e

n
t 

P
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 G

ro
u

p
s

; 
C

h
il

d
re

n
 C

e
n

tr
e

s
  

L
o

c
a

l 
P

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s
:

1
.3

 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 p

a
re

n
ts

 s
o

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

y
 

c
a

n
 r

a
is

e
 e

m
o

ti
o

n
a

ll
y
 a

n
d

 
m

e
n

ta
ll

y
 h

e
a

lt
h

y
 c

h
il

d
re

n
 

1
.4

  
E

n
c

o
u

ra
g

e
 a

c
c

e
s
s

 t
o

 
h

e
a

lt
h

 s
e
rv

ic
e

s
 f

o
r 

a
ll
 

(H
ig

h
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 f
o

r 
S

e
v
e

n
o

a
k

s
 D

is
tr

ic
t)

1
.5

 
P

ro
m

o
te

 H
e

a
lt

h
y
 W

e
ig

h
t 

fo
r 

C
h

il
d

re
n

 (
H

ig
h

 p
ri

o
ri

ty
 f

o
r 

S
e

v
e

n
o

a
k

s
 D

is
tr

ic
t)

A
c

ti
o

n
s

:
1
.3

.1
 
Im

p
ro

v
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

fa
m

ili
e
s
 

w
it
h
 c

ri
m

e
 a

n
d
 a

n
ti
-s

o
c
ia

l 
b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r,

 a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 

w
o
rk

le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e
 

T
ro

u
b
le

d
 F

a
m

ili
e
s
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

 
1
.4

.1
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 G

P
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 t

o
 

h
o
s
p
it
a
ls

, 
p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 i
n
 

ru
ra

l 
a
re

a
s
 

1
.5

.1
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 p
a
re

n
ts

 a
n
d
 c

h
ild

re
n
 t
o
 

m
a
in

ta
in

 a
 h

e
a
lt
h
y
 w

e
ig

h
t 

1
.3

.2
 
R

e
d
u
c
e
 r

e
p
e
a
t 

in
c
id

e
n
ts

 o
f 

D
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 A

b
u
s
e
 

 
1
.4

.2
 

M
a
k
in

g
 m

o
re

 l
o
c
a
lis

e
d
 –

 
b
ri
n
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 o

u
t 

o
f 

tr
a
d
it
io

n
a
l 
s
e
tt

in
g

s
. 

1
.5

.2
 I

n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
te

ra
c
ti
o
n
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 

p
a
re

n
ts

 a
n
d
 c

h
ild

re
n
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

h
e
a
lt
h
y
 l
if
e
s
ty

le
s
 a

n
d
 a

c
ti
v
e
 p

la
y
 

1
.3

.3
 
S

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g

 c
a
re

rs
 a

n
d
 c

h
ild

 
m

in
d
e
rs

  
 

1
.4

.3
 

P
ro

v
id

e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 g
ro

u
p
s
 t

o
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 h

e
a
lt
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

 
 

1
.3

.4
 
G

iv
e
 a

 b
e
tt
e
r 

s
ta

rt
 f

o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 e

a
rl
y
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 f

o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 0

-5
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
ir
 

p
a
re

n
ts

 

 
 

1
.3

.5
 
H

e
lp

 y
o
u
n
g

 p
e
o
p
le

 t
o
 f
e
e
l 
s
a
fe

 
fr

o
m

 b
u
lly

in
g

 a
t 
h
o
m

e
, 
a
t 
s
c
h
o
o
l 

a
n
d
 b

e
 s

a
fe

 o
n
 t

h
e
 i
n
te

rn
e
t 

 
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 25



S
E

V
E

N
O

A
K

S
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 ‘
M

IN
D

 T
H

E
 G

A
P

’ 
P

L
A

N
 -

  
B

u
ild

in
g
 b

ri
d
g
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
tt
e
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

1
6

 

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e
 1

(b
):

  
G

iv
e
 e

v
e
ry

 c
h

il
d

 t
h

e
 b

e
s
t 

s
ta

rt
 i
n

 l
if

e
 (

9
 m

o
n

th
s
+

) 
 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 1

.4
 E

n
c

o
u

ra
g

e
 a

c
c

e
s
s

 t
o

 h
e
a

lt
h

 s
e
rv

ic
e

s
 f

o
r 

a
ll

  

G
P

 a
n
d
 D

e
n
ti
s
t 
re

g
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
s
- 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 h

e
a
lt
h
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
ls

 i
s
 v

it
a
l 
to

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 g
o
o
d
 h

e
a
lt
h
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 f

in
d
in

g
 a

n
d
 v

is
it
in

g
 a

 G
P

 c
a
n
 b

e
 m

o
re

 
d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 f
o
r 

th
o
s
e
 e

x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
in

g
 d

is
ru

p
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t

h
e
ir
 l
iv

e
s
- 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
. 
 D

u
e
 t

o
 t
h
e
 r

u
ra

l 
n
a
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 D

is
tr

ic
t,
 

5
.7

%
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 a
re

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

th
a
n
 4

 k
ilo

m
e
te

rs
 f
ro

m
 a

 G
P

 a
n
d
 2

3
%

 a
re

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

th
a
n
 4

k
m

 f
ro

m
 a

 D
e
n
ti
s
t.
  
O

n
ly

 7
3
%

 l
iv

e
 w

it
h
in

 8
 k

ilo
m

e
te

rs
 o

f 
a
 

h
o
s
p
it
a
l,
 d

ra
s
ti
c
a
lly

 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 t
h
e
 t
im

e
 i
t 
ta

k
e
s
 t

o
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 e

m
e
rg

e
n
c
y
 m

e
d
ic

a
l 
a
id

. 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 1

b
.3

 P
ro

m
o

te
 H

e
a

lt
h

y
 W

e
ig

h
t 

fo
r 

C
h

il
d

re
n

  

N
a
ti

o
n

a
l 
C

h
il
d

h
o

o
d

 M
e

a
s

u
re

m
e
n

t 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 2
0

1
0
/1

1
: 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
o

v
e
rw

e
ig

h
t 

a
n

d
 o

b
e
s

e
 c

h
il
d

re
n

 

b
y
 y

e
a
r 

g
ro

u
p

 a
n

d
 d

is
tr

ic
t

0
.0

%

5
.0

%

1
0
.0

%

1
5
.0

%

2
0
.0

%

2
5
.0

%

R
e
c
e
p

ti
o

n
 Y

e
a
r:

 O
v
e
rw

ie
g
h
t

1
2
.6

%
1

1
.8

%
1
4

.1
%

1
3
.9

%
1
5

.3
%

1
3
.7

%
1
3
.2

%
1
3

.8
%

1
3
.2

%
1
4

.2
%

1
7
.1

%
1
6
.1

%

Y
e
a

r 
6

: 
O

v
e
rw

e
ig

h
t

1
6
.0

%
1

3
.7

%
1
5

.1
%

1
6
.3

%
1
4

.1
%

1
3
.1

%
1
5
.0

%
1
5

.3
%

1
3
.6

%
1
6

.4
%

1
5
.8

%
1
5
.9

%

R
e
c
e
p

ti
o

n
 Y

e
a
r:

 O
b

e
s
e

8
.4

%
9
.1

%
8
.6

%
9
.5

%
9
.4

%
9
.3

%
7

.0
%

8
.4

%
9

.0
%

8
.8

%
1
2
.0

%
6

.4
%

Y
e
a

r 
6

: 
O

b
e
s
e

1
8
.6

%
1

4
.5

%
2
1

.9
%

2
1
.1

%
1
9

.1
%

1
9
.5

%
1
6
.1

%
1
9

.5
%

1
8
.0

%
1
9

.5
%

1
6
.8

%
1
6
.0

%

A
s
h

fo
rd

C
a
n

te
rb

u
ry

D
a

rt
fo

rd
D

o
v
e

r
G

ra
v
e
s
h
a

m
M

a
id

s
to

n
e

S
e

v
e
n
o

a
k
s

S
h
e

p
w

a
y

S
w

a
le

T
h
a
n

e
t

T
o
n
b

ri
d
g

e
 

a
n

d
 

M
a

lli
n
g

T
u
n

b
ri
d

g
e
 

W
e

lls

M
o
u
n
ti
n
g

 e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 s

u
g
g
e
s
ts

 t
h
a
t 
a
 c

ri
ti
c
a
l 
p
e
ri
o
d
 

d
u
ri
n
g
 w

h
ic

h
 t

o
 p

re
v
e
n
t 
c
h
ild

h
o
o
d
 o

b
e
s
it
y
 a

n
d
 i
ts

 
re

la
te

d
 c

o
n
s
e
q

u
e
n
c
e
s
 i
s
 b

e
fo

re
 t

h
e
 a

g
e
 o

f 
fi
v
e
. 
T

h
e
 

b
e
s
t 
th

in
g
 w

e
 c

a
n
 d

o
 f

o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 f

ro
m

 0
-5

 i
s
 c

re
a
te

 
w

a
y
s
 o

f 
lif

e
 w

h
ic

h
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 m

a
k
e
 o

b
e
s
it
y
 u

n
lik

e
ly

. 
C

h
ild

re
n
 w

h
o
 l
iv

e
 i
n
 m

o
re

 d
e
p
ri
v
e
d
 a

re
a
s
 a

re
 m

o
re

 
lik

e
ly

 t
o
 b

e
 o

v
e
rw

e
ig

h
t 
a
n
d
 o

b
e
s
e
 t
h
a
n
 t
h
o
s
e
 f
ro

m
 

th
e
 m

o
s
t 
a
ff

lu
e
n
t 
a
re

a
s
. 
M

a
k
in

g
 w

h
a
t 
m

a
y
 s

e
e
m

 l
ik

e
 

s
im

p
le

 c
h
a
n
g

e
s
 t

o
 d

a
ily

 h
a
b
it
s
 (

p
h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a
n
d
 

n
u
tr

it
io

n
a
l)
 i
s
 s

o
m

e
ti
m

e
s
 s

im
p
ly

 t
o
o
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
 g

iv
e

n
 a

ll 
th

e
 o

th
e
r 

d
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie

s
 m

a
n
y
 f

a
m

ili
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 t

o
 c

o
n
fr

o
n
t.
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 26



S
E

V
E

N
O

A
K

S
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 ‘
M

IN
D

 T
H

E
 G

A
P

’ 
P

L
A

N
 -

  
B

u
ild

in
g
 b

ri
d
g
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
tt
e
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

1
7

 

  
 

2
0

0
7

/2
0

0
8
 –

 2
0

0
8

/2
0

0
9

 
2

0
0
8

/2
0

0
9
 –

 2
0

0
9

/2
0

1
0

 
2

0
0
9

/2
0

1
0
 –

 2
0

1
0

/2
0

1
1

 
P

re
v
a

le
n

c
e

 o
f 

o
b

e
s
it
y
 a

t:
  

 
R

e
c
e

p
ti
o
n

 y
e

a
r 

 
Y

e
a

r 
6

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

4
.1

%
 -

 5
.3

%
 

5
.4

%
 -

 7
.2

%
 

7
.3

%
 -

 8
.1

%
 

8
.2

%
 -

 8
.6

%
 

8
.7

%
 -

 1
1

.5
%

 

S
o
u
rc

e
: 
F

ig
u
re

s
 a

n
d
 m

a
p
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
O

b
e
s
it
y
 O

b
s
e
rv

a
to

ry
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 27



S
E

V
E

N
O

A
K

S
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 ‘
M

IN
D

 T
H

E
 G

A
P

’ 
P

L
A

N
 -

  
B

u
ild

in
g
 b

ri
d
g
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
tt
e
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

1
8

 

T
h
e

 r
e

c
e

s
s
io

n
 i
s
  

2
. 

E
n

a
b

le
 A

ll
 

C
h

il
d

re
n

, 
Y

o
u

n
g

 
P

e
o

p
le

 a
n

d
 A

d
u

lt
s
 t

o
 

M
a
x
im

is
e
 T

h
e

ir
 

C
a
p

a
b

il
it

ie
s
 a

n
d

 
H

a
v
e
 C

o
n

tr
o

l 
o

v
e

r 
T

h
e
ir

 L
iv

e
s

 

C
e
n
tr

a
l 
to

 o
u

r 
v
is

io
n
 i
s
 t

h
e
 f

u
ll 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

p
e

o
p
le

’s
 c

a
p
a
b
ili

ti
e
s
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 s

o
c
ia

l 
g
ra

d
ie

n
t.

 

W
it

h
o

u
t 

li
fe

 s
ki

ll
s 

a
n

d
 

re
a

d
in

es
s 

fo
r 

w
o

rk
, 
a

s 
w

el
l 

a
s 

ed
u

ca
ti

o
n
a

l 
a

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t,

 

yo
u

n
g

 p
eo

p
le

 w
il

l 
n

o
t 

b
e 

a
b

le
 t

o
 f

u
lf

il
 t

h
ei

r 
fu

ll
 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l,
 t

o
 f

lo
u

ri
sh

 a
n

d
 

ta
ke

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 

o
ve

r 
th

ei
r 

li
ve

s 

(M
a

rm
o

t 
re

vi
ew

 2
0

1
0

) 

K
e

y
 P

ri
o

ri
ty

 f
o

r 
S

e
v
e
n

o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t:

 

•
Im

p
ro

v
e
 e

d
u

c
a
ti

o
n

a
l 

a
tt

a
in

m
e
n

t 
p

a
rt

ic
u

la
rl

y
 a

t 
G

C
S

E
 l
e
v
e
l 

•
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 o

ld
e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 t
o

 k
e
e
p

 t
h

e
m

 s
a
fe

, 
in

d
e
p

e
n

d
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 f

u
lf

il
le

d
 l
iv

e
s
 

  
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 28



S
E

V
E

N
O

A
K

S
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 ‘
M

IN
D

 T
H

E
 G

A
P

’ 
P

L
A

N
 -

  
B

u
ild

in
g
 b

ri
d
g
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
tt
e
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

1
9

 

O
b

je
c

ti
v
e
 2

: 
E

n
a
b

le
 a

ll 
c
h

ild
re

n
, 
y
o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 a

n
d

 a
d

u
lt
s
 t
o

 
m

a
x
im

is
e

 t
h

e
ir
 c

a
p

a
b

ili
ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 h
a
v
e

 c
o
n

tr
o

l 
o

v
e

r 
th

e
ir
 l
iv

e
s
 

D
e

li
v
e

ry
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
: 

K
e

n
t 

T
e

e
n

a
g

e
 P

re
g

n
a

n
c
y
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
; 

A
d

u
lt

 S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 T
ra

n
s

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
; 

1
4

-2
4
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
; 

P
ri

m
a

ry
 a

n
d

 S
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 I
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
; 

Y
o

u
th

 J
u

s
ti

c
e

 P
la

n
; 

A
n

ti
-s

o
c

ia
l 

b
e

h
a

v
io

u
r 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
; 

C
Y

P
P

; 
F

a
ll

s
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
; 

A
c

ti
v
e

 L
iv

e
s

 N
o

w
; 

V
a
lu

in
g

 P
e

o
p

le
 N

o
w

 

L
o

c
a

l 
P

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s
:

2
.1

  
Im

p
ro

v
e

 e
d

u
c

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

a
tt

a
in

m
e

n
t 

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 a

t 
G

C
S

E
 l

e
v
e

l 
(H

ig
h

 p
ri

o
ri

ty
 f

o
r 

S
e

v
e

n
o

a
k

s
 D

is
tr

ic
t)

2
.2

  
R

e
d

u
c

e
 t

h
e

 r
is

k
 

ta
k

in
g

 b
e

h
a

v
io

u
rs

 o
f 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 

2
.3

  
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 o

ld
e

r 
p

e
o

p
le

 t
o

 k
e

e
p

 
th

e
m

 s
a

fe
, 
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 
li

v
in

g
 f

u
lf

il
le

d
 l

iv
e

s
 (

H
ig

h
 

p
ri

o
ri

ty
 f

o
r 

S
e

v
e

n
o

a
k

s
 

D
is

tr
ic

t)

A
c

ti
o

n
s

:
2
.1

.1
 E

n
a
b
le

 m
o
re

 y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 t
o
 

h
a
v
e
 t

h
e
ir
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 
re

c
o
g

n
iz

e
d
 

 
2
.2

.1
 D

iv
e
rt

 c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 

y
o
u
n
g

 p
e
o
p
le

 f
ro

m
 c

ri
m

e
 

a
n
d
 a

n
ti
-s

o
c
ia

l 
b
e
h
a
v
io

r 

2
.3

.1
 P

ro
v
id

e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 h

e
a
lt
h
y
 l
if
e
s
ty

le
 

in
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 e

n
a
b
le

 o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 t
o
 r

e
m

a
in

 h
e
a
lt
h
ie

r 
a
n
d
 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
 

2
.1

.2
 B

u
ild

 i
n
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

w
it
h
in

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 f
o
r 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 
y
o
u
n
g

 p
e
o
p
le

 t
o
 e

n
g

a
g

e
 

 
2
.2

.2
 S

p
e
c
ia

lis
t 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

a
lc

o
h
o
l 
a
n
d
 d

ru
g
 m

is
u
s
e
 

2
.3

.2
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
o
rk

in
g
 t

o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 
a
n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 s

e
lf
 h

e
lp

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
  

2
.1

.3
 M

a
n
a
g

e
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 s
c
h
o
o
l 
n
o
n
-

a
tt

e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 

to
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

 
2
.2

.3
 P

ro
m

o
te

 p
e
e
r 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 
in

te
rv

e
n
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

y
o
u
th

 p
e
e
r 

e
d
u
c
a
to

r,
 

S
A

F
E

, 
h
e
a
lt
h
 c

h
a
m

p
io

n
s
 

e
tc

. 

2
.3

.3
 I

n
c
re

a
s
e
 r

e
fe

rr
a
ls

 f
o
r 

h
o
m

e
 

a
d
a
p
ta

ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 f
a
lls

 p
re

v
e
n
ti
o
n
 

p
a
th

w
a
y
s
 t

o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 t

h
e
 r

is
k
 o

f 
fa

lls
 

2
.3

.4
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 a
n
d
 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 p
e
o
p
le

 t
o
 r

e
m

a
in

 i
n
 

th
e
ir
 o

w
n
 h

o
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 l
iv

e
 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
tl
y
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 29



S
E

V
E

N
O

A
K

S
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 ‘
M

IN
D

 T
H

E
 G

A
P

’ 
P

L
A

N
 -

  
B

u
ild

in
g
 b

ri
d
g
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
tt
e
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

2
0

 

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e
 2

 –
 E

n
a
b

le
 a

ll
 c

h
il
d

re
n

, 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
n

d
 a

d
u

lt
s
 t

o
 m

a
x
im

is
e
 t

h
e
ir

 c
a
p

a
b

il
it

ie
s
 a

n
d

 h
a
v
e
 

c
o

n
tr

o
l 

o
v
e
r 

th
e
ir

 l
iv

e
s
 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 2

.1
 I

m
p

ro
v
e

 e
d

u
c

a
ti

o
n

a
l 
a

tt
a

in
m

e
n

t 
p

a
rt

ic
u

la
rl

y
 a

t 
G

C
S

E
 l

e
v
e

l 

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 c
le

a
r 

re
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 l
o
w

 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

a
l 
a
tt

a
in

m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 p

o
o
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 o

v
e
r 

a
 l
if
e
c
o
u
rs

e
. 
F

o
r 

y
o
u
n
g

 p
e
o
p
le

 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
tt

a
in

m
e
n
t 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

s
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
- 

th
e
 a

b
ili

ty
 t

o
 g

e
t 

a
n
d

 k
e
e
p
 a

 j
o
b
 w

h
ic

h
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

s
 b

e
tt

e
r 

m
e
n
ta

l 
w

e
llb

e
in

g
 a

n
d
 h

e
a
lt
h
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 r

e
s
t 
o
f 

th
e
ir
 

liv
e
s
. 
 

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 a
 h

ig
h
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

in
d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 w

it
h
 n

o
 q

u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 D

is
tr

ic
t.
 T

h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
in

d
iv

id
u
a
ls

 w
it
h
 n

o
 q

u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
s
 h

ig
h
e
r 

th
a
n
 f

o
r 

S
o
u
th

 E
a
s
t 

a
s
 a

 w
h
o
le

 b
u
t 

lo
w

e
r 

th
a
n
 G

re
a
t 
B

ri
ta

in
 (

1
1
.1

%
 i
n
 S

e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 
c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 9

.1
%

 i
n
 t
h
e
 S

o
u
th

 E
a
s
t 

a
n
d
 1

2
.3

%
 i
n
 

G
re

a
t 

B
ri
ta

in
).

  
T

h
e
 w

a
rd

s
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 h

ig
h
e
s
t 

le
v
e
l 
o
f 

p
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 n

o
 q

u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 o

r 
q

u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 u

n
k
n
o
w

n
 a

re
 S

w
a
n
le

y
 S

t 
M

a
ry

’s
 (

4
8
.8

%
),

 
S

w
a
n

le
y
 W

h
it
e
 O

a
k
 (

4
4
.6

%
),

 F
a
w

k
h
a
m

 a
n
d
 W

e
s
t 

K
in

g
s
d
o
w

n
 (

4
1
.4

%
),

 E
d
e
n
b
ri
d
g

e
 N

o
rt

h
 a

n
d
 E

a
s
t 
(3

7
.1

%
) 

a
n
d
 S

w
a
n
le

y
 C

h
ri
s
tc

h
u
rc

h
 a

n
d
 

S
w

a
n

le
y
 V

ill
a
g

e
 (

3
6
.9

%
).

  
T

h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

G
C

S
E

 a
tt
a
in

m
e
n
t 
in

 s
ta

te
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 d

is
tr

ic
t 

is
 t
h
e
 w

o
rs

t 
in

 E
n
g

la
n
d
. 

S
e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

s
ta

te
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 h
a
v
e
 t

h
e
 w

o
rs

t 
G

C
S

E
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
tr

y
 w

it
h
 o

n
ly

 3
8
.4

%
 o

f 
p
u
p
ils

 g
e
tt

in
g

 5
 A

*-
C

 G
C

S
E

s
. 
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
l 
re

s
u
lt
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 d

is
tr

ic
t 

v
a
ry

 
c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

b
ly

 f
ro

m
 e

x
c
e
lle

n
t 
to

 v
e
ry

 
p
o
o
r.

  
 

In
 K

e
n
t,
 c

h
ild

re
n
 w

h
o
 t

a
k
e
 f
re

e
 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
m

e
a
ls

 e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 m

a
rk

e
d
 

in
e
q

u
a
lit

y
 i
n
 c

o
m

p
a
ri
s
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
ir
 p

e
e
rs

- 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 l
o
w

e
r 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

t 
G

C
S

E
. 
 T

h
o
s
e
 c

h
ild

re
n
 

a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 5

+
 A

*-
C

 G
C

S
E

s
 a

re
 m

o
re

 
lik

e
ly

 t
o
 e

x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

te
rm

 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 h

a
v
e
 t

h
e
 c

a
p
a
b
ili

ty
 

to
 r

e
tr

a
in

 a
t 
le

a
s
t 
tw

ic
e
 d

u
ri
n
g
 a

 
w

o
rk

in
g
 l
if
e
. 
 T

h
e
 h

ig
h
e
s
t 
u
p
ta

k
e
 o

f 
F

re
e
 S

c
h
o
o
l 
M

e
a
ls

 i
n
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 c

o
m

e
s
 f
ro

m
 s

tu
d
e
n
ts

 w
h
o
 

a
re

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 o
f 

S
w

a
n
le

y
 S

t 
M

a
ry

’s
, 

S
e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 E

a
s
te

rn
 a

n
d
 S

w
a
n

le
y
 

W
h
it
e
 O

a
k
. 

. 
  

Agenda Item 7

Page 30



S
E

V
E

N
O

A
K

S
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 ‘
M

IN
D

 T
H

E
 G

A
P

’ 
P

L
A

N
 -

  
B

u
ild

in
g
 b

ri
d
g
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
tt
e
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

2
1

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 2

.3
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 o

ld
e

r 
p

e
o

p
le

 t
o

 l
iv

e
 i

n
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
tl

y
  

T
h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 o

f 
th

e
 2

0
0
1
 C

e
n
s
u
s
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

d
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 a

 l
im

it
in

g
 l
o
n
g
 t

e
rm

 i
lln

e
s
s
 (

L
L
T

I)
. 

S
e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

h
a
s
 o

n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 l
o
w

e
s
t 

ra
te

s
 o

f 
L
L
T

I 
in

 K
e
n
t.
 A

t 
1
3
.8

%
 S

e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

is
 a

ls
o
 b

e
lo

w
 t

h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l,
 r

e
g

io
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 c

o
u
n
ty

 p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
p
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 L

L
T

I.
 

T
h
e
 t

o
p
 t

h
re

e
 w

a
rd

s
 b

y
 d

is
a
b
ili

ty
 c

la
im

a
n
ts

 a
re

 S
w

a
n

le
y
 S

t 
M

a
ry

’s
 (

1
.8

%
),

 F
a
w

k
h
a
m

 a
n
d
 W

e
s
t 
K

in
g

s
d
o
w

n
 (

1
.4

%
) 

a
n
d
 E

d
e
n
b
ri
d
g

e
 N

o
rt

h
 a

n
d
 

E
a
s
t 
(1

.2
%

).
 

In
 r

u
ra

l 
a
re

a
s
 l
ik

e
 S

e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t,
 e

ld
e
rl
y
 p

e
o

p
le

 c
a
n
 f

e
e
l 
a
lie

n
a
te

d
 d

u
e
 t

o
 v

a
ri
o
u
s
 b

a
rr

ie
rs

 t
o
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 i
n
a
d
e
q

u
a
te

 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 l
in

k
s
. 

T
h
e
 w

a
rd

s
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 h

ig
h
e
s
t 

le
v
e
l 
o
f 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 i
n
 r

e
c
e
ip

t 
o
f 

p
a
rt

 o
f 

P
e
n
s
io

n
 C

re
d
it
 a

re
 S

w
a
n
le

y
 W

h
it
e
 O

a
k
 (

1
9
%

),
 S

w
a
n
le

y
 S

t 
M

a
ry

’s
 (

1
8
%

),
 

S
e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 E

a
s
te

rn
 (

1
3
%

) 
a
n
d
 E

d
e
n
b
ri
d
g

e
 S

o
u
th

 a
n
d
 W

e
s
t 
(1

3
%

).
  
O

ld
e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 m

u
lt
ip

le
 l
o
n
g
 t

e
rm

 c
o
n

d
it
io

n
s
 a

re
 t
h
e
 m

a
in

 d
ri
v
e
r 

o
f 

c
o
s
t 

a
n
d
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 i
n
 t

h
e
 N

H
S

 a
s
 t

h
e
y
 a

c
c
o
u
n
t 
fo

r 
a
ro

u
n
d
 7

0
%

 o
f 

o
v
e
ra

ll 
h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 s
p
e
n
d
. 
T

h
e
y
 a

re
 d

is
p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
a
te

ly
 h

ig
h
e
r 

u
s
e
rs

 o
f 

h
e
a
lt
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 –

 r
e
p
re

s
e
n
ti
n
g
 5

0
%

 o
f 
G

P
 a

p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
ts

, 
6
4
%

 o
f 

o
u
tp

a
ti
e
n
t 

a
tt

e
n
d
a
n
c
e
s
, 
7
0
%

 o
f 

in
p
a
ti
e
n
t 

b
e
d
 d

a
y
s
, 

5
8
%

 o
f 
A

&
E

 a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
s
 

a
n
d
 5

9
%

 o
f 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 n

u
rs

e
 a

p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
ts

. 

F
a

ll
s

 a
n

d
 F

ra
c

tu
re

s
 

F
a
lls

 a
n
d
 f
ra

c
tu

re
s
 a

re
 a

 m
a
jo

r 
c
a
u
s
e
 o

f 
d
is

a
b
ili

ty
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 

le
a
d
in

g
 c

a
u
s
e
 o

f 
m

o
rt

a
lit

y
 d

u
e
 t

o
 i
n
ju

ry
 i
n
 o

ld
e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 a
g

e
d
 

o
v
e
r 

6
5
 i
n
 t

h
e
 U

K
, 
w

it
h
 l
a
rg

e
 i
m

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
lif

e
 

o
f 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 s

u
rv

iv
e
 a

 f
a
ll.

  

H
ip

 f
ra

c
tu

re
 i
s
 t
h
e
 m

o
s
t 
s
e
ri
o
u
s
 i
n
ju

ry
 r

e
la

te
d
 t

o
 f

a
lls

 i
n
 o

ld
e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

, 
a
n
d
 c

a
n
 l
e
a
d
 t
o
 l
o
s
s
 o

f 
m

o
b
ili

ty
 a

n
d
 l
o
s
s
 o

f 
in

d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
, 
fo

rc
in

g
 m

a
n
y
 t

o
 l
e
a
v
e
 t

h
e
ir
 h

o
m

e
s
 a

n
d

 m
o
v
e
 

in
to

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
c
a
re

. 
M

o
rt

a
lit

y
 a

ft
e
r 

h
ip

 f
ra

c
tu

re
 i
s
 h

ig
h
: 

a
ro

u
n
d
 3

0
%

 a
ft

e
r 

o
n
e
 y

e
a
r.

 C
u
rr

e
n
t 
s
p
e
c
ia

lis
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 i
n
 W

e
s
t 

K
e
n
t,
 a

re
 n

o
t 
a
d
e
q

u
a
te

ly
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
d
 

e
n
o
u
g

h
 t

o
 r

is
k
 a

s
s
e
s
s
 a

ll 
fa

lle
rs

 (
e
a
rl
y
 e

n
o
u
g

h
) 

a
n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

o
r 

re
fe

r 
th

e
m

 t
o
 s

u
it
a
b
le

 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

e
x
e
rc

is
e
, 

a
d
a
p
ta

ti
o
n
s
 a

t 
h
o
m

e
 a

n
d
 a

s
s
is

ti
v
e
 t

e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
ie

s
 l
ik

e
 

te
le

c
a
re

. 
 

T
h
e
 l
a
c
k
 o

f 
ti
m

e
ly

 s
p
e
c
ia

lis
t 

ri
s
k
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
re

p
re

s
e
n
ts

 a
n
 

im
p
o
rt

a
n
t 

in
e
q

u
it
y
 i
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 l
e
a
d
in

g
 t
o
 h

e
a
lt
h
 i
n
e
q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 

b
o
th

 g
e
o
g
ra

p
h
ic

a
lly

 a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 b

y
a
g

e
. 
F

o
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

 t
h
e
 

g
ra

p
h
 a

b
o
v
e
 s

u
g
g

e
s
ts

 h
ig

h
e
r 

fa
lls

 a
d
m

is
s
io

n
 r

a
te

s
 i
n
 W

e
s
t 

K
e
n
t 

c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
 E

a
s
t 
K

e
n
t 

b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 l
a
c
k
 o

f 
s
u
it
a
b
le

 s
p
e
c
ia

lis
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 h

o
s
p
it
a
l 
a
n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 t
o
 d

e
a
l 
w

it
h
 a

t 
ri
s
k
 f
a
lle

rs
. 
 

D
ir

e
c

tl
y
 A

g
e

-S
ta

n
d

a
rd

is
e

d
 h

o
s

p
it

a
l 
a
d

m
is

s
io

n
 r

a
te

 p
e
r 

1
0
0

,0
0
0
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 a

g
e

d
 6

5
+

 

b
e
tw

e
e
n

 0
1

/0
4
/2

0
1
0
 a

n
d

 3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

0

5
0
0

1
,0

0
0

1
,5

0
0

2
,0

0
0

2
,5

0
0

3
,0

0
0

3
,5

0
0

Ashford

Canterbury

Dover

Shepway

Swale

Thanet

Eastern & Coastal

Kent

Dartford

Gravesham

Maidstone

Sevenoaks

Tonbridge and

Malling

Tunbridge Wells

West Kent

Kent

A
re

a

Directly Age-Standardised admission rate S
o
u

rc
e

:S
e
c
o
n

d
a

ry
 U

s
e

s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
, 

M
id

-y
e

a
r 

p
o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

s
 (

O
N

S
)

Agenda Item 7

Page 31



S
E

V
E

N
O

A
K

S
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 ‘
M

IN
D

 T
H

E
 G

A
P

’ 
P

L
A

N
 -

  
B

u
ild

in
g
 b

ri
d
g
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
tt
e
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

2
2

 

3
. 
C

re
a

te
 f

a
ir

 
e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
&

 
g

o
o

d
 w

o
rk

 f
o

r 
a

ll
 

T
h
e
 r

e
c
e
s
s
io

n
 i
s
 l
e
a
d
in

g
 t

o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 u

n
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

a
c
ro

s
s
 

K
e
n
t.

 T
h
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 i
s
 a

ls
o
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 

w
it
h
 u

n
d
e
rl

y
in

g
 l
o

w
 

le
v
e
ls

 o
f 

s
tr

e
s
s
 c

o
n
n
e
c
te

d
 t

o
 l
o

w
 p

a
id

 a
n
d
 i
n
s
e
c
u
re

 w
o
rk

 i
n
 p

o
o

r 
c
o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
n
g
 t

o
 p

o
o
re

r 
h
e
a
lt
h
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
. 

K
e

y
 P

ri
o

ri
ty

 f
o

r 
S

e
v
e
n

o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t:

 

•
In

c
re

a
s
e
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 (
1
6
-1

8
) 

&
 (

1
8
-2

4
) 

in
 f

u
ll
ti

m
e
 

e
d

u
c
a
ti

o
n

, 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
o

r 
tr

a
in

in
g

 

W
o

rk
 i

s 
g

o
o

d
 –

 a
n

d
 

u
n

em
p

lo
ym

en
t 

b
a

d
 –

 f
o

r 

p
h

ys
ic

a
l 

a
n

d
 m

en
ta

l 
h

ea
lt

h
. 

W
o

rk
 c

a
n

n
o

t 
p

ro
vi

d
e 

a
 

su
st

a
in

a
b

le
 r

o
u

te
 o

u
t 

o
f 

p
o

ve
rt

y 
if

 j
o

b
 s

ec
u

ri
ty

, 
lo

w
 

p
a

y 
a

n
d

 l
a

ck
 o

f 
p

ro
g

re
ss

io
n

 

a
re

 n
o

t 
a

ls
o

 a
d
d

re
ss

ed
 

(M
a

rm
o

t 
re

vi
ew

 2
0

1
0

) 

Agenda Item 7

Page 32



S
E

V
E

N
O

A
K

S
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 ‘
M

IN
D

 T
H

E
 G

A
P

’ 
P

L
A

N
 -

  
B

u
ild

in
g
 b

ri
d
g
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
tt
e
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

2
3

 

O
b

je
c

ti
v
e
 3

: 
C

re
a

te
 f
a

ir
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
&

 g
o

o
d

 w
o

rk
 f
o

r 
a

ll

D
e

li
v
e

ry
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
: 

E
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
; 

B
a

c
k

in
g

 K
e

n
t 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s

e
s
; 

1
4

-2
4

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
; 

E
m

p
lo

y
a

b
il

it
y
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
  

L
o

c
a

l 
P

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s
:

3
.1

 
Im

p
ro

v
e

 c
h

a
n

c
e

s
 o

f 
e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
p

e
o

p
le

 
fa

c
in

g
 d

is
a

d
v
a

n
ta

g
e

 

3
.2

 
In

c
re

a
s

e
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 (
1

6
-1

8
) 

&
 1

8
-

2
4

) 
in

 f
u

ll
ti

m
e
 e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
, 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
o

r 
tr

a
in

in
g

 
(H

ig
h

 p
ri

o
ri

ty
 f

o
r 

S
e

v
e

n
o

a
k

s
 D

is
tr

ic
t)

3
.3

 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 b

u
s

in
e

s
s
e

s
 t

o
 h

a
v
e

 
h

e
a

lt
h

y
 w

o
rk

p
la

c
e

s
 

A
c

ti
o

n
s

:
3
.1

.1
 
Im

p
ro

v
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f
o
r 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 
d
is

a
d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
d
, 
v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 
g

ro
u
p
s
 a

n
d
 p

e
o
p
le

 o
n
 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 

 
3
.2

.1
 
S

u
p
p
o
rt

 1
6
-1

8
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
 i
n
to

 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 t
ra

in
in

g
 

3
.3

.1
 
S

u
p
p
o
rt

 e
m

p
lo

y
e
rs

 o
 c

re
a
te

 
h
e
a
lt
h
y
 w

o
rk

 p
la

c
e
s
 a

n
d
 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

s
ta

ff
 

3
.1

.2
 
S

u
p
p
o
rt

 l
o
c
a
l 
 c

h
a
ri
ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 g

ro
u
p
s
 t

o
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 a
d
u
lt
s
 w

it
h
 

d
is

a
b
ili

ti
e
s
 i
n
to

 w
o
rk

 a
n
d
 

tr
a
in

in
g
 

 
3
.2

.2
 
In

c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
e
o
p
le

 
a
c
c
e
s
s
in

g
 a

p
p
re

n
ti
c
e
s
h
ip

 a
n
d
 

g
ra

d
u
a
te

 o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 

3
.3

.2
 
P

la
c
e
 d

e
fi
b
ri
lla

to
rs

 a
s
 A

E
D

 i
n
 

w
o
rk

p
la

c
e
s
 o

r 
a
s
 p

u
b
lic

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 

d
e
fi
b
ri
lla

to
rs

 (
P

A
D

) 
in

 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s

Agenda Item 7

Page 33



S
E

V
E

N
O

A
K

S
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 ‘
M

IN
D

 T
H

E
 G

A
P

’ 
P

L
A

N
 -

  
B

u
ild

in
g
 b

ri
d
g
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
tt
e
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

2
4

 

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e
 3

: 
C

re
a
te

 f
a
ir

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
&

 g
o

o
d

 w
o

rk
 f

o
r 

a
ll
 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 3

.2
 I

n
c

re
a

s
e
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 (
1

6
-1

8
) 

&
 1

8
-2

4
) 

in
 f

u
ll

ti
m

e
 e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
, 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
o

r 
tr

a
in

in
g

 

J
u
s
t 

u
n
d
e
r 

3
2
%

 o
f 

S
e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 p

u
p
ils

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 i
n
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 t

h
e
 l
o
w

e
s
t 

fi
g

u
re

 i
n
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

. 
 T

h
is

 f
ig

u
re

 i
s
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 w

o
rs

e
 t
h
a
n
 a

n
y
 o

th
e
r 

d
is

tr
ic

t 
a
n
d
 

s
o
m

e
 w

a
y
 b

e
lo

w
 t

h
e
 K

e
n
t 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
. 
 H

o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
a
t’
s
 n

o
t 
to

 s
a
y
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
y
 s

im
p
ly

 
ju

s
t 
le

a
v
e
 s

c
h
o
o
l.
  
T

h
e
s
e
 f

ig
u
re

s
 d

o
 n

o
t 
re

p
re

s
e
n
t 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

s
tu

d
e
n
ts

 w
h
o
 

le
a
v
e
 t

h
e
 d

is
tr

ic
t 
to

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

h
e
ir
 P

o
s
t 
1
6
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
. 
 T

h
is

 c
a
n
 b

e
 s

e
e
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

fi
g

u
re

s
 w

h
e
re

 4
3
%

 o
f 
s
tu

d
e
n
ts

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
h
e
ir
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 c

o
lle

g
e
s
. 
 G

iv
e
n
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
re

 a
re

 n
o
 c

o
lle

g
e
s
 i
n
 S

e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 m

e
a
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
m

a
n
y
 t

ra
v
e
l 
a
c
ro

s
s
 d

is
tr

ic
t 

b
o
u
n
d
a
ri
e
s
 t

o
 a

tt
e
n
d
 t

h
e
m

. 
 T

h
e
re

 a
re

 c
o
lle

g
e
 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 i
n
 n

e
a
rb

y
 T

o
n
b
ri
d
g
e
 f

o
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

 w
h
e
re

 m
a
n
y
 s

tu
d
e
n
ts

 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 d

is
tr

ic
t 

c
h
o
o
s
e
 t

o
 a

tt
e
n
d
. 
 T

h
is

 f
ig

u
re

 
m

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 a

n
y
th

in
g
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ts

 t
h
e
 l
a
c
k
 o

f 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

a
l 
fa

c
ili

ti
e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 d

is
tr

ic
t 

a
n
d
 

d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ri
ly

 r
e
p
re

s
e
n
t 
th

e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
e
x
is

ti
n
g

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 i
n
 S

e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
. 
 

T
h
e
 d

is
tr

ic
t 

h
a
s
 j
u
s
t 
6
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 a
n
d
 s

p
e
c
ia

lis
t 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ra

b
ly

 
lo

w
e
r 

th
a
n
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
s
 l
ik

e
 M

a
id

s
to

n
e
 w

it
h
 1

4
 a

n
d
 C

a
n
te

rb
u
ry

 w
it
h
 1

3
. 

S
o
u
rc

e
: 

D
fE

 E
d
u
b
a
s
e
  
 

S
e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 h

a
s
 t

h
e
 h

ig
h
e
s
t 

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 N
E

E
T

S
 (

n
o
t 
in

 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

o
r 

tr
a
in

in
g

) 
in

 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
ty

 a
t 

9
.7

%
. 
 T

h
is

 i
s
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 h

ig
h
e
r 

th
a
n
 t

h
e
 K

e
n
t 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 a

n
d
 l
a
rg

e
 a

n
d
 w

a
y
 a

b
o
v
e
 a

n
y
 o

th
e
r 

d
is

tr
ic

t.
  
T

h
e
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 h

ig
h
e
s
t 
a
re

a
, 
S

h
e
p
w

a
y
 

re
c
o
rd

e
d
 f

ig
u
re

s
 o

f 
o
n
ly

 4
.2

%
. 
 A

lt
h
o
u
g

h
 t
h
e
 a

c
tu

a
l 
fi
g

u
re

s
 a

re
 s

im
ila

r 
it
 i
s
 t
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 

w
it
h
in

 S
e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 t
h
a
t 
m

a
k
e
s
 t

h
e
 d

is
tr

ic
t 
s
ta

n
d
 o

u
t.
  
T

h
is

 c
a
n
 b

e
 r

e
la

te
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 r

e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 p
o
o
r 

G
C

S
E

 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 t
h
a
t 
s
o
m

e
 p

u
p
ils

 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 d

is
tr

ic
t 
g

a
in

 w
h
o
 a

re
 e

it
h
e
r 

u
n
d
e
r 

q
u
a
lif

ie
d
 o

r 
d
is

c
o
u
ra

g
e
d
 f
ro

m
 e

n
te

ri
n
g
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
jo

b
s
 o

r 
tr

a
in

in
g
. 
  
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 34



S
E

V
E

N
O

A
K

S
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 ‘
M

IN
D

 T
H

E
 G

A
P

’ 
P

L
A

N
 -

  
B

u
ild

in
g
 b

ri
d
g
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
tt
e
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

2
5

 

4
: 

E
n

s
u

re
 

h
e
a

lt
h

y
 

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

 o
f 

li
v

in
g

 f
o

r 
a

ll
  

H
a

vi
n

g
 i

n
su

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
m

o
n

ey
 

to
 l

ea
d

 a
 h

ea
lt

h
y 

li
fe

 i
s 

a
 

h
ig

h
ly

 s
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

ca
u

se
 o

f 

h
ea

lt
h

 i
n

eq
u

a
li

ti
es

(M
a

rm
o

t 
R

e
v
ie

w
 2

0
1

0
)

K
e

y
 P

ri
o

ri
ty

 f
o

r 
S

e
v
e
n

o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t:

•
M

e
e
t 

th
e
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 n

e
e

d
s
 o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

 l
iv

in
g

 i
n

 t
h

e
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

in
c
lu

d
e
 a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 a
n

d
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a
te

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 

It
 i

s
 v

it
a
l 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 t

h
e
 r

ig
h
t 

s
u
p

p
o
rt

 t
o
 t

h
e
 r

ig
h
t 

p
e
o
p
le

 a
t 

th
e

 
ri
g
h
t 

w
a

y
. 

 P
o

o
r 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 o

f 
liv

in
g
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
o
 i

ll 
h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 m

e
n
ta

l 
w

e
llb

e
in

g
. 

Agenda Item 7

Page 35



S
E

V
E

N
O

A
K

S
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 ‘
M

IN
D

 T
H

E
 G

A
P

’ 
P

L
A

N
 -

  
B

u
ild

in
g
 b

ri
d
g
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
tt
e
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

2
6

 

O
b

je
c

ti
v
e
 4

: 
E

n
s
u

re
 h

e
a

lt
h
y
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
 o

f 
liv

in
g

 f
o

r 
a
ll 

 

D
e

li
v
e

ry
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
: 

B
a

c
k

in
g

 K
e

n
t 

P
e

o
p

le
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
; 

S
e

v
e

n
o

a
k
s

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 P

la
n

; 
C

Y
P

P
 K

e
n

t’
s

 P
o

v
e

rt
y
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 

E
c

o
n

o
m

ic
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
; 

B
a

c
k

in
g

 K
e

n
t 

B
u

s
in

e
s

s
e

s
; 

1
4

-2
4

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
; 

E
m

p
lo

y
a

b
il

it
y
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
  

L
o

c
a

l 
P

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s
:

4
.1

 
P

ro
v
id

e
 t

h
e

 r
ig

h
t 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
t 

th
e

 r
ig

h
t 

ti
m

e
 

in
c

lu
d

in
g

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
c

a
p

a
c
it

y
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 
in

c
lu

s
io

n
 

4
.2

 
P

ro
m

o
te

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s

 t
o

 
s

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

a
m

il
ie

s
 i

n
 p

o
v
e

rt
y
 

4
.3

 M
e
e

t 
th

e
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 n

e
e

d
s

 o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 l

iv
in

g
 i

n
 t

h
e

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
in

c
lu

d
e

 a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 a

n
d

 
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 (

H
ig

h
 

p
ri

o
ri

ty
 f

o
r 

S
e

v
e

n
o

a
k

s
 D

is
tr

ic
t)

A
c

ti
o

n
s

:
 

4
.1

.1
 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 p

e
o

p
le

 i
n

 
a

c
c
e

s
s
in

g
 b

e
n

e
fi
ts

 a
n
d
 i
n

 
th

e
 t

ra
n

s
it
io

n
 t

o
 u

n
iv

e
rs

a
l 

c
re

d
it
 

4
.2

.1
 
M

e
e

t 
th

e
 n

e
e
d

s
 o

f 
v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 a

n
d

 l
o

w
e

r 
in

c
o

m
e

 h
o

u
s
e
h

o
ld

s
. 

 
4

.3
.1

 C
a

rr
y
 o

u
t 

a
n
 O

ld
e

r 
P

e
rs

o
n

s
 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 N

e
e

d
s
 A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t 

to
 b

e
tt

e
r 

u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

 t
h
e

 n
e
e

d
s
 

o
f 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 

 
4

.1
.2

 
P

ro
v
id

e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 
a

d
v
ic

e
 f

o
r 

fa
m

ili
e

s
 

re
g
a

rd
in

g
 b

e
n

e
fi
ts

 a
n
d

 
e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t.
 

4
.2

.2
 
P

ro
v
id

e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
, 

a
d

v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 t
o

 
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 a

b
o

u
t 
d

e
b

t 
m

a
n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
a

w
a

re
n

e
s
s
 

 
4

.3
.2

  
P

ro
v
id

e
 a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 h
o
u

s
in

g
 t

o
 

m
e

e
t 

id
e
n

ti
fi
e
d

 n
e

e
d

s
 o

f 
v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 g

ro
u

p
s
 

 
4

.1
.3

 
In

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 a

s
s
is

t 
o

ld
e

r 
p
e

o
p

le
 t

o
 d

o
w

n
-

s
iz

e
 t

o
 m

o
re

 a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 

a
n

d
 s

u
it
a

b
le

 
a

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
 

 
4

.3
.3

 W
o

rk
 w

it
h

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
rs

, 
la

n
d

lo
rd

s
 a

n
d

 o
w

n
e

r-
o

c
c
u

p
ie

rs
 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 

s
u

it
a

b
le

 f
o

r 
a

ll 
d

e
m

o
g
ra

p
h

ic
s
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 36



S
E

V
E

N
O

A
K

S
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 ‘
M

IN
D

 T
H

E
 G

A
P

’ 
P

L
A

N
 -

  
B

u
ild

in
g
 b

ri
d
g
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
tt
e
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

2
7

 

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e
 4

: 
E

n
s
u

re
 h

e
a
lt

h
y
 s

ta
n

d
a
rd

 o
f 

li
v
in

g
 f

o
r 

a
ll
  

T
h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 h

o
u
s
e
 p

ri
c
e
 i
n
 S

e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 i
s
 n

o
w

 3
8
3
,0

0
0

 (
J
a
n
- 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
3
).

  
A

 r
is

e
 o

f 
£
1
5
,0

0
0
 o

n
 2

0
0
7
 h

o
u
s
e
 p

ri
c
e
s
. 
 A

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 s

h
o
rt

a
g

e
 o

f 
a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 h

a
s
 p

ro
b
le

m
s
 

fo
r 

jo
b
 r

e
te

n
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 l
e
a
d
s
 t

o
 a

 s
h
o
rt

a
g

e
 o

f 
a
p
p
lic

a
n
ts

 f
o
r 

lo
w

 p
a
id

 j
o
b
s
 b

e
c
a
u
s
e
 t

h
e
 

d
is

tr
ic

t 
is

 u
n
a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

. 
 S

te
p
s
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 a

v
o
id

 S
e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 b

e
c
o
m

in
g
 a

 ‘
g

a
te

d
’ 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 f

o
r 

th
e
 w

e
a
lt
h
y
. 

T
h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 F

e
d
e
ra

ti
o
n
 s

a
y
s
 t
h
a
t 
in

 t
h
e
 l
a

s
t 
te

n
 y

e
a
rs

, 
a
v
e
ra

g
e
 h

o
u
s
e
 p

ri
c
e
s
 

h
a
v
e
 r

is
e
n
 f
ro

m
 £

1
2
6
,0

0
0
 t

o
 £

2
2
9
,0

0
0
. 
T

h
e
s
e
 a

re
 e

v
e

n
 h

ig
h
e
r 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 p

ri
c
e
s
 t

h
a
n
 i
n
 o

u
r 

to
w

n
s
 a

n
d
 c

it
ie

s
 –

 b
u
t 
w

a
g

e
s
 i
n
 r

u
ra

l 
a
re

a
s
 a

re
 o

n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 l
o
w

e
r 

th
a
n
 i
n
 u

rb
a
n
 c

e
n
te

rs
. 

S
o
 t

h
e
 o

n
ly

 o
n
e
s
 w

h
o
 c

a
n
 a

ff
o
rd

 t
o
 l
iv

e
 i
n
 v

ill
a
g

e
s
 a

re
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 h

a
v
e
 h

o
m

e
s
 p

a
s
s
e
d
 

d
o
w

n
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t
h
e
ir
 f
a
m

ily
 o

r 
o
ld

e
r,

 w
e
a
lt
h
y
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 c

a
n
 a

ff
o
rd

 t
o
 m

o
v
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

c
o
u
n
tr

y
s
id

e
 t

o
 r

e
ti
re

 –
 o

r 
e
v
e
n
 t

o
 b

u
y
 a

 s
e
c
o
n
d
 h

o
m

e
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
y
 o

n
ly

 l
iv

e
 i
n
 s

o
m

e
ti
m

e
s
. 
It
’s

 
p
re

tt
y
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
 f
o
r 

th
o
s
e
 u

n
d
e
r 

4
0
 t

o
 b

u
y
 a

 h
o
m

e
 i
n
 o

u
r 

c
it
ie

s
. 
It
’s

 e
v
e
n
 h

a
rd

e
r,

 i
n
d
e
e
d
 

a
lm

o
s
t 
im

p
o
s
s
ib

le
, 
in

 o
u
r 

v
ill

a
g

e
s
 a

n
d
 m

a
rk

e
t 
to

w
n
s
. 
 

N
o
t 

o
n
ly

 d
o
e
s
 a

ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 h

e
lp

 l
o
c
a
l 
p
e
o
p
le

 t
o
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 l
iv

e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 s

a
m

e
 a

re
a
 a

s
 

th
e
ir
 f
ri
e
n
d
s
 a

n
d
 f
a
m

ily
, 

it
 a

ls
o
 m

a
in

ta
in

s
 t
h
e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 v

ia
b
ili

ty
 o

f 
ru

ra
l 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 b

y
 

e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 d

e
m

a
n
d
 f

o
r 

k
e
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 s

h
o
p
s
, 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

, 
p
o
s
t 

o
ff

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 

p
u
b
s
. 

J
u
s
t 
a
 s

m
a
ll 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

n
e
w

 a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
m

e
s
 c

a
n
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 
th

e
 w

h
o
le

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
. 

 
T

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

o
v
e
r-

6
5
s
 i
n
 r

u
ra

l 
a
re

a
s
 h

a
s
 r

is
e
n
 6

1
%

 f
a
s
te

r 
th

a
n
 i
n
 t

o
w

n
s
 a

n
d
 c

it
ie

s
 (

1
8
%

 
ri
s
e
 i
n
 r

u
ra

l 
a
re

a
s
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 1

1
%

 r
is

e
 i
n
 t
o
w

n
s
 a

n
d
 c

it
ie

s
).

 

T
h
e
 r

e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 l
o

w
 l
e

v
e
l 
o
f 

p
ro

je
c
te

d
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 g

ro
w

th
. 
 S

o
m

e
 3

,3
0
0
 

h
o
m

e
s
 a

re
 d

u
e
 t
o
 b

e
 b

u
ilt

 i
n
 t
h
e
 d

is
tr

ic
t 
b
e
tw

e
e
n
 2

0
0
6
 a

n
d
 2

0
2
6
. 
 

T
h
is

 i
s
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
 A

s
h
fo

rd
 w

h
e
re

 o
v
e
r 

2
2
,0

0
0
 h

o
m

e
s
 a

re
 

e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 t

o
 b

e
 b

u
ilt

 i
n
 t

h
e
 s

a
m

e
 p

e
ri
o
d
. 
 H

o
u
s
e
 p

ri
c
e
s
 a

re
 s

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 m

o
s
t 
e
x
p
e
n
s
iv

e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
tr

y
 a

n
d
 a

re
 u

n
a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 t
o
 m

a
n
y
 

fi
rs

t 
ti
m

e
 b

u
y
e
rs

. 
 9

3
%

 o
f 

th
e
 d

is
tr

ic
t 

is
 d

e
s
ig

n
a
te

d
 g

re
e
n
 b

e
lt
 w

h
ic

h
 

re
s
tr

ic
ts

 m
a
n
y
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
. 
 G

re
e
n
b
e
lt
 r

e
s
tr

ic
ti
o
n
s
 

o
n
 l
a
n
d
 t

h
a
t 

is
 a

b
le

 t
o
 b

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 c

o
m

b
in

e
d
 w

it
h
 u

n
a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 s

to
c
k
 m

a
k
e
 S

e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 i
n
 n

e
e
d
 o

f 
a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
u
s
in

g
. 

A
t 

th
e
 s

a
m

e
 t
im

e
 t

h
e
 a

m
o
u
n
t 

o
f 

p
e
o
p
le

 a
g

e
d
 2

5
-4

4
 i
s
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 

d
e
c
re

a
s
e
 b

y
 1

2
.1

%
. 
 T

h
is

 m
a
y
 b

e
 d

u
e
 t
o
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 f

a
c
to

rs
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 

u
n
a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
u
s
in

g
. 
 T

h
e
 y

o
u
th

 h
o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 c

h
a
ri

ty
 

C
e
n
tr

e
p
o
in

t 
s
a
y
s
 n

e
a
rl
y
 a

 m
ill

io
n
 a

ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
m

e
s
 a

re
 n

e
e
d
e
d
 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
lly

 b
y
 2

0
2
1
 t

o
 a

v
o
id

 a
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 c

ri
s
is

. 
 A

c
u
te

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 c

ri
s
is

 
c
o
m

b
in

e
d
 w

it
h
 t

o
u
g

h
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 f

o
r 

h
o
u
s
e
 b

u
ild

e
rs

, 
fi
rs

t 
ti
m

e
 b

u
y
e
rs

 a
n
d
 r

is
in

g
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 m

a
k
e
s
 e

v
e
ry

th
in

g
 w

o
rs

e
. 

Agenda Item 7

Page 37



S
E

V
E

N
O

A
K

S
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 ‘
M

IN
D

 T
H

E
 G

A
P

’ 
P

L
A

N
 -

  
B

u
ild

in
g
 b

ri
d
g
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
tt
e
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

2
8

 

O
b

je
c

ti
v
e

 5
: 

C
re

a
te

 a
n

d
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

 H
e
a

lt
h
y
 a

n
d

 S
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 P
la

c
e

s
 &

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s

‘D
re

a
m

 w
it

h
 m

e 
o

f 
a

 f
a

ir
er

 

w
o

rl
d

, 
b

u
t 

le
t 

u
s 

ta
ke

 t
h

e 

p
ra

g
m

a
ti

c 
st

ep
s 

n
ec

es
sa

ry
 

to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 i

t’
 

S
ir
 M

ic
h
a
e
l 
M

a
rm

o
t 
O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
1

K
e

y
 P

ri
o

ri
ty

 i
n

S
e
v
e
n

o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t:

 

•
S

u
s
ta

in
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 s
a
fe

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s

P
ro

m
o
ti
n
g
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
 i
s
 a

t 
th

e
 h

e
a
rt

 o
f 

w
h
a
t 

lo
c
a
l 
g

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

is
 a

b
o
u
t:

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 a

 b
e
tt

e
r 

lif
e
 f

o
r 

it
s
 c

it
iz

e
n
s
 a

n
d
 h

e
lp

in
g
 t

o
 

b
u
ild

 r
e
s
ili

e
n
t 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 

n
o
w

 a
n
d
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 l
o
n

g
e

r 
te

rm
 

5
.
C

re
a

te
 a

n
d

 
D

e
v

e
lo

p
 H

e
a

lt
h

y
 

a
n

d
 S

u
s

ta
in

a
b

le
 

P
la

c
e

s
 &

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s

Agenda Item 7

Page 38



S
E

V
E

N
O

A
K

S
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 ‘
M

IN
D

 T
H

E
 G

A
P

’ 
P

L
A

N
 -

  
B

u
ild

in
g
 b

ri
d
g
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
tt
e
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

2
9

 

O
b

je
c

ti
v

e
 5

: 
C

re
a

te
 a

n
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 h
e

a
lt
h

y
 a

n
d

 s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 p
la

c
e

s
 

a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
  

D
e

li
v
e

ry
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
: 

F
in

d
 w

a
y
s

 t
o

 i
n

te
g

ra
te

 p
la

n
n

in
g

, 
tr

a
n

s
p

o
rt

, 
h

o
u

s
in

g
, 

e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
a

n
d

 h
e

a
lt

h
 p

o
li

c
ie

s
 t

o
 a

d
d

re
s
s

 t
h

e
 

s
o

c
ia

l 
d

e
te

rm
in

a
n

ts
 o

f 
h

e
a

lt
h

 i
n

 e
a

c
h

 l
o

c
a
li

ty
. 

D
e

li
v
e

ry
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 K

e
n

t 
h

o
u

s
in

g
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
, 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 p
e

o
p

le
, 

 R
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti

o
n

 
s

tr
a

te
g

y
; 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 S

tr
a

te
g

ie
s
; 

K
e

e
p

 W
a

rm
 K

e
e

p
 W

e
ll

 a
n

d
 W

a
rm

 H
o

m
e

s
 H

e
a

lt
h

y
 p

e
o

p
le

  

L
o

c
a

l 
P

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s
:

5
.1

 R
e

d
u

c
e

 
h

o
m

e
le

s
s

n
e

s
s

 a
n

d
 

is
 n

e
g

a
ti

v
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

fo
r 

h
o

s
e

 l
iv

in
g

 i
n

 
te

m
p

o
ra

ry
 

a
c

c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti

o
n

 

5
.2

  
D

e
v
e

lo
p

 o
u

r 
c

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s

 t
o

 
b

e
 h

e
a

lt
h

y
 p

la
c

e
s

5
.3

 S
u

s
ta

in
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 
s

a
fe

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 

(H
ig

h
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 f
o

r 
S

e
v
e

n
o

a
k

s
 D

is
tr

ic
t)

5
.4

 R
e

d
u

c
e

 F
u

e
l 

P
o

v
e

rt
y
 b

y
 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

w
a
rm

 h
o

m
e
s
 

A
c

ti
o

n
s

:
5
.1

.1
 

In
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

y
o
u
n
g

 p
e
o
p
le

 
e
s
p
e
c
ia

lly
 a

ro
u
n
d
 

m
e
n
to

ri
n
g
 o

n
 

b
u
d
g

e
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 

 
5
.2

.1
 

M
a

in
ta

in
 

c
le

a
n
lin

e
s
s
 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 

s
e
e
k
 t

o
 r

e
m

o
v
e
 

in
c
id

e
n
ts

 o
f 
fl
y
 

ti
p
p
in

g
 a

s
 s

o
o
n
 a

s
 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 

5
.3

.1
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
 w

it
h
 a

n
d
 

in
v
o

lv
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 i
n
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 s

a
fe

ty
 

a
n
d
 c

ri
m

e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

a
ff

e
c
t 
th

e
m

 

5
.4

.1
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 
g

ro
u
p
s
 w

h
o
 f

in
d
 i
t 

d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 t
o
 h

e
a
t 
th

e
ir
 

h
o
m

e
s
  

5
.1

.2
 

T
ra

in
in

g
 f
o
r 

fr
o
n
t 

lin
e
 w

o
rk

e
rs

 o
n
 t
h
e
 

w
e

lf
a
re

 c
h
a
n
g

e
 

 
5
.2

.2
 

W
o
rk

 w
it
h
 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 o
n
 t
h
e
 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 o
f 
h
e
a
lt
h
y
 

p
la

c
e
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

p
a
rk

s
, 
a
n
d
 o

p
e
n
 

s
p
a
c
e
s
 

5
.3

.2
 

W
o
rk

in
g

 w
it
h
 F

ir
e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 

to
 t
a
rg

e
t 
m

o
s
t 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 

5
.4

.2
 

E
n
s
u
re

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

d
h
e
re

 
to

 a
ll 

g
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

le
g

is
la

ti
o
n
s
. 

Agenda Item 7

Page 39



S
E

V
E

N
O

A
K

S
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 ‘
M

IN
D

 T
H

E
 G

A
P

’ 
P

L
A

N
 -

  
B

u
ild

in
g
 b

ri
d
g
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
tt
e
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

3
0

 

N
o

. 
o

f 
R

o
a
d

 T
ra

ff
ic

 A
c
c

id
e
n

t 
C

a
s
u

a
lt

ie
s
 2

0
1

1
-2

0
1

2

S
o
u
rc

e
: 
J
a
c
o
b
s
 

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e
 5

: 
C

re
a
te

 a
n

d
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
 H

e
a
lt

h
y
 a

n
d

 S
u

s
ta

in
a
b

le
 P

la
c
e
s
 &

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 

P
ro

m
o
ti
n
g
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
 i
s
 a

t 
th

e
 h

e
a
rt

 o
f 

w
h
a
t 

lo
c
a
l 
g

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

is
 a

b
o
u
t:
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g

 a
 b

e
tt
e
r 

lif
e
 f
o
r 

it
s
 c

it
iz

e
n
s
 a

n
d
 h

e
lp

in
g
 t

o
 b

u
ild

 r
e
s
ili

e
n
t 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 
n
o
w

 a
n
d
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 l
o
n
g

e
r 

te
rm

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 5

.3
 S

u
s

ta
in

 a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 s

a
fe

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
  

T
h
ro

u
g

h
o
u
t 
S

e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 t
h
e
re

 a
re

 m
a
jo

r 
tr

u
n
k
 r

o
a
d
s
 i
.e

. 
M

2
5
/A

2
1
 w

h
ic

h
 f

a
c
ili

ta
te

 t
h
e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 

tr
a
ff

ic
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t
h
e
 D

is
tr

ic
t.
 A

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 f

ig
u
re

s
 f
o
r 

R
o
a
d
 T

ra
ff

ic
 A

c
c
id

e
n
ts

 (
R

T
A

s
) 

fl
u
c
tu

a
te

 d
e
p
e
n
d
in

g
 o

n
 t
h
e
 a

re
a
 t
h
a
t 
is

 
b
e
in

g
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
. 
 

R
o
a
d
 S

a
fe

ty
:

In
ju

ry
 i
s
 n

o
t 

o
n
ly

 m
o
s
t 

o
ft

e
n
 t

h
e
 c

a
u
s
e
 o

f 

c
h
ild

 d
e
a
th

 i
n
 t
h
e
 U

K
. 
 C

a
s
u
a
lt
y
 r

a
te

s
 f

o
r 

c
h
ild

 
p
e
d
e
s
tr

ia
n
s
 a

re
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 t

o
 b

e
 f

iv
e
 t
im

e
s
 h

ig
h
e
r 

in
 t

h
e
 

m
o
s
t 
a
ff

lu
e
n
t 
th

a
n
 l
e
a
s
t 
a
ff

lu
e
n
t 
w

a
rd

s
 (

S
o
c
ia

l 
E

x
c
lu

s
io

n
 U

n
it
 2

0
0
3
).

  
 

R
o
a
d
s
 u

n
d
e
r 

th
e
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

K
C

C
 h

a
v
e
 s

e
e
n
 a

 
2
.3

%
 d

e
c
re

a
s
e
 (

4
9
3
 i
n
c
id

e
n
ts

) 
in

 t
h
e
 t
o
ta

l 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
a
s
u
a
lt
ie

s
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 p

a
s
t 
th

re
e
 y

e
a
rs

 (
2
0
0
9
-2

0
1
2
).

  
H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 w
h
e
n
 f

ig
u
re

s
 f
o
r 

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 A

g
e
n
c
y
 r

o
a
d
s
 a

re
 

in
c
lu

d
e
d
 t

h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 s

e
e
 a

n
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
in

c
re

a
s
e
 o

f 
4
%

a
c
ro

s
s
 S

e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t.
  
 

S
e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

w
a
rd

s
 l
o
c
a
te

d
 c

lo
s
e
 t
o
 m

o
to

rw
a

y
 

ju
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 h

a
v
e
 s

e
e
n
 h

ig
h
e
r 

th
a
n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

a
c
c
id

e
n
ts

 (
a
s
 s

h
o
w

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 d

ia
g
ra

m
).

  
B

ra
s
te

d
, 

C
h
e
v
e
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 S

u
n
d
ri
d
g
e
 h

a
d
 t
h
e
 h

ig
h
e
s
t 

c
o
u
n
t 
o
f 

R
T

A
 c

a
s
u
a
lt
ie

s
 i
n
 S

e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 w

it
h
 a

 f
ig

u
re

 o
f 

7
8
 a

n
d
 

ra
n
k
s
 1

1
th

 h
ig

h
e
s
t 

o
f 

a
ll 

w
a
rd

s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 K

C
C

 a
re

a
. 
F

ro
m

 
th

e
 a

b
o
v
e
 c

h
a
rt

 i
t’
s
 c

le
a
r 

to
 s

e
e
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 w

a
rd

s
 d

is
p
la

y
in

g
 a

 h
ig

h
e
r 

th
a
n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 c

a
s
u
a
lt
y
 r

a
te

 a
re

 t
h

o
s
e
 w

it
h
in

 c
lo

s
e
 p

ro
x
im

it
y
 t

o
 t
h
e
 j
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 M

2
5
 (

B
ra

s
te

d
, 
C

h
e
v
e
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 S

u
n
d
ri
d
g

e
) 

a
n
d
 M

2
0
 (

F
a
rn

in
g

h
a
m

, 
H

o
rt

o
n
 K

ir
b
y
 a

n
d
 S

o
u
th

 D
a
re

n
th

).
  
S

p
e
e
d
in

g
 a

n
d
 p

e
rc

e
p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
p
e
e
d
 i
s
 a

 
h
ig

h
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

 f
o
r 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 D

is
tr

ic
t 
a
n
d
 h

a
s
 f

e
a
tu

re
d
 i
n
 a

ll 
P

A
C

T
 P

a
n
e
l’s

 a
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
s
. 
 S

p
e

e
d
 W

a
tc

h
 t
ra

in
in

g
 h

a
s
 w

o
rk

e
d
 w

e
ll 

in
 t

h
e
 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
w

it
h
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 b
e
in

g
 t
ra

in
e
d
 b

y
 K

e
n
t 

P
o
lic

e
 t

o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 s

p
e
e
d
 o

f 
v
e
h
ic

le
s
 p

a
s
s
in

g
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e
ir
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
. 

F
ir
e
 S

a
fe

ty
: 

In
 2

0
1
0
-1

1
 K

e
n
t 

F
ir
e
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
c
u
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

tt
e
n
d
e
d
 6

7
7
 a

c
c
id

e
n
ta

l 
d
w

e
lli

n
g

 f
ir
e
s
. 
2
 p

e
o
p
le

 d
ie

d
 a

n
d
 7

7
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
e
re

 i
n
ju

re
d
 a

s
 a

 
re

s
u
lt
 o

f 
a
c
c
id

e
n
ta

l 
fi
re

s
. 
In

 K
e
n
t 
th

e
re

 a
re

 o
n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 4

6
 f

ir
e
s
 p

e
r 

y
e
a
r 

in
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 a

n
d
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 d
w

e
lli

n
g

s
 c

a
u
s
e
d
 b

y
 s

m
o
k
in

g
. 
T

h
is

 
re

s
u
lt
s
 i
n
 a

 t
o
ta

l 
c
o
s
t 
o
f 

£
1
,1

5
0
,0

0
0
 p

a
 i
n
 K

e
n
t.
 A

 c
h
ild

 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 l
o
w

e
s
t 

s
o
c
ia

l 
c
la

s
s
 i
s
 n

in
e
 t
im

e
s
 m

o
re

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 d

ie
 i
n
 a

 h
o
u
s
e
 f

ir
e
 t

h
a
n
 a

 c
h
ild

 
fr

o
m

 a
 w

e
ll 

o
ff

 h
o
m

e
. 
 K

e
n
t 

F
ir
e
 &

 R
e
s
c
u
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

 t
h
a
t 

in
 S

e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 
th

e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 1

7
.6

%
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
a
c
c
id

e
n
ta

l 
d
w

e
lli

n
g

 
fi
re

s
 f
ro

m
 2

0
1
2
 t
o
 2

0
1
3
. 

Agenda Item 7

Page 40



S
E

V
E

N
O

A
K

S
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 ‘
M

IN
D

 T
H

E
 G

A
P

’ 
P

L
A

N
 -

  
B

u
ild

in
g
 b

ri
d
g
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
tt
e
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

3
1

 

R
e
d
u
c
in

g
 t

h
e
 g

a
p
 i
n
 h

e
a
lt
h
 i
n
e
q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 t
o
 

m
a
k
e
 b

e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
ir
 l
if
e
s
ty

le
 f

a
c
to

rs
 c

a
n
 

s
tr

e
n
g
th

e
n
 t

h
e
 r

o
le

 a
n
d
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

ill
 h

e
a
lt
h
 l
o
n
g
 t

e
rm

 a
n
d
 m

a
k
e
 

g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
c
h
a

n
g
e
s
 t

o
 w

h
o
le

 f
a

m
ili

e
s
 

K
e

y
 P

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s
 f

o
r 

S
e
v
e
n

o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t:

 

•
 

R
e
d
u
c
e
 t

h
e
 g

a
p
 i
n
 h

e
a
lt
h
 i
n
e
q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 s

o
c
ia

l 
g
ra

d
ie

n
t 

 
•

P
ro

v
id

e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 m

e
n
ta

l 
ill

n
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 r

a
is

e
 

a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
 o

f 
m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 i
s
s
u
e
s

6
.
S

tr
e

n
g

th
e

n
 t

h
e

 
ro

le
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
f 

il
l 

h
e

a
lt

h
 

p
re

v
e

n
ti

o
n

M
a

n
y 

o
f 

th
e 

ke
y 

h
ea

lt
h

 

b
eh

a
vi

o
u

rs
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
to

 t
h

e 

d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

o
f 

ch
ro

n
ic

 

d
is

ea
se

 f
o

ll
o

w
 t

h
e 

so
ci

a
l 

g
ra

d
ie

n
t:

 s
m

o
ki

n
g

, 
o

b
es

it
y,

 

la
ck

 o
f 

p
h

ys
ic

a
l 

a
ct

iv
it

y,
 

u
n

h
ea

lt
h

y 
n

u
tr

it
io

n
. 

(M
a

rm
o

t 
R

ev
ie

w
 2

0
1

0
) 

Agenda Item 7

Page 41



S
E

V
E

N
O

A
K

S
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 ‘
M

IN
D

 T
H

E
 G

A
P

’ 
P

L
A

N
 -

  
B

u
ild

in
g
 b

ri
d
g
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
tt
e
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

3
2

 

O
b

je
c

ti
v
e

 6
: 

S
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n

 t
h

e
 r

o
le

 a
n
d

 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

f 
ill

 h
e

a
lt
h

 p
re

v
e

n
ti
o

n
 

D
e

li
v
e

ry
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
: 

N
H

S
 F

u
tu

re
 F

o
ru

m
; 

H
e

a
lt

h
 C

h
e

c
k

s
; 

Q
IP

P
; 

L
iv

e
 i

t 
W

e
ll
; 

N
o

 H
e

a
lt

h
 W

it
h

o
u

t 
M

e
n

ta
l 

H
e

a
lt

h
; 

T
o

b
a

c
c

o
 

C
o

n
tr

o
l 

P
la

n
; 

H
e

a
lt

h
y
 W

e
ig

h
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
; 

K
e

n
t 

S
p

o
rt

 F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

; 
A

lc
o

h
o

l 
P

la
n

  

L
o

c
a

l 
P

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s
:

6
.1

 Im
p

ro
v
e

 a
c

c
e

s
s
 t

o
 

s
c

re
e

n
in

g
 

6
.2

 
R

e
d

u
c

e
 t

h
e

 g
a

p
 i

n
 

h
e

a
lt

h
 i

n
e

q
u

a
li

ti
e
s

 
a

c
ro

s
s

 t
h

e
 s

o
c

ia
l 

g
ra

d
ie

n
t 

(H
ig

h
 

p
ri

o
ri

ty
 f

o
r 

S
e

v
e

n
o

a
k

s
 

D
is

tr
ic

t)

6
.3

 P
ro

v
id

e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 m
e

n
ta

l 
il

ln
e

s
s

 a
n

d
 r

a
is

e
 

a
w

a
re

n
e

s
s
 o

f 
m

e
n

ta
l 

h
e
a

lt
h

 
is

s
u

e
s

 (
H

ig
h

 
p

ri
o

ri
ty

 f
o

r 
S

e
v
e

n
o

a
k

s
 D

is
tr

ic
t)

6
.4

 G
ro

w
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
n

ts
 

a
n

d
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
s

 t
o

 
fi

n
d

 n
e
w

 w
a

y
s

 t
o

 
ta

rg
e

t 
a

n
d

 d
e

li
v
e

r 
s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

A
c

ti
o

n
s

:
6
.1

.1
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
 e

a
rl
y
 

d
ia

g
n
o
s
is

 o
f 

d
e
m

e
n
ti
a
 

a
n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

a
n
d
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t

o
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 s
u
ff

e
re

rs
 a

n
d
 

th
e
ir
 c

a
re

rs
 

 
6
.2

.1
 
R

e
d
u
c
e
 t

h
e
 

p
re

v
a
le

n
c
e
 o

f 
s
m

o
k
in

g
, 

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 i
n
 

a
re

a
s
 o

f 
d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

y
o
u
n
g

 p
e
o
p
le

 

6
.3

.1
 
S

u
p
p
o
rt

 v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 
p
e
o
p
le

 t
o
 m

a
n
a
g

e
 

lo
n
g

-t
e
rm

 m
e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 

6
.5

.1
 
W

o
rk

 w
it
h
 H

e
a
lt
h
 &

 
W

e
llb

e
in

g
 B

o
a
rd

s
 t
o
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

k
e
y
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 s

e
t 

o
u
t 

in
 

th
e
 h

e
a
lt
h
 i
n
e
q

u
a
lit

ie
s
 

a
g

e
n
d
a
 

6
.1

.2
 
P

ro
m

o
te

 s
e
n
s
ib

le
 

d
ri
n
k
in

g
 a

n
d
 e

n
s
u
re

 
tr

e
a
tm

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

 
6
.2

.2
 
R

e
d
u
c
e
 t

h
e
 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
 

p
re

v
a
le

n
c
e
 o

f 
T

y
p
e
 

2
 d

ia
b
e
te

s
 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 

e
a
rl
y
 d

e
te

n
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

p
re

v
e
n
ti
o
n
 

6
.3

.2
 
R

a
is

e
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 

o
f 

m
e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 

is
s
u
e
s
 a

n
d
 

s
ig

n
p
o
s
t 

in
to

 
re

le
v
a
n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

6
.5

.2
 C

o
-o

rd
in

a
te

 t
h
e
 

S
e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

H
e
a
lt
h
 A

c
ti
o
n
 T

e
a
m

 
fo

r 
o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 t
o
 w

o
rk

 
h
o
lis

ti
c
a
lly

 

6
.1

.3
 
In

c
re

a
s
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 

s
e
x
u
a
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

C
h
la

m
y
d
ia

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 f

o
r 

y
o
u
n
g

 p
e
o
p
le

 t
o
 

re
d
u
c
e
 t
e
e
n
a
g

e
 

p
re

g
n
a
n
c
y
 

 
6
.2

.3
 
D

e
liv

e
r 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t

o
 

p
ro

m
o
te

 t
h
e
 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 o
f 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a

n
d
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 

o
b
e
s
it
y
 

6
.4

.3
 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
 t

h
e
 “

B
e
 

In
s
p
ir
e
d
, 
B

e
 A

c
ti
v
e
” 

le
g

a
c
y
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
  

Agenda Item 7

Page 42



S
E

V
E

N
O

A
K

S
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 ‘
M

IN
D

 T
H

E
 G

A
P

’ 
P

L
A

N
 -

  
B

u
ild

in
g
 b

ri
d
g
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
tt
e
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

3
3

 

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e
 6

: 
 S

tr
e
n

g
th

e
n

 I
ll
 H

e
a
lt

h
 P

re
v
e
n

ti
o

n
  

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 6

.2
 F

o
c

u
s

 p
u

b
li

c
 h

e
a

lt
h

 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
s

 t
o

 r
e

d
u

c
e

 t
h

e
 g

a
p

 i
n

 h
e

a
lt

h
 i

n
e

q
u

a
li

ti
e
s

 a
c

ro
s

s
 t

h
e
 s

o
c

ia
l 

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 h
u
g

e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 T

y
p
e
 2

 d
ia

b
e
te

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 

D
ia

b
e
te

s
 p

re
v
a
le

n
c
e
 p

re
d
ic

ti
o
n
s
 K

e
n
t 
d
is

tr
ic

ts
 2

0
0
5

 –
 2

0
2
5
  

th
e
 U

K
, 
a
n
d
 i
n
 W

e
s
t 

K
e
n
t 

1
0
.7

%
 o

f 
d
e
a
th

s
 i
n
 2

0
 –

 7
9
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
 a

re
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 t
o
 b

e
 a

tt
ri
b
u
ta

b
le

 t
o
 d

ia
b
e
te

s
. 
T

h
e
 

d
ia

g
ra

m
 o

n
 t

h
e
 r

ig
h
t 

in
d
ic

a
te

s
 t
h
a
t 

S
e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 
h
a
s
 

th
e
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 h

ig
h
e
s
t 
p
re

v
a
le

n
c
e
 i
n
 W

e
s
t 

K
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 i
s
 

e
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
ra

te
s
 o

f 
d
ia

b
e
te

s
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 

o
v
e
r 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 
1
5
 y

e
a
rs

. 

O
b

e
s
it

y
:

O
b
e
s
it
y
 c

a
n
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
o
 a

 r
a
n
g

e
 o

f 
h
e
a
lt
h
 

c
o
n
d
it
io

n
s
, 

s
u
c
h
 a

s
 h

e
a
rt

 d
is

e
a
s
e
, 
h
ig

h
 b

lo
o
d
 p

re
s
s
u
re

, 
d
ia

b
e
te

s
, 

in
d
ig

e
s
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 s

o
m

e
 c

a
n
c
e
rs

. 
A

d
u
lt
 a

n
d
 c

h
ild

 
o
b
e
s
it
y
 l
e
v
e
ls

 a
re

 b
e
c
o
m

in
g

 a
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 i
s
s
u
e
 f
o
r 

th
e
 

h
e
a
lt
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
, 

a
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
n
u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

p
e
o
p
le

 p
u
t 
o
n

 e
x
tr

a
 

w
e

ig
h
t,
 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 p

o
o
r 

d
ie

t 
o
r 

in
s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 
e
x
e
rc

is
e
. 
 

A
d
u
lt
 o

b
e
s
it
y
 i
s
 f
a
r 

m
o
re

 p
re

v
a
le

n
t 

in
 s

o
c
ia

lly
 

d
is

a
d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
d
 g

ro
u
p
s
. 
It
 i
s
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 t

h
a
t 
a
p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 2

8
%

 o
f 

th
e
 K

e
n
t 
p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 i
s
 o

b
e
s
e
 (

3
5
4
,0

2
2
).

  
In

 t
h
e
 S

e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

a
p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 2

4
%

 o
f 

a
d
u
lt
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 D

is
tr

ic
t 
a
re

 c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 o

v
e
rw

e
ig

h
t 

o
r 

o
b
e
s
e
. 

C
u
rr

e
n
t 
tr

e
n
d
s
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
a
t 
m

o
re

 d
e
p
ri
v
e
d
 w

a
rd

s
 h

a
v
e
 g

re
a
t 

p
ro

b
le

m
s
 w

it
h
 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 

o
b
e
s
it
y
. 

  
T

h
e
 s

y
n
th

e
ti
c
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

 o
f 

th
e
 p

re
v
a
le

n
c
e
 o

f 
a
d
u
lt
 o

b
e
s
it
y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 m

a
p
p
e
d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 e

le
c
to

ra
l 
w

a
rd

s
 i
n
 

S
e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 a

n
d
 s

h
o
w

 t
h
a
t 

S
w

a
n
le

y
 S

t 
M

a
ry

’s
, 

S
w

a
n

le
y
 W

h
it
e
 O

a
k
 a

n
d
 F

a
w

k
h
a
m

 a
n
d
 W

e
s
t 

K
in

g
s
d
o
w

n
 h

a
v
e
 t

h
e
 h

ig
h
e
s
t 

le
v
e
l 
o
f 

o
b
e
s
it
y
. 

S
m

o
k

in
g

: 
S

m
o
k
in

g
 i
s
 a

 m
a
jo

r 
c
a
u
s
e
 o

f 
lu

n
g
 c

a
n
c
e
r,

 c
a
rd

io
v
a
s
c
u
la

r 
d
is

e
a
s
e
 a

n
d
 c

h
ro

n
ic

 o
b
s
tr

u
c
ti
v
e
 p

u
lm

o
n
a
ry

 d
is

e
a
s
e
 (

C
O

P
D

) 
a
n
d
 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

s
 t
o
 m

a
n
y
 o

th
e
r 

c
a
n
c
e
rs

 a
n
d
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
s
, 
s
u
c
h
 a

s
 a

s
th

m
a
 o

r 
h
ig

h
 b

lo
o
d
 p

re
s
s
u
re

. 
 S

m
o
k
in

g
 p

re
v
a
le

n
c
e
 i
n
 K

e
n
t 
is

 2
1
.3

4
%

; 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
e
re

 i
s
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

a
m

o
u
n
t 

o
f 

v
a
ri
a
ti
o
n
 a

c
ro

s
s
 K

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 i
t 

is
 a

 m
a
jo

r 
re

a
s
o
n
 f

o
r 

o
u
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 i
n
e
q

u
a
lit

ie
s
. 
O

f 
th

e
 1

1
,2

5
0
 d

e
a
th

s
 o

f 
K

e
n
t 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 
a
g

e
d
 3

5
 a

n
d
 o

v
e
r 

in
 2

0
0
8
, 

a
p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 2

,2
5
0
 (

2
0
%

) 
c
a
n
 b

e
 a

tt
ri
b
u
te

d
 t
o
 s

m
o
k
in

g
. 
  

S
e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

h
a
s
 t
h
e
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 l
o
w

e
s
t 

ra
te

 o
f 

s
m

o
k
in

g
 

p
re

v
a
le

n
c
e
 r

a
te

s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 a
t 

1
6
.4

%
 a

n
d
 w

it
h
 S

w
a
n

le
y
 S

t 
M

a
ry

s
 a

n
d
 S

w
a
n

le
y
 W

h
it
e
 O

a
k
 b

e
in

g
 t
h
e
 o

n
ly

 w
a
rd

s
 w

it
h
 p

re
v
a
le

n
c
e
 m

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 

3
0
%

. 
 H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 a
 n

e
e
d
 f
o
r 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

w
o
rk

 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 s

m
o
k
in

g
 i
n
 p

re
g

n
a
n
c
y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 f

o
r 

S
e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t.
 

S
u

b
s

ta
n

c
e

 M
is

u
s

e
: 
T

h
e
re

 a
re

 s
tr

o
n
g
 l
in

k
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 l
e

v
e
ls

 o
f 

d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
, 

p
re

v
a
le

n
c
e
 o

f 
p
ro

b
le

m
 d

ru
g
 u

s
e
, 
d
ru

g
 r

e
la

te
d
 h

o
s
p
it
a
l 
a
d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 

a
n
d
 m

o
rt

a
lit

y
.
E

s
ti
m

a
te

s
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
re

 a
re

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 3

6
4
0
 a

n
d
 7

5
9
1
 p

ro
b
le

m
 d

ru
g
 u

s
e
rs

 i
n
 K

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 t

h
a
t 

a
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

2
5
0
0
 p

ro
b
le

m
 d

ru
g

 u
s
e
rs

 
a
re

 n
o
t 

e
n
g

a
g

e
d
 w

it
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

H
o
s
p
it
a
l 
a
d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 o

n
 a

n
 u

p
w

a
rd

 t
re

n
d
. 
B

e
tw

e
e
n
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
 a

n
d
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
 t

h
e
re

 w
a
s
 a

 
to

ta
l 
o
f 

1
3
3
 c

ri
m

in
a
l 
o
ff

e
n
c
e
s
 r

e
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
 s

u
b
s
ta

n
c
e
 m

is
u
s
e
 w

h
ic

h
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ts

 a
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r 

o
f 

5
.6

%
. 
T

h
is

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
s
 

a
g

a
in

s
t 
a
 c

o
u
n
ty

-w
id

e
 d

e
c
re

a
s
e
 o

f 
1
0
.7

%
. 
 

P
ro

je
c
te

d
 P

re
v

a
le

n
c
e
 o

f 
T

y
p

e
 2

 D
ia

b
e
te

s

Agenda Item 7

Page 43



S
E

V
E

N
O

A
K

S
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 ‘
M

IN
D

 T
H

E
 G

A
P

’ 
P

L
A

N
 -

  
B

u
ild

in
g
 b

ri
d
g
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
tt
e
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

3
4

 

S
o
u
rc

e
: 

N
H

S
 

D
e
s
p
it
e
 t

h
is

, 
S

e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 s

ti
ll 

h
a
s
 t

h
e
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 l
o
w

e
s
t 

ra
te

 o
f 

h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
a
d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 r

e
la

ti
n
g

 t
o
 s

u
b
s
ta

n
c
e
 m

is
u
s
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

. 
 2

0
1
2
 d

a
ta

 a
t 
w

a
rd

 
le

v
e

l,
 s

h
o
w

s
 t

h
a
t 
S

w
a
n
le

y
 S

t 
M

a
ry

s
 w

a
rd

 h
a
d
 t
h
e
 h

ig
h
e
s
t 
v
o
lu

m
e
 o

f 
D

ru
g
 O

ff
e
n
c
e
s
, 
ra

n
k
in

g
 1

8
th

 h
ig

h
e
s
t 

w
a
rd

 i
n
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 (
o
u
t 

o
f 

a
p
p
ro

x
. 

8
0
0
 

w
a
rd

s
) 

w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 t
re

n
d
 o

f 
s
u
b
s
ta

n
c
e
 m

is
u
s
e
 l
in

k
e
d
 t

o
 p

e
o
p
le

 i
n
 t

h
e
 m

o
s
t 

d
e
p
ri
v
e
d
 w

a
rd

s
. 
  

F
ro

m
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
1
 t
o
 M

a
y
 2

0
1
2
 t

h
e
re

 w
e
re

 a
 t

o
ta

l 
o
f 

2
8
1
 h

o
s
p
it
a
l 
a
d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 f

o
r 

m
e
n
ta

l 
a
n
d
 b

e
h
a
v
io

u
ra

l 
d
is

o
rd

e
rs

 d
u
e
 t

o
 p

s
y
c
h
o
a
c
ti
v
e
 

s
u
b
s
ta

n
c
e
 u

s
e
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

lc
o
h
o
l 
a
n
d
 d

ru
g

s
) 

in
 t
h
e
 D

is
tr

ic
t.
 T

h
is

 i
s
 t
h
e
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 l
o
w

e
s
t 
fi
g

u
re

 i
n
 K

e
n
t.
 T

h
e
 h

ig
h
e
s
t 
n
u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 
a
d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
w

e
re

 f
o
u
n
d
 i
n
 S

w
a
n
le

y
 W

h
it
e
 O

a
k
 (

3
3
 c

a
s
e
s
),

 E
d
e
n
b
ri
d
g

e
 S

o
u
th

 &
 W

e
s
t 
(2

3
 c

a
s
e
s
) 

a
n
d
 S

w
a
n
le

y
 S

t 
M

a
ry

’s
 (

2
0
 c

a
s
e
s
).

 

A
lc

o
h

o
l 

M
is

u
s

e
: 
T

h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 

a
lc

o
h
o
l 
m

is
u
s
e
 i
s
 w

id
e
s
p
re

a
d
; 

it
 e

n
c
o
m

p
a
s
s
e
s
 a

lc
o
h
o
l 
re

la
te

d
 i
lln

e
s
s
 a

n
d
 i
n
ju

ri
e
s
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
s
o
c
ia

l 

im
p
a
c
ts

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 c

ri
m

e
 a

n
d
 v

io
le

n
c
e
, 

te
e
n
a
g

e
 p

re
g

n
a
n
c
y
, 

lo
s
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

p
la

c
e
 p

ro
d
u
c
ti
v
it
y
 a

n
d
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e

s
s
. 

H
e
a
lt
h
 i
n
e
q

u
a
lit

ie
s
 a

re
 c

le
a
rl
y
 

e
v
id

e
n
t 

a
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
a
lc

o
h
o
l-
re

la
te

d
 h

a
rm

; 
n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
d
a
ta

 i
n
d
ic

a
te

s
 t
h
a
t 
a
lc

o
h
o
l-
re

la
te

d
 d

e
a
th

 r
a
te

s
 a

re
 a

b
o
u
t 

4
5
%

 h
ig

h
e
r 

in
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 
h
ig

h
 

d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
. 

It
 i
s
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

2
5
9
,1

0
3
 a

d
u
lt
s
 i
n
 K

e
n
t 

a
re

 
d
ri
n
k
in

g
 a

t 
‘in

c
re

a
s
in

g
 r

is
k
’ 
le

v
e
ls

 o
r 

‘h
ig

h
 r

is
k
’ 
le

v
e
ls

. 
  

B
e
tw

e
e
n
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
 a

n
d
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
, 
S

e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
h
a
d
 a

 1
0
.2

%
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 o

n
 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r’

s
 a

lc
o
h
o
l 

e
m

e
rg

e
n
c
y
 h

o
s
p
it
a
l 
a
d
m

is
s
io

n
 r

a
te

. 
T

h
is

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
s
 o

n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 

la
rg

e
s
t 

in
c
re

a
s
e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 (
o
n
ly

 D
a
rt

fo
rd

 1
7
%

 a
n
d
 

G
ra

v
e
s
h
a
m

 1
9
%

 h
a
v
e
 s

e
e
n
 a

 g
re

a
te

r 
in

c
re

a
s
e
).

  
W

h
e
n
 

lo
o
k
in

g
 a

t 
th

e
s
e
 a

d
m

is
s
io

n
 r

a
te

s
 i
n
 g

re
a
te

r 
d
e
ta

il,
 t

h
e
 r

a
te

 f
o
r 

m
e
n
 i
s
 m

u
c
h
 h

ig
h
e
r 

p
e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 t

h
a
n
 f
o
r 

w
o
m

e
n
 

w
h

ic
h
 i
s
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
t 

w
it
h
 C

o
u
n
ty

 f
ig

u
re

s
. 
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

ls
o
 a

n
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
a
b
le

 p
e
a
k
 i
n
 t
h
e
 a

g
e
 o

f 
th

o
s
e
 b

e
in

g
 t
re

a
te

d
; 

a
lc

o
h
o
l 

u
s
e
rs

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 2

0
-2

4
 a

n
d
 4

0
-5

0
 h

a
v
e
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 h

ig
h
e
r 

a
d
m

is
s
io

n
 r

a
te

 t
h
a
n
 a

n
y
 o

th
e
r 

a
g

e
 g

ro
u
p
. 
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 44



S
E

V
E

N
O

A
K

S
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 ‘
M

IN
D

 T
H

E
 G

A
P

’ 
P

L
A

N
 -

  
B

u
ild

in
g
 b

ri
d
g
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
tt
e
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

3
5

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 6

.3
 M

e
n

ta
l 

H
e
a

lt
h

  
 

 ‘
M

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
, 

R
e
s
ili

e
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 H

e
a
lt
h
 I

n
e
q

u
a
lit

ie
s
’ 
b
y
 D

r 
F

re
id

li 
la

y
s
 d

o
w

n
 t

h
e
 b

a
s
ic

 p
re

m
is

e
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
e
a
rc

h
 f
o
r 

w
h
a
t 

b
e
c
a
m

e
 t

h
e
 g

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t’
s
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 f

o
r 

m
e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 i
n
 2

0
1
1
, 
“N

o
 H

e
a
lt
h
 w

it
h
o
u
t 

M
e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
”.

  
 

E
n
d
o
rs

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 W

H
O

, 
F

a
c
u
lt
y
 o

f 
P

u
b
lic

 H
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 C

h
ild

 P
o
v
e
rt

y
 A

c
ti
o
n
 G

ro
u
p
 i
t 
d
e
s
c
ri
b
e
s
 w

h
a
t 
w

e
 a

ll 
k
n
o
w

 i
n
 o

u
r 

b
o
n
e
s
, 
th

a
t 
w

it
h
o
u
t 

o
u
r 

s
e
n
s
e
 o

f 
w

e
ll 

b
e
in

g
, 

w
it
h
o
u
t 

o
u
r 

a
b
ili

ty
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
s
ili

e
n
t 
to

 l
if
e
’s

 s
lin

g
s
 a

n
d
 a

rr
o
w

s
 a

n
d
 w

it
h
o
u
t 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 t
h
a
t 
c
h
ro

n
ic

 s
tr

e
s
s
 l
it
e
ra

lly
 g

e
ts

 u
n
d
e
r 

o
u
r 

s
k
in

 i
n
 t

h
e
 f

o
rm

 o
f 

ill
n
e
s
s
 –

 w
e
 w

ill
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 s

ic
k
. 
 

S
a
d
ly

, 
a
lt
h
o
u
g

h
 m

o
n
e
y
 c

a
n
’t
 b

u
y
 u

s
 h

a
p
p
in

e
s
s
- 

it
 d

o
e
s
 b

y
 a

n
d
 l
a
rg

e
 b

u
y
 u

s
 s

e
c
u
ri
ty

 a
n
d
 a

b
ili

ty
 t

o
 m

it
ig

a
te

 a
g

a
in

s
t 
s
o
m

e
 u

n
e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 l
if
e
 e

v
e
n
ts

 
e
.g

. 
u
n
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t.
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 t

h
a
t 

e
x
is

t 
in

 a
re

a
s
 o

f 
g

re
a
te

r 
d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
 n

e
e
d
 m

o
re

 t
h
e
n
 e

v
e
r,

 t
h
e
 t

o
o
ls

 (
b
o
th

 c
o
lle

c
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a

l)
 t

o
 

c
o
p
e
 w

it
h
 s

tr
e
s
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 l
if
e
 e

v
e
n
ts

. 
It
 i
s
 f

in
e
 t

o
 a

s
k
 p

e
o
p
le

 t
o
 g

iv
e
 u

p
 s

m
o
k
in

g
, 

e
a
t 

h
e
a
lt
h
ily

, 
d
ri
n
k
 l
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 g

o
 t
o
 t
h
e
 g

y
m

 m
o
re

, 
b
u
t 
s
o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 

re
a
s
o
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
p
e
o
p
le

 i
n
 m

o
re

 d
e
p
ri
v
e
d
 a

re
a
s
 e

n
g

a
g

e
 i
n
 b

e
h
a
v
io

u
rs

 t
h
a
t 

o
n
 t
h
e
 s

u
rf

a
c
e
 a

re
 w

o
rs

e
 f
o
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
, 
a
re

 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 t

h
e
y
 a

re
 s

tr
u
g
g

lin
g
 t

o
 

fi
n
d
 w

a
y
s
 t

o
 c

o
p
e
 w

it
h
 s

tr
e
s
s
. 
 

C
h
ro

n
ic

 s
tr

e
s
s
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 o
n
 l
o
n
g
 t

e
rm

 
re

la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip

s
 a

n
d
 c

a
n
 e

v
e
n
 l
e
a
d
 t

o
 v

io
le

n
c
e
, 

is
o
la

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 n

e
g

le
c
t.
 T

h
is

 i
s
 w

h
y
 m

e
n
ta

l 
w

e
ll 

b
e
in

g
 i
s
 a

 c
o
re

 i
s
s
u
e
 i
n
 t
a
c
k
lin

g
 h

e
a
lt
h
 

in
e
q

u
a
lit

ie
s
. 
W

h
a
t 
is

 t
h
e
 a

n
ti
d
o
te

 f
ro

m
 a

 h
e
a
lt
h
 

p
e
rs

p
e
c
ti
v
e
?
 W

e
ll 

o
b
v
io

u
s
ly

 c
re

a
ti
n
g
 m

o
re

 
jo

b
s
 a

n
d
 b

e
in

g
 a

b
le

 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 s

k
ill

s
 t

o
 g

a
in

 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

a
re

 c
e
n
tr

a
l 
to

 t
h
is

, 
a
n
d
 t

h
e
s
e
 a

re
 

a
 k

e
y
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 w

id
e
r 

K
e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 t

o
 t
a
c
k
le

 
d
is

a
d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
. 
B

u
t 
fr

o
m

 a
 w

e
ll 

b
e
in

g
 a

n
d
 

h
e
a
lt
h
 p

e
rs

p
e
c
ti
v
e
 t

h
e
re

 a
re

 t
h
in

g
s
 w

e
 c

a
n
 d

o
 

to
o
: 
b
u
ild

in
g

 s
o
c
ia

l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 n

e
tw

o
rk

s
 a

re
 

e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
fo

r 
b
u
ild

in
g
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 (

e
c
h
o
e
d
 i
n
 

th
e
 B

ig
 S

o
c
ie

ty
),

 h
a
v
in

g
 g

o
o
d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 

p
s
y
c
h
o
lo

g
ic

a
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 p

la
c
e
s
 t
o
 g

o
 w

h
e
re

 
y
o
u
 c

a
n
 f

in
d
 a

 s
h
o
u
ld

e
r 

to
 c

ry
 o

n
, 
ju

s
t 
b
y
 

re
c
o
g

n
is

in
g
 o

n
e
s
 e

m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 f

in
d
in

g
 

w
a

y
s
 o

f 
c
o
p
in

g
 c

a
n
 b

e
 t
h
e
 d

if
fe

re
n
c
e
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 

s
u
ic

id
e
 a

n
d
 h

o
p
e
. 
T

h
is

 l
in

k
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 n

e
w

 h
e
a
lt
h
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 m

a
n
tr

a
 “

m
a
k
e
 e

v
e
ry

 c
o
n
ta

c
t 

c
o
u
n
t”

. 
E

v
e
ry

o
n
e
 c

a
n
 d

o
 t

h
e
ir
 b

it
. 

In
 a

d
d
it
io

n
: 
P

e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 a

 m
e
n
ta

l 
ill

n
e
s
s
 c

a
n
 

s
u
ff

e
r 

n
a
m

e
 c

a
lli

n
g

, 
p
o
o
re

r 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 r

o
u
ti
n
e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 o

n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 l
iv

e
 1

5
 y

e
a
rs

 l
e
s
s
 l
if
e
 t
h
e

n
 o

th
e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

. 

Agenda Item 7

Page 45



S
E

V
E

N
O

A
K

S
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 ‘
M

IN
D

 T
H

E
 G

A
P

’ 
P

L
A

N
 -

  
B

u
ild

in
g
 b

ri
d
g
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
tt
e
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

3
6

 

H
e

a
lt

h
 I

n
e

q
u

a
li
ti

e
s
 A

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
 2

0
1
3

-1
5
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 o

n
 a

ll 
o
f 

th
e

 a
c
ti
o

n
s
 b

e
lo

w
 h

a
v
e

 b
e
e

n
 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e
d

 a
s
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 f

o
r 

S
e

v
e

n
o

a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t,

 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 K
e
n

t 
h

e
a

lt
h

 p
ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
. 
 T

h
e
 

g
re

y
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 b

e
lo

w
 a

re
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 t

a
k
in

g
 p

la
c
e

 a
n

d
 m

a
k
in

g
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
, 

th
e

s
e
 w

ill
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 b
e

 m
o

n
it
o

re
d

 t
o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
y
 

c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
 t
o

 t
h

ri
v
e

. 
 T

h
e
 h

ig
h

 p
ri
o

ri
ty

 a
c
ti
o

n
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

o
n

it
o

re
d

 c
lo

s
e

ly
 b

y
 t

h
e

 H
e

a
lt
h

 A
c
ti
o

n
 a

s
 t

h
e

s
e

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
d

e
n

ti
e

d
 t
o

 h
a

v
e

 t
h

e
 

g
re

a
te

s
t 

n
e

e
d
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 s

ta
ti
s
ti
c
a

l 
d

a
ta

 a
n

d
 h

e
a

lt
h

 p
ro

fi
le

s
. 

A
c
ti

o
n

H
o

w
 

K
e

y
 P

a
rt

n
e
r(

s
)

P
ro

g
re

s
s
/T

a
rg

e
ts

1
.1

 I
n

c
re

a
s

e
 N

u
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
H

e
a

lt
h

y
 B

ir
th

s
 (

H
ig

h
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 f
o

r 
S

e
v
e

n
o

a
k

s
 D

is
tr

ic
t)

1
.1

.1
 R

u
n
 c

a
m

p
a
ig

n
s
 

a
n
d
 d

e
liv

e
r 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 

to
 p

ro
m

o
te

 g
o
o
d
 

h
e
a
lt
h
 i
n
 p

re
g

n
a
n
c
y
 

a
n
d
 p

ro
m

o
ti
o
n
 

S
ta

rt
4
L
if
e
 

T
o
 o

ff
e
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 w

o
m

e
n
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
ir
 

p
re

g
n
a
n
c
y
, 

to
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 g

o
o
d
 h

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
 a

n
d

 
s
ig

n
p
o
s
t 
th

e
m

 t
o
 l
o
c
a
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

h
a
t 
w

ill
 e

d
u
c
a
te

 t
h
e
m

 i
n
 

m
a
k
in

g
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 l
if
e
s
ty

le
 c

h
o
ic

e
s
. 
T

h
is

 c
a
n
 b

e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 

b
y
; 

•
 

P
ro

m
o
ti
o
n
 o

f 
C

h
a
n
g

e
4
lif

e
 a

n
d
 S

ta
rt

4
lif

e
 

•
 

S
to

p
 S

m
o
k
in

g
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 

•
 

P
ro

m
o
te

 l
o
c
a
l 
c
h
ild

re
n
’s

 C
e
n
tr

e
 a

n
d
 p

a
re

n
ts

 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 g
ro

u
p
s
. 

L
e
a
d

: 
C

h
il
d

re
n

’s
 C

e
n

tr
e

•
 

S
e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

•
 

D
a
rt

fo
rd

, 
G

ra
v
e
s
h
a
m

 
a
n
d
 S

w
a
n
le

y
 H

e
a
lt
h
y
 

C
h
ild

 G
ro

u
p
 

•
 

N
H

S
 M

id
w

if
e
s
 

•
 

C
C

G
’s

 

1
.1

.2
 E

n
s
u
re

 t
e
e
n
a
g

e
 

p
a
re

n
ts

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
 

h
o
lis

ti
c
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 

•
 

W
o
rk

 w
it
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

te
e
n
a
g
e
 p

a
re

n
t 
s
u
p
p
o

rt
 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 S

e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 
T

e
e
n
a
g
e
 

P
re

g
n
a
n
c
y
 L

IG
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
. 
  
 

•
 

O
ff

e
ri
n
g

 t
e
e
n
a
g

e
 p

a
re

n
ts

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 h

e
a
lt
h
 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e
 y

o
u
n
g
 a

n
d
 p

re
g

n
a
n
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 
te

a
m

 (
Y

A
P

’s
) 

•
 

Id
e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 t
h
a
t 

h
a
v
e
 a

 h
ig

h
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

te
e
n
a
g

e
 

p
a
re

n
ts

 a
n
d
 h

e
lp

in
g

 t
h
e
m

 l
in

k
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

L
e
a
d

: 
C

h
il
d

re
n

’s
 C

e
n

tr
e

•
 

T
e
e
n
a
g

e
 P

re
g
. 

L
IG

  

•
 

Y
A

P
 G

ro
u
p
s
 

•
 

K
IA

S
S

 

•
 

S
R

E
 S

c
h
o
o
l 
L
e
a
d
s
 &

 
g

o
v
e
rn

o
rs

 

1
.1

.3
 E

a
rl
y
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 p
a
re

n
ts

 
s
m

o
k
in

g
 i
n
 p

re
g

n
a
n
c
y
 

a
n
d
 w

o
rk

 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 

W
o
rk

 w
it
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 t
o
 e

n
g

a
g

e
 w

it
h
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 n
e
w

 
p
a
re

n
ts

 a
n
d
 p

a
re

n
ts

 i
n
 p

re
g

n
a
n
c
y
 w

h
o
 s

m
o
k
e
. 
O

ff
e
r 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
; 

-
 

S
to

p
 S

m
o
k
in

g
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 
-

 
In

c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e
 u

p
ta

k
e
 o

f 
th

e
 H

e
a
lt
h
y
 S

ta
rt

 S
c
h
e
m

e
 

-
 

P
ro

v
id

in
g

 K
e
n
t 
m

id
w

if
e
s
 w

it
h
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

in
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

re
fe

rr
a
ls

 
-

 
S

ig
n
p
o
s
ti
n
g
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 p

a
re

n
ts

 t
o
 t

h
e
 c

h
ild

re
n
’s

 

L
e
a
d

: 
K

e
n

t 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 

H
e
a
lt

h
 T

ru
s
t 

•
 

N
H

S
 M

id
w

if
e
s
 

•
 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 C
e
n
tr

e
’s

 

•
 

S
to

p
 S

m
o
k
in

g
 T

e
a
m

 

•
 

K
IA

S
S

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 46



S
E

V
E

N
O

A
K

S
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 ‘
M

IN
D

 T
H

E
 G

A
P

’ 
P

L
A

N
 -

  
B

u
ild

in
g
 b

ri
d
g
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
tt
e
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

3
7

 

A
c
ti

o
n

H
o

w
 

K
e

y
 P

a
rt

n
e
r(

s
)

P
ro

g
re

s
s
/T

a
rg

e
ts

C
e
n
tr

e
  

1
.2

 I
n

c
re

a
s

e
 b

re
a
s

t-
fe

e
d

in
g

 i
n

it
ia

ti
o

n
 r

a
te

s
 a

n
d

 p
re

v
a

le
n

c
e

 a
t 

6
-8

 w
e

e
k

s
 i

n
 a

ll
 p

a
rt

s
 o

f 
K

e
n

t 
 

1
.2

.1
 P

o
s
it
iv

e
 

p
ro

m
o
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 c

re
a
ti
o
n
 

o
f 

b
re

a
s
t-

fe
e
d
in

g
 

fr
ie

n
d
ly

 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ts

  

•
 

Id
e
n
ti
fy

 a
n
d
 p

ro
m

o
te

 ‘
b
re

a
s
t-

fr
ie

n
d
ly

’ 
fe

e
d
in

g
 

lo
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

e
.g

. 
p
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

f 
‘m

o
th

e
r 

o
n
ly

’ 
b
a
b
y
 f

e
e
d
in

g
 r

o
o
m

s
 o

r 
p
u
b
lic

 r
e
ta

il 
a
n
d
 c

a
te

ri
n
g
 

a
re

a
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 l
ib

ra
ri
e
s
, 
c
a
fe

s
 e

tc
. 

•
 

W
o
rk

 w
it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 t
o
 r

a
is

e
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 

p
ro

m
o
te

 o
f 
th

e
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
b
re

a
s
tf

e
e
d
in

g
, 

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 f

o
r 

te
e
n
a
g

e
 m

o
th

e
rs

 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 a

 s
o
c
ia

l 
m

a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 s

ty
le

 p
ro

je
c
t 
s
o
 i
t 

b
e
c
o
m

e
s
 t

h
e
 ‘
s
o
c
ia

l 
n
o
rm

’.
 

L
e
a
d

: 
K

C
H

T
 

•
 

C
h
ild

re
n
 C

e
n
tr

e
’s

  

•
 

S
e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

1
.2

.1
 P

ro
v
id

e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 
to

 n
e
w

 m
o
th

e
rs

 t
o
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 i
n
it
ia

ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
b
re

a
s
t-

fe
e
d
in

g
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 t
ra

in
e
d
 a

d
v
is

o
rs

, 
c
h
a
m

p
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 

p
e
e
rs

 t
o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 a
n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 b
re

a
s
t 
fe

e
d
in

g
 t
h
ro

u
g

h
: 

-
 

B
re

a
s
t 
B

u
d
d
y
 t

ra
in

in
g
 

-
 

P
o
s
t 

n
a
ta

l 
w

a
rd

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 v
is

it
 

-
 

M
o
n
th

ly
 b

re
a
s
t-

fe
e
d
in

g
 w

o
rk

s
h
o
p
s
 

-
 

O
u
t 
o
f 

h
o
u
rs

 p
e
e
r 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

  

L
e
a
d

: 
C

h
il
d

re
n

’s
 C

e
n

tr
e
s

•
 

K
C

H
T

 M
id

w
iv

e
s
 a

n
d
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 V

is
it
o
rs

 

•
 

Y
A

P
’s

 G
ro

u
p
s
 

1
.3

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 p
a

re
n

ts
 s

o
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
y
 c

a
n

 r
a

is
e

 e
m

o
ti

o
n

a
ll

y
 a

n
d

 m
e

n
ta

ll
y
 h

e
a

lt
h

y
 c

h
il

d
re

n
1
.3

.1
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

fa
m

ili
e
s
 

w
it
h
 c

ri
m

e
 a

n
d
 a

n
ti
-

s
o
c
ia

l 
b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r,

 
a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 

w
o
rk

le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 

th
e
 T

ro
u
b
le

d
 F

a
m

ili
e
s
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

•
S

e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il,

 K
e
n
t 

C
o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 a
n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
t 

le
a
s
t 

4
0
 

fa
m

ili
e
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

e
a
c
h
 y

e
a
r 

fo
r 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 

th
re

e
 y

e
a
rs

.

L
e
a
d

: 
K

C
C

•
 

S
e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

•
 

K
e
n
t 

P
o
lic

e
 

•
 

K
C

C
 

•
 

A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

1
.3

.2
 

R
e
d
u
c
e
 r

e
p
e
a
t 

in
c
id

e
n
ts

 o
f 

D
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 

A
b
u
s
e

•
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
n
d
 D

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 A

b
u
s
e
 

T
a
s
k
 G

ro
u
p
 r

a
is

e
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 s

ig
n
 p

o
s
t 
to

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 W

e
s
t 
K

e
n
t 

D
ir
e
c
to

ry
 a

n
d
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 t

a
rg

e
ti
n
g

 
re

p
e
a
t 
v
ic

ti
m

s
. 

•
 

D
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 T

a
s
k
 G

ro
u
p
 a

n
d
 L

o
c
a
l 
C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 T
ru

s
t 

B
o
a
rd

 t
o
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 a

b
u
s
e
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 

L
e
a
d

: 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 S

a
fe

ty
 

U
n

it

•
 

S
e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

•
 

L
o
c
a
l 
C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 T
ru

s
t 

B
o
a
rd

 

•
 

K
e
n
t 

S
o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

•
 

K
e
n
t 

P
o
lic

e
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 47



S
E

V
E

N
O

A
K

S
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 ‘
M

IN
D

 T
H

E
 G

A
P

’ 
P

L
A

N
 -

  
B

u
ild

in
g
 b

ri
d
g
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
tt
e
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

3
8

 

A
c
ti

o
n

H
o

w
 

K
e

y
 P

a
rt

n
e
r(

s
)

P
ro

g
re

s
s
/T

a
rg

e
ts

c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 t
o
 r

a
is

e
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 

im
p
ro

v
e
 s

e
lf
 e

s
te

e
m

 a
n
d
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t 

a
n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 

h
e
a
lt
h
y
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
p
e
c
tf
u
l 
re

la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip

s
. 

•
 

T
h
e
 p

ro
m

o
ti
o
n
 o

f 
ta

rg
e
te

d
 d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 a

b
u
s
e
 

in
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 r

e
p
e
a
t 

o
ff

e
n
d
in

g
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

F
re

e
d
o
m

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
, 
D

A
V

S
S

, 
C

D
A

P
, 

IS
V

A
  

•
 

F
a
it
h
 g

ro
u
p
s
 

1
.3

.3
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g

 
c
a
re

rs
 a

n
d
 c

h
ild

 
m

in
d
e
rs

•
 

N
e
w

 m
o
th

e
rs

 t
o
 b

e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 i
n
 a

 w
a
y
 s

im
ila

r 
to

 t
h
e
 

C
o
m

m
o
n
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 a

t 
th

e
 

n
e
w

 b
ir
th

 v
is

it
. 

L
e
a
d

: 
K

C
C

•
 

S
e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

•
 

K
C

C
 

-
 

E
a
rl
y
 I

n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 

T
e
a
m

 
-

 
S

o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

•
 

W
e
s
t 
K

e
n
t 
H

o
u
s
in

g
  

•
 

M
o
a
t 

1
.3

.4
 

G
iv

e
 a

 b
e
tt
e
r 

s
ta

rt
 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 e

a
rl
y
 

in
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

fo
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 0

-5
 a

n
d
 

th
e
ir
 p

a
re

n
ts

 

•
 

S
e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

to
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
 a

 d
ir
e
c
to

ry
 o

f 
e
a
rl
y
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 a
n
d
 d

iv
e
rs

io
n
a
ry

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 

fo
r 

y
o
u
n
g

 p
e
o
p
le

, 
fa

m
ili

e
s
 a

n
d
 f
ro

n
t 

lin
e
 

p
ra

c
ti
ti
o
n
e
rs

. 

L
e
a
d

: 
S

e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

•
 

K
C

H
T

 C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 

Y
o
u
n
g

 P
e
o
p
le

s
 T

e
a
m

 

•
 

K
IA

S
S

•
 

H
A

T
 

•
 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 C
e
n
tr

e
s
 

1
.3

.5
 

H
e
lp

 y
o
u
n
g

 
p
e
o
p
le

 t
o
 f
e
e
l 
s
a
fe

 f
ro

m
 

b
u
lly

in
g

 a
t 
h
o
m

e
, 

a
t 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
a
n
d
 b

e
 s

a
fe

 o
n
 

th
e
 i
n
te

rn
e
t 

•
 

K
e
n
t 

C
o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 T

e
a
m

, 
S

e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 U

n
it
 a

n
d
 K

e
n
t 

P
o
lic

e
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 i
n
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 t
o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 

c
y
b
e
r 

b
u
lly

in
g

 a
n
d
 i
n
te

rn
e
t 

s
a
fe

ty
. 

L
e
a
d
: 

S
D

C
, 
K

C
C

 a
n
d
 K

e
n
t 

P
o
lic

e
 

•
 

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 

1
.4

 
E

n
c

o
u

ra
g

e
 a

c
c

e
s
s

 t
o

 h
e

a
lt

h
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 f

o
r 

a
ll

(H
ig

h
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 f
o

r 
S

e
v
e

n
o

a
k

s
 D

is
tr

ic
t)

1
.4

.1
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 

to
 G

P
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 t
o
 

h
o
s
p
it
a
ls

, 
p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 i
n
 

ru
ra

l 
a
re

a
s
 

•
 

In
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
G

P
 s

u
rg

e
ri
e
s
 t
o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 s

u
rg

e
ry

 h
o
u
rs

 i
n

 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 C

C
G

 a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

, 
fo

c
u
s
s
in

g
 o

n
 

th
e
 p

o
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

la
te

 n
ig

h
t 

a
n
d
 w

e
e
k
e
n
d
 o

p
e
n
in

g
 

h
o
u
rs

. 

•
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
te

rn
e
t 
b
o
o
k
in

g
 a

n
d
 p

a
ti
e
n
t 
fa

c
ili

ti
e
s
 f

o
r 

G
P

 s
u
rg

e
ri
e
s

L
e
a
d

: 
C

li
n

ic
a
l 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 g

ro
u

p
s

•
 

P
a
ti
e
n
t 

P
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 

G
ro

u
p
s
 

1
.4

.2
 

M
a
k
in

g
 m

o
re

 
•
 

E
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 h

e
a
lt
h
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
ls

 t
o
 l
o
o
k
 a

t 
L

e
a
d

: 
C

C
G

’s

Agenda Item 7

Page 48



S
E

V
E

N
O

A
K

S
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 ‘
M

IN
D

 T
H

E
 G

A
P

’ 
P

L
A

N
 -

  
B

u
ild

in
g
 b

ri
d
g
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
tt
e
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

3
9

 

A
c
ti

o
n

H
o

w
 

K
e

y
 P

a
rt

n
e
r(

s
)

P
ro

g
re

s
s
/T

a
rg

e
ts

lo
c
a
lis

e
d
 –

 b
ri
n
g

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 o

u
t 

o
f 

tr
a
d
it
io

n
a
l 
s
e
tt

in
g

s
.

a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 v

e
n
u
e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
ir
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
fo

r 
e
x
a
m

p
le

 
e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
in

g
 G

P
’s

 t
o
 u

s
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 C
e
n
tr

e
s
 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
’s

 c
lin

ic
s
, 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 c

e
n
tr

e
s
 a

n
d
 h

a
lls

 

•
 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 C
e
n
tr

e
 

•
 

S
e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

•
 

T
o
w

n
/P

a
ri
s
h
 C

o
u
n
c
ils

 

1
.4

.3
 

P
ro

v
id

e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 
fo

r 
v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 g
ro

u
p
s
 t
o
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 h

e
a
lt
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

•
 

W
o
rk

 w
it
h
 L

e
a
rn

in
g
 D

is
a
b
ili

ty
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

, 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 g

ro
u
p
s
 a

n
d
 S

e
n
io

rs
 A

c
ti
o
n
s
 F

o
ru

m
 t
o
 

p
ro

m
o
te

 h
e
a
lt
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 l
o
c
a
l/
n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 

c
a
m

p
a
ig

n
s
. 

•
 

P
ro

m
o
te

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 t

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 s
c
h
e
m

e
s
 t
o
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 
liv

in
g

 i
n
 r

u
ra

l 
a
n
d
 i
s
o
la

te
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 t

o
 e

n
a
b
le

 
th

e
m

 t
o
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 m

e
d
ic

a
l 
a
p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
ts

  

L
e
a
d
: 

S
e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

•
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 
S

c
h
e
m

e
s
 

•
 

K
C

C
 

•
 

V
A

W
K

 

•
 

S
e
n
io

rs
 A

c
ti
o
n
 F

o
ru

m
 

•
 

L
e
a
rn

in
g
 D

is
a
b
ili

ty
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 

•
 

G
P

’s
 

1
.1

.5
 

P
ro

m
o

te
 H

e
a

lt
h

y
 W

e
ig

h
t 

fo
r 

C
h

il
d

re
n

 (
H

ig
h

 p
ri

o
ri

ty
 f

o
r 

S
e

v
e

n
o

a
k

s
 D

is
tr

ic
t)

1
.5

.1
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 p
a
re

n
ts

 
a
n
d
 c

h
ild

re
n
 t
o
 

m
a
in

ta
in

 a
 h

e
a
lt
h
y
 

w
e

ig
h
t 

•
 

S
e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

to
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 5

0
 f
a
m

ili
e

s
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e
 F

a
m

ily
 W

e
ig

h
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

•
 

K
e
n
t 

A
d
u
lt
 E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 r

u
n
 f

a
m

ily
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 e
x
e
rc

is
e
 

a
n
d
 h

e
a
lt
h
y
 e

a
ti
n
g

 w
o
rk

s
h
o
p
s
 

L
e
a
d

: 
S

e
v
e
n

o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o

u
n

c
il

 &
 K

e
n

t 
A

d
u

lt
 

E
d

u
c
a
ti

o
n

•
 

K
C

H
T

 C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 

Y
o
u
n
g

 p
e
o
p
le

 T
e
a
m

 

•
 

K
C

C
 P

u
b
lic

 H
e
a
lt
h
 

•
 

K
C

C
 E

a
rl
y
 

In
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 T

e
a
m

 

•
 

S
c
h
o
o
l 
L
e
a
d
s
 a

n
d
 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
n
u
rs

e
s
 

1
.5

.2
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 

in
te

ra
c
ti
o
n
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 

p
a
re

n
ts

 a
n
d
 c

h
ild

re
n
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 h

e
a
lt
h
y
 

lif
e
s
ty

le
s
 a

n
d
 a

c
ti
v
e
 

p
la

y

•
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

 t
o
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 C

h
ild

re
n
s
 C

e
n
tr

e
s
 t
o
 o

ff
e
r 

in
te

ra
c
ti
v
e
 p

la
y
 a

n
d
 l
e
a
rn

 s
e
s
s
io

n
s
 f
o
r 

p
a
re

n
ts

 a
n
d

 
th

e
ir
 c

h
ild

re
n
 (

0
-5

 y
e
a
r 

o
ld

s
) 

•
 

S
e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

to
 r

u
n
 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 e

x
e
rc

is
e
 

a
n
d
 h

e
a
lt
h
y
 e

a
ti
n
g

 s
e
s
s
io

n
s
 w

it
h
 C

h
ild

re
n
s
 C

e
n
tr

e
s
, 

fo
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

 F
a
th

e
rs

 P
ro

je
c
ts

, 
A

c
ti
v
e
 P

la
y
, 

c
o
o
k
e
ry

 

L
e
a
d

: 
C

h
il
d

re
n

’s
 C

e
n

tr
e

•
 

S
e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

•
 

K
C

C
 

•
 

S
o
u
th

 E
a
s
t 

D
a
n
c
e
 

K
C

H
T

 

2
.1

  
 I

m
p

ro
v
e

 e
d

u
c

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

a
tt

a
in

m
e

n
t 

p
a
rt

ic
u

la
rl

y
 a

t 
G

C
S

E
 l

e
v
e

l
(H

ig
h

 p
ri

o
ri

ty
 f

o
r 

S
e

v
e

n
o

a
k

s
 D

is
tr

ic
t)

2
.1

.1
 E

n
a
b
le

 m
o
re

 
y
o
u
n
g

 p
e
o
p
le

 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 

th
e
ir
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 

•
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 r

e
c
o
g

n
it
io

n
 i
n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
 t
o
 s

c
h
o
o
l 

re
c
o
g

n
it
io

n
, 
th

ro
u
g

h
 o

u
tr

e
a
c
h
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 

th
e
 H

O
U

S
E

 p
ro

je
c
ts

, 
y
o
u
th

 g
ro

u
p
s
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
th

 

L
e
a
d

: 
W

e
s
t 

K
e
n

t 
E

x
tr

a

•
 

T
o
w

n
/P

a
ri
s
h
 C

o
u
n
c
ils

 

•
 

V
A

W
K

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 49



S
E

V
E

N
O

A
K

S
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 ‘
M

IN
D

 T
H

E
 G

A
P

’ 
P

L
A

N
 -

  
B

u
ild

in
g
 b

ri
d
g
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
tt
e
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

4
0

 

A
c
ti

o
n

H
o

w
 

K
e

y
 P

a
rt

n
e
r(

s
)

P
ro

g
re

s
s
/T

a
rg

e
ts

re
c
o
g

n
iz

e
d
. 

F
o
ru

m
s
. 

•
 

P
o
s
it
iv

e
 f

o
c
u
s
 o

n
 y

o
u
n
g

 p
e
o
p
le

 i
n
 t

h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
re

s
s
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 m

e
s
s
a
g
e
s
 

•
 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
w

id
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

a
n
d
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 

w
o
rk

 w
it
h
 y

o
u
n
g

 p
e
o
p
le

 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
w

a
rd

 s
c
h
e
m

e
s
 f

o
r 

y
o
u
n
g

 p
e
o
p
le

 t
o
 b

e
 p

ro
m

o
te

d
. 

•
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

 w
it
h
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 y

o
u
n
g

 p
e
o
p
le

 t
o
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
 t
h
e
m

 a
b
o
u
t 
b
e
s
t 
re

w
a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 h

o
w

 t
h
e
y
 w

a
n
t 

th
e
ir
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 r
e
c
o
g

n
is

e
d
. 

•
 

S
e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

•
 

S
e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 A

re
a
 M

in
d

 

•
 

Y
o
u
th

 F
o
ru

m
s
 

•
 

K
C

C
 Y

o
u
th

 P
ro

v
id

e
rs

 

2
.1

.2
 B

u
ild

 i
n
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 
a
n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

it
h
in

 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 f
o
r 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 
y
o
u
n
g

 p
e
o
p
le

 t
o
 

e
n
g

a
g

e
  

•
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 r

e
fe

rr
a
ls

 f
ro

m
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 h

e
a
lt
h
 

p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
ls

 t
o
 d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 a

b
u
s
e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

•
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
 r

e
fe

rr
a
l 
p
a
th

w
a

y
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 h

e
a
lt
h
 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 a
n
d
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 C

A
F

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

•
 

S
e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

to
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 V

A
W

K
 t
o
 

d
e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 S

A
F

E
 p

ro
je

c
t 
in

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 

D
is

tr
ic

t 

L
e
a
d

: 
S

D
C

, 
K

C
H

T
 a

n
d

 
K

C
C

•
 

K
C

H
T

 C
h
ild

re
n
s
 &

 
Y

o
u
n
g

 P
e
o
p
le

s
 T

e
a
m

 

•
 

S
c
h
o
o
l 
n
u
rs

e
s
 

•
 

K
IA

S
S

 

•
 

V
A

W
K

 

•
 

S
D

C
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

S
a
fe

ty
 U

n
it
 

•
 

K
C

C
 E

a
rl
y
 

In
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 T

e
a
m

 

•
 

K
e
n
t 

P
o
lic

e
 

2
.1

.3
 M

a
n
a
g

e
 a

n
d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 n
o
n
-

a
tt

e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

•
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 r

e
fe

rr
a
ls

 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 

•
Y

o
u
n
g

 c
a
re

rs
 t
o
 b

e
 r

e
fe

rr
e
d
 t

o
 C

o
m

m
o
n
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 

•
 

T
h
e
 T

ro
u
b
le

d
 F

a
m

ili
e
s
 P

ro
je

c
t 
to

 t
a
rg

e
t 
th

e
 m

o
s
t 

a
b
s
e
n
t 

p
u
p
ils

 a
n
d
 o

ff
e
r 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 

L
e
a
d

: 
K

C
C

•
 

K
C

C
 E

a
rl
y
 I

n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 

te
a
m

 

•
 

K
C

H
T

 C
h
ild

re
n
s
  

y
o
u
n
g

 P
e
o
p
le

s
 T

e
a
m

 

•
 

S
e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

•
 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 C
e
n
tr

e
 

•
 

S
c
h
o
o
l 
N

u
rs

e
s
 

•
 

K
e
n
t 

S
o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

2
.2

  
 R

e
d

u
c

e
 r

is
k

 t
a

k
in

g
 b

e
h

a
v
io

u
rs

 i
n

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

2
.2

.1
 D

iv
e
rt

 c
h
ild

re
n
 

a
n
d
 y

o
u
n
g

 p
e
o
p
le

 f
ro

m
 

c
ri
m

e
 a

n
d
 a

n
ti
-s

o
c
ia

l 
b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

•
 

A
n
ti
 S

o
c
ia

l 
B

e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

T
a
s
k
 G

ro
u
p
 a

n
d
 K

e
n
t 

C
o
u
n
ty

 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

C
h
ild

re
n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
to

 w
o
rk

 w
it
h
 f

a
m

ili
e
s
 

w
h
e
re

 p
o
s
s
ib

le
, 

ra
th

e
r 

th
a
n
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 t

o
 d

e
a
l 
w

it
h
 

a
n
ti
-s

o
c
ia

l 
b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r.

 

L
e
a
d

:
S

e
v
e
n

o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o

u
n

c
il
 

•
 

S
D

C
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

S
a
fe

ty
 t

e
a
m

 

•
 

K
C

C
 E

a
rl
y
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 50



S
E

V
E

N
O

A
K

S
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 ‘
M

IN
D

 T
H

E
 G

A
P

’ 
P

L
A

N
 -

  
B

u
ild

in
g
 b

ri
d
g
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
tt
e
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

4
1

 

A
c
ti

o
n

H
o

w
 

K
e

y
 P

a
rt

n
e
r(

s
)

P
ro

g
re

s
s
/T

a
rg

e
ts

•
 

W
o
rk

 w
it
h
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 m

o
re

 a
c
ti
v
e
ly

 t
o
 f

in
d
 

s
o
lu

ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 A

S
B

 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 P

A
C

T
 P

a
n
e
ls

 

In
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 T

e
a
m

 

•
 

K
e
n
t 

P
o
lic

e
 

•
 

K
e
n
t 

P
ro

b
a
ti
o
n
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

•
 

P
A

C
T

 P
a
n
e
ls

 

2
.2

.2
 S

p
e
c
ia

lis
t 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 
fo

r 
a
lc

o
h
o
l 
a
n
d
 d

ru
g

 
m

is
u
s
e
 

•
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
o
rk

in
g

 w
it
h
 y

o
u
th

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

o
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 f
o
c
u
s
 o

n
 a

lc
o
h
o
l 
a
n
d
 d

ru
g
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d

: 
K

e
n

w
a
rd

 T
ru

s
t

•
 

S
e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

•
 

T
ra

d
in

g
 S

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 

•
 

K
e
n
t 

P
o
lic

e
 

•
 

K
C

C
 E

a
rl
y
 

In
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 T

e
a
m

 

2
.2

.3
 P

ro
m

o
te

 p
e
e
r 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 y

o
u
th

 p
e
e
r 

e
d
u
c
a
to

r,
 S

A
F

E
, 
h
e
a
lt
h
 

c
h
a
m

p
io

n
s
 e

tc
. 

•
 

S
e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 
to

 w
o
rk

 w
it
h
 V

A
W

K
 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

S
A

F
E

 p
ro

je
c
t 

in
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 

•
 

Y
o
u
n
g

 p
e
o
p
le

s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 t
o
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 y

o
u
th

 g
ro

u
p
s
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
n
d
 t
ra

in
in

g
 

p
e
e
r 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 v
o
lu

n
te

e
rs

 a
m

o
n
g

s
t 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 

L
e
a
d

: 
S

e
v
e
n

o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o

u
n

c
il

•
 

K
C

C
 

•
 

K
C

H
T

 C
&

Y
P

 T
e
a
m

 

•
 

V
A

W
K

 

•
 

K
IA

S
S

 

•
 

H
O

U
S

E
 P

ro
je

c
ts

 

•
 

S
R

E
 S

c
h
o
o
l 
L
e
a
d
s
 

2
.3

  
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 o

ld
e

r 
p

e
o

p
le

 t
o

 k
e
e

p
 t

h
e

m
 s

a
fe

, 
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 l
iv

in
g

 f
u

lf
il

le
d

 l
iv

e
s

 (
H

ig
h

 p
ri

o
ri

ty
 f

o
r 

S
e

v
e

n
o

a
k

s
 D

is
tr

ic
t)

2
.3

.1
 P

ro
v
id

e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 

h
e
a
lt
h
y
 l
if
e
s
ty

le
 

in
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 e

n
a
b
le

 
o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 t
o
 r

e
m

a
in

 
h
e
a
lt
h
ie

r 
a
n
d
 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

•
 

S
e
n
io

rs
 A

c
ti
o
n
 F

o
ru

m
 t
o
 c

a
m

p
a
ig

n
 o

n
 o

ld
e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

s
 

is
s
u
e
s
 a

n
d
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

 o
f 

5
0
0
 

•
 

S
e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

to
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 r

u
n
 

ta
rg

e
te

d
 c

h
a
ir
 b

a
s
e
d
 y

o
g
a
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
 

a
re

a
s
 (

3
 a

c
ro

s
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t)

. 

•
 

S
e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

to
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

H
e
a
lt
h
 W

a
lk

s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 D

is
tr

ic
t 
(8

 w
a
lk

s
 p

e
r 

w
e
e
k
)

•
 

S
e
n
c
io

 t
o
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
ir
 o

v
e
r 

5
0
’s

 P
ri
m

e
 

T
im

e
 e

x
e
rc

is
e
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 (

o
v
e
r 

1
,2

0
0
 a

tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
s
 

p
a
) 

L
e
a
d

: 
S

e
v
e
n

o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o

u
n

c
il

•
 

S
e
n
io

rs
 A

c
ti
o
n
 F

o
ru

m
 

•
 

K
C

C
 

•
 

S
e
n
c
io

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

L
e
is

u
re

 

•
 

H
A

T
 

2
.3

.2
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
w

o
rk

in
g
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
n
d
 

p
ro

m
o
te

 s
e
lf
 h

e
lp

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

•
 

K
e
n
t 

H
o
m

e
 L

ib
ra

ry
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 r

e
fe

rr
a
ls

 

•
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 t
o
 f

a
c
ili

ta
te

 E
x
p
e
rt

 P
a
ti
e
n
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 f

o
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 l
o
n
g
 t

e
rm

 
c
o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 

•
 

C
C

G
’s

 t
o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 a
n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 s

e
lf
 c

a
re

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 

a
n
d
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 w

it
h
in

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 a

n
d
 h

o
m

e
 s

e
tt
in

g
s
 

L
e
a
d

: 
K

C
C

 &
 G

P
’s

•
 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
N

u
rs

e
s
 

•
 

K
C

C
 L

ib
ra

ri
e
s
 

•
 

C
C

G
’s

 

•
 

K
e
n
t 

P
u
b
lic

 H
e
a
lt
h
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 51



S
E

V
E

N
O

A
K

S
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 ‘
M

IN
D

 T
H

E
 G

A
P

’ 
P

L
A

N
 -

  
B

u
ild

in
g
 b

ri
d
g
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
tt
e
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

4
2

 

A
c
ti

o
n

H
o

w
 

K
e

y
 P

a
rt

n
e
r(

s
)

P
ro

g
re

s
s
/T

a
rg

e
ts

2
.3

.3
 I

n
c
re

a
s
e
 

re
fe

rr
a
ls

 f
o

r 
h

o
m

e
 

a
d

a
p

ta
ti

o
n

s
 a

n
d

 f
a
ll

s
 

p
re

v
e
n

ti
o

n
 p

a
th

w
a
y
s
 

to
 r

e
d

u
c
e
 t

h
e
 r

is
k
 o

f 
fa

ll
s
 

•
 

P
ro

v
id

e
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
r 

m
e
n
to

rs
 t
o
 h

e
lp

 p
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 

d
is

a
b
ili

ti
e
s
 t

o
 l
iv

e
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
tl
y
 

•
 

P
ro

m
o
te

 f
u
n
d
in

g
, 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 D

is
a
b
le

d
 

F
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 G

ra
n
ts

 f
o
r 

h
o
m

e
 a

d
a
p
ta

ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 S

D
C

, 
K

C
C

 a
n
d
 H

o
m

e
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
A

g
e
n
c
y
 

•
 

W
o
rk

 i
n
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
 f
a
lls

 p
a
th

w
a
y
 i
n
to

 
p
o
s
tu

ra
l 
s
ta

b
ili

ty
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

•
 

S
D

C
 t

o
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 o

p
e
ra

te
 f
a
lls

 p
re

v
e
n
ti
o
n
 c

la
s
s
e

s
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

L
e
a
d

: 
K

C
C

 &
 S

D
C

•
 

S
D

C
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 T

e
a
m

 

•
 

H
A

T
 

•
 

A
g

e
 U

K
 

•
 

K
C

C
 S

o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

•
 

W
e
s
t 
K

e
n
t 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 

•
 

G
P

’s
 &

 C
C

G
’s

 

•
 

A
c
u
te

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

•
 

V
A

W
K

 

•
 

K
C

H
T

  

2
.3

.4
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 o

ld
e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 a
n

d
 

v
u

ln
e
ra

b
le

 p
e
o

p
le

 t
o

 
re

m
a
in

 i
n

 t
h

e
ir

 o
w

n
 

h
o

m
e
s
 a

n
d

 l
iv

e
 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e
n

tl
y
 

•
 

R
e
d
u
c
e
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

in
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 c
a
re

 t
h
a
t 
is

 
re

s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
ra

th
e
r 

th
a
n
 o

w
n
 h

o
m

e
s
 

•
 

W
e
s
t 
K

e
n
t 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 C

a
re

 N
a
v
ig

a
to

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e
. 

 S
ig

n
p
o
s
ti
n
g

 h
e
lp

 w
it
h
 v

is
it
s
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 
p
la

n
s
 a

n
d
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

p
ro

m
o
te

 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

•
 

C
o
m

e
 A

n
d
 M

e
e
t 

E
a
c
h
 O

th
e
r 

(C
A

M
E

O
) 

p
ro

je
c
t 
fr

o
m

 
V

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 A

c
ti
o
n
 W

it
h
in

 K
e
n
t 

to
 b

e
 r

u
n
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 

D
is

tr
ic

t

•
 

E
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 m

o
re

 o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 t
o
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
r 

a
n
d
 

p
ro

m
o
te

 s
ta

y
in

g
 a

c
ti
v
e

•
 

P
ro

v
id

e
r 

in
te

rn
e
t 
tr

a
in

in
g
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 e
n
a
b
le

 o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
tt

e
r 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 o

n
lin

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s

L
e
a
d

: 
K

C
C

•
 

V
A

W
K

 

•
 

W
e
s
t 
K

e
n
t 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 

•
 

A
g

e
 U

K
 

•
 

S
e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 

T
e
a
m

 

•
 

S
D

C
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

S
a
fe

ty
 U

n
it
 

•
 

K
e
n
t 

A
d
u
lt
 E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

3
.1

Im
p

ro
v
e

 c
h

a
n

c
e

s
 o

f 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
p

e
o

p
le

 f
a

c
in

g
 d

is
a

d
v
a

n
ta

g
e

3
.1

.1
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
 t
ra

in
in

g
, 

s
k
ill

s
 a

n
d
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 
d
is

a
d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
d
, 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 g
ro

u
p
s
 a

n
d
 

p
e
o
p
le

 o
n
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 

•
 

S
D

C
 c

o
-o

rd
in

a
te

s
 a

 q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

tr
a
in

in
g
 f

o
ru

m
 f
o
r 

lo
c
a
l 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 t
o
 w

o
rk

 t
o
g

e
th

e
r 

to
 

a
d
d
re

s
s
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
is

s
u
e
s
. 

•
 

S
D

C
’s

 E
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
to

 a
rr

a
n
g

e
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
e
 

tr
a
in

in
g
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 t
o
 h

e
lp

 e
m

p
lo

y
e
rs

 t
ra

in
 s

ta
ff

. 

•
 

W
o
rk

 w
it
h
 J

o
b
 C

e
n
tr

e
 P

lu
s
 t

o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 c
a
n
d
id

a
te

s
 b

y
 

p
ro

m
o
ti
n
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 f

a
ir
s
 f
o
r 

p
re

-
w

o
rk

 r
e
a
d
in

e
s
s
 t
ra

in
in

g
. 

•
 

G
re

a
te

r 
tr

a
in

in
g
 f

o
r 

th
o
s
e
 a

ff
e
c
te

d
 b

y
 D

y
s
le

x
ia

 

L
e
a
d

: 
S

e
v
e
n

o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o

u
n

c
il

•
 

J
o
b
 C

e
n
tr

e
 p

lu
s
 

•
 

M
o
a
t 

 

•
 

W
e
s
t 
K

e
n
t 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 

•
 

S
D

C
 H

e
ro

 P
ro

je
c
t 

•
 

C
h
a
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

c
o
m

m
e
rc

e
 

•
 

C
o
lle

g
e
s
 

3
.1

.2
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 l
o
c
a
l 
 

c
h
a
ri
ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 g

ro
u
p
s
 t

o
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 a
d
u
lt
s
 w

it
h
 

•
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 c

h
a
ri
ti
e
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 t

h
e
 S

im
o
n
 P

a
u
l 

fo
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 F

u
tu

re
s
, 

w
h
ic

h
 h

e
lp

s
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 p
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a
n
d
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 d

is
a
b
ili

ti
e
s
 

•
 

P
ro

v
id

e
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 s
k
ill

s
 a

n
d
 t
ra

in
in

g
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f
o
r 

L
e
a
d

: 
S

e
v
e
n

o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o

u
n

c
il

•
 

K
C

C
 L

ib
ra

ri
e
s
 

•
 

C
o
lle

g
e
s
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 52



S
E

V
E

N
O

A
K

S
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 ‘
M

IN
D

 T
H

E
 G

A
P

’ 
P

L
A

N
 -

  
B

u
ild

in
g
 b

ri
d
g
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
tt
e
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

4
3

 

A
c
ti

o
n

H
o

w
 

K
e

y
 P

a
rt

n
e
r(

s
)

P
ro

g
re

s
s
/T

a
rg

e
ts

d
is

a
b
ili

ti
e
s
 i
n
to

 w
o
rk

 
a
n
d
 t
ra

in
in

g
 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 g
ro

u
p
s
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 n

e
e
d
s
 

•
 

C
re

a
te

 b
e
tt

e
r 

lin
k
s
 a

n
d
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 w

it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
rs

 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 

•
 

V
A

W
K

 

•
 

L
e
a
rn

in
g
 D

is
a
b
ili

ti
e
s
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 

•
 

S
im

o
n
 P

a
u
l 

F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

•
 

L
o
c
a
l 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 

•
 

W
e
s
t 
K

e
n
t 
E

x
tr

a
 

3
.2

  
 I

n
c

re
a

s
e

 p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 i
n

 f
u

ll
ti

m
e

 e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
, 
e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
o

r 
tr

a
in

in
g

(H
ig

h
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 f
o

r 
S

e
v
e

n
o

a
k

s
 

D
is

tr
ic

t)
3
.2

.1
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 1

6
-1

8
 

y
e
a
r 

o
ld

s
 i
n

to
 t

ra
in

in
g

 
o

r 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 

•
 

T
o
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 J

o
b
 C

e
n
tr

e
 P

lu
s
 t

o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 t
ra

in
in

g
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 l
o
c
a
lly

. 

•
 

S
D

C
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 K

e
n
t 

F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 
y
o
u
n
g

 e
n
tr

e
p
re

n
e
u
rs

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 d

is
tr

ic
t

•
 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 N

o
rt

h
 W

e
s
t 

K
e
n
t 

C
o
lle

g
e
 a

n
d
 K

 C
o
lle

g
e
 t

o
 b

ri
n
g

 t
o
g

e
th

e
r 

y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le

 a
n
d
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
.

•
 

W
o
rk

 w
it
h
 H

O
U

S
E

 p
ro

je
c
ts

 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 n
e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
 t

ra
in

in
g

 a
n
d
 s

k
ill

s
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
. 
A

n
d
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 l
in

k
s
 t
o
 c

a
re

e
r 

a
n
d
 t
ra

in
in

g
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

.

L
e
a
d

: 
J
o

b
 C

e
n

tr
e
 P

lu
s

•
 

S
e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

•
 

N
o
rt

h
 W

e
s
t 

K
e
n
t 

C
o
lle

g
e
 

•
 

T
h
e
 K

e
n
t 
F

o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

•
 

C
h
a
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
o
m

m
e
rc

e
 

•
 

K
 C

o
lle

g
e
 

•
 

V
A

W
K

 

•
 

H
O

U
S

E
 

•
 

K
IA

S
S

 

•
 

J
o
b
 C

e
n
tr

e
 p

lu
s
 

3
.2

.2
 I

n
c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e
 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

p
e
o

p
le

 
a
c
c
e
s
s
in

g
 

a
p

p
re

n
ti

c
e
s
h

ip
 a

n
d

 
g

ra
d

u
a
te

 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 

•
 

S
D

C
 t

o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
m

 t
o
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

p
p
re

n
ti
c
e
s
h
ip

s
 a

n
d
 t
ra

in
in

g
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
.

•
 

P
ro

m
o
te

 w
e
b
s
it
e
s
 a

n
d
 a

g
e
n
c
ie

s
 w

h
ic

h
 o

ff
e
r 

a
p
p
re

n
ti
c
e
s
h
ip

s
. 

•
 

P
ro

m
o
te

 K
e
n
t 

C
o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

a
p
p
re

n
ti
c
e
s
h
ip

s
 

S
c
h
e
m

e
. 

•
 

S
D

C
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 V

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 A

c
ti
o
n
 W

it
h
in

 K
e
n
t 

(V
A

W
K

) 
o
n
 t
h
e
 G

ra
d
u
a
te

 V
o
lu

n
te

e
ri
n
g

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

L
e
a
d

: 
S

e
v
e
n

o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o

u
n

c
il
 

•
 

K
C

C
 

•
 

N
o
rt

h
 W

e
s
t 

K
e
n
t 

C
o
lle

g
e
s
 

•
 

V
A

W
K

 

•
 

J
o
b
 C

e
n
tr

e
 p

lu
s
 

•
 

C
X

K
 

•
 

K
IA

S
S

 

3
.3

  
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 b

u
s

in
e
s
s

e
s

 t
o

 h
a

v
e

 h
e

a
lt

h
y
 w

o
rk

p
la

c
e

s
3
.3

.1
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 
e
m

p
lo

y
e
rs

 o
 c

re
a
te

 
h
e
a
lt
h
y
 w

o
rk

 p
la

c
e
s
 

a
n
d
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

s
ta

ff
. 

•
 

S
D

C
 w

ill
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 g

ro
w

th
 a

n
d
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t,

 s
ta

rt
 u

p
 a

n
d
 h

o
m

e
 w

o
rk

in
g

. 

•
 

N
H

S
 H

e
a
lt
h
 c

h
e
c
k
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 t

o
 b

e
 t
a
k
e
n
 i
n
to

 
w

o
rk

p
la

c
e
s
 t
o
 o

ff
e
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
y
 l
if
e
s
ty

le
 a

d
v
ic

e
 t

o
 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s
. 

L
e
a
d

: 
S

e
v
e
n

o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o

u
n

c
il

•
 

K
C

C
 

•
 

K
C

H
T

 

•
 

C
h
a
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

Agenda Item 7

Page 53



S
E

V
E

N
O

A
K

S
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 ‘
M

IN
D

 T
H

E
 G

A
P

’ 
P

L
A

N
 -

  
B

u
ild

in
g
 b

ri
d
g
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
tt
e
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

4
4

 

A
c
ti

o
n

H
o

w
 

K
e

y
 P

a
rt

n
e
r(

s
)

P
ro

g
re

s
s
/T

a
rg

e
ts

•
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 W
o
rk

p
la

c
e
 

W
e
llb

e
in

g
 C

h
a
rt

e
r.

  

•
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 S

m
o
k
e
-F

re
e
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 A

w
a
rd

s
 t

o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 

p
re

v
a
le

n
c
e
 o

f 
s
m

o
k
in

g
 a

m
o
n
g

 w
o
rk

e
rs

  
 

C
o
m

m
e
rc

e
 

3
.3

.2
 P

la
c
e
 

d
e
fi
b
ri
lla

to
rs

 a
s
 

A
u
to

m
a
te

d
 E

x
te

rn
a
l 

D
e
fi
b
ri
lla

to
rs

 i
n
 

w
o
rk

p
la

c
e
s
, 
o
r 

P
u
b
lic

 
A

c
c
e
s
s
 D

e
fi
b
ri
lla

to
rs

 i
n
 

p
u
b
lic

 a
re

a
s
 

•
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 S
o
u
th

 E
a
s
t 
C

o
a
s
t 

A
m

b
u
la

n
c
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

c
a
m

p
a
ig

n
 f
o
r 

P
u
b
lic

 A
c
c
e
s
s
 d

e
fi
b
ri
lla

to
rs

 a
c
ro

s
s
 

K
e
n
t 

•
 

S
e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

S
e
n
io

rs
 A

c
ti
o
n
 F

o
ru

m
 a

re
 

c
a
m

p
a
ig

n
in

g
 f

o
r 

fu
n
d
s
 a

n
d
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 

S
e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t.
 

•
 

C
h
a
ri
ti
e
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 t
h
e
 B

ri
ti
s
h
 H

e
a
rt

 F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 a

re
 

a
ls

o
 w

o
rk

in
g
 t
o
 r

is
e
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 a

n
d
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
. 

•
 

S
e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

C
o
o
rd

in
a
ti
n
g
 d

e
fi
b
 a

n
d
 

b
a
s
ic

 f
ir
s
t 

a
id

 t
ra

in
in

g
 f
o
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
. 
 

L
e
a
d

: 
S

e
v
e
n

o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o

u
n

c
il
 

•
 

S
e
n
io

rs
 A

c
ti
o
n
 F

o
ru

m
 

•
 

S
o
u
th

 E
a
s
t 

C
o
a
s
t 

A
m

b
u
la

n
c
e
  

•
 

B
H

F
 

4
.1

  
 P

ro
v
id

e
 t

h
e

 r
ig

h
t 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
t 

th
e

 r
ig

h
t 

ti
m

e
 i

n
c
lu

d
in

g
 f

in
a

n
c

ia
l 

c
a

p
a

c
it

y
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 i
n

c
lu

s
io

n
4
.1

.1
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 p
e
o
p
le

 i
n
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
in

g
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 a
n
d
 

in
 t

h
e
 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 t

o
 

u
n
iv

e
rs

a
l 
c
re

d
it
 

•
 

S
e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

to
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 H

o
u
s
in

g
, 

E
n
e
rg

y
 a

n
d
 R

e
tr

a
in

in
g

 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 (

H
E

R
O

) 
p
ro

je
c
t 
to

 
p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 h
o
lis

ti
c
 a

d
v
ic

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 t

o
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 
p
e
o
p
le

. 
 

•
 

T
h
e
 H

E
R

O
 p

ro
je

c
t 
is

 d
e
liv

e
re

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 s

u
rg

e
ri
e
s
 i
n

 
ru

ra
l 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
o
u
tl
y
in

g
 a

re
a
s
 

re
c
e
iv

e
 t

h
e
 s

a
m

e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
s
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
a
re

a
s
. 

L
e
a
d

: 
S

e
v
e
n

o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o

u
n

c
il
 

•
 

W
e
s
t 
K

e
n
t 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 

•
 

M
o
a
t 

 

•
 

K
C

C
 /

 C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 
C

e
n
tr

e
 

4
.1

.2
 P

ro
v
id

e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 
a
n
d
 a

d
v
ic

e
 f

o
r 

fa
m

ili
e
s
 

re
g

a
rd

in
g

 b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 a
n
d
 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t.
 

•
 

W
e
s
t 
K

e
n
t 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 –

 F
u
n
d
in

g
 f
o
r 

a
 p

o
s
t 
u
n
d
e
r 

th
e
 

O
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 d

e
b
t 

a
d
v
ic

e
, 

m
a
k
in

g
 b

e
tt

e
r 

u
s
e
 o

f 
s
to

c
k
, 

a
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g

in
g
 t

h
e
 

u
n
d
e
r 

3
5
’s

 a
g

e
 b

ra
c
k
e
t.
 

•
 

L
a
n
d
lo

rd
s
 o

ff
e
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
ir
 f

la
ts

 a
s
 H

o
u
s
e
s
 o

f 
M

u
lt
ip

le
 

O
c
c
u
p
a
n
c
y
 (

H
M

O
) 

fo
r 

fi
v
e
 y

e
a
rs

 i
n
 S

w
a
n
le

y
 a

s
 a

n
 

e
x
p
e
ri
m

e
n
t.
 

L
e
a
d

:
W

e
s
t 

K
e
n

t 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 

•
 

S
e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

•
 

L
a
n
d
lo

rd
s
 

•
 

M
o
a
t 

•
 

H
IA

 

4
.1

.3
 I

n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 

a
s
s
is

t 
o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 t
o
 

d
o
w

n
-s

iz
e
 t

o
 m

o
re

 
a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 a
n
d
 s

u
it
a
b
le

 
a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 

•
 

D
e
liv

e
r 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 U

n
d
e
r-

O
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
 A

c
ti
o
n

 
P

la
n
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 t

o
 o

ff
e
r 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
fi
n
a

n
c
ia

l 
in

c
e
n
ti
v
e
s
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 w
it
h
 r

e
m

o
v
a
ls

 c
o
s
ts

 e
tc

. 

•
 

J
o
in

t 
fu

n
d
e
d
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

a
p
p
o
in

te
d
 f

o
r 

a
n
 i
n
it
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

to
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 d
o
w

n
-s

iz
in

g
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 

•
 

P
ro

v
id

e
 a

 h
a
n
d
-h

o
ld

in
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 a
n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 

L
e
a
d

: 
S

D
C

 H
o

u
s
in

g

•
 

W
e
s
t 
K

e
n
t 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 

•
 

M
o
a
t 

•
 

L
a
n
d
lo

rd
s
 

•
 

K
C

C
 

•
 

H
IA

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 54



S
E

V
E

N
O

A
K

S
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 ‘
M

IN
D

 T
H

E
 G

A
P

’ 
P

L
A

N
 -

  
B

u
ild

in
g
 b

ri
d
g
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
tt
e
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

4
5

 

A
c
ti

o
n

H
o

w
 

K
e

y
 P

a
rt

n
e
r(

s
)

P
ro

g
re

s
s
/T

a
rg

e
ts

p
e
o
p
le

 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
is

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 

•
 

W
o
rk

 w
it
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 s
u
it
a
b
le

 a
n
d
 

a
tt
ra

c
ti
v
e
 d

o
w

n
-s

iz
in

g
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 l
o
c
a
l 
le

tt
in

g
s
 

p
la

n
s
 

4
.2

  
 P

ro
m

o
te

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
a

c
il

it
ie

s
 i

n
 p

o
v
e

rt
y

4
.2

.1
 M

e
e
t 

th
e
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f 
v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
n
d
 l
o
w

e
r 

in
c
o
m

e
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
. 

•
 

S
D

C
’s

 H
E

R
O

 p
ro

je
c
t 
p
ro

v
id

e
s
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
a
d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 

a
s
s
is

ts
 w

it
h
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 

c
la

im
s
 a

s
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

. 

•
 

S
e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

to
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h

in
 

S
e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

L
e
a
d

: 
S

e
v
e
n

o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o

u
n

c
il
 

•
 

W
e
s
 K

e
n
t 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 

•
 

H
IA

 

4
.2

.2
 P

ro
v
id

e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

, 
a
d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

to
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 a
b
o
u
t 
d
e
b
t 

m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
. 
 

•
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
o
rk

in
g

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 H

E
R

O
 

p
ro

je
c
t,
 C

it
iz

e
n
s
 A

d
v
ic

e
 B

u
re

a
u
, 

F
o
o
d
 b

a
n
k
s
, 

C
h
u
rc

h
e
s
 a

n
d
 V

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 O

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 t

h
a
t 

s
p
e
c
ia

lis
e
 i
n
 d

e
b
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t.
 

•
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 p

u
b
lic

 a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
 o

f 
a
g

e
n
c
ie

s
 t
h
a
t 

c
a
n
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 h

e
lp

 w
it
h
 d

e
b
t 

m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

•
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
k
e
y
 l
o
c
a
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

h
a
t 
c
a
n
 

b
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

ru
ra

l 
a
n
d
 i
s
o
la

te
d
 p

a
ri
s
h
e
s
. 
 

L
e
a
d

: 
S

e
v
e
n

o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o

u
n

c
il
 

•
 

C
A

B
 

•
 

F
o
o
d
 b

a
n
k
s
 

•
 

C
h
u
rc

h
e
s
 t
o
g

e
th

e
r 

•
 

V
A

W
K

 

•
 

W
e
s
t 
K

e
n
t 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 

4
.3

  
 M

e
e

t 
th

e
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 n

e
e

d
s

 o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 l

iv
in

g
 i

n
 t

h
e

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
 

in
c

lu
d

e
 a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 a
n

d
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 h

o
u

s
in

g
  

(H
ig

h
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 f
o

r 
S

e
v
e

n
o

a
k

s
 D

is
tr

ic
t)

4
.3

.1
 C

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

a
n

 
O

ld
e
r 

P
e
rs

o
n

s
 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 N

e
e
d

s
 

A
s

s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
to

 b
e
tt

e
r 

u
n

d
e
rs

ta
n

d
 t

h
e
 n

e
e
d

s
 

o
f 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 

•
 

U
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 a

 O
ld

e
r 

P
e
rs

o
n
s
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 N

e
e
d
s
 s

tu
d
y
 

•
 

W
o
rk

 w
it
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
fi
n
d
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
e
e
d
 i
n
to

 r
e
le

v
a
n
t 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 

p
o
lic

y
 a

rr
a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 L

D
F

 a
n
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

P
la

n
 

•
 

P
ro

d
u
c
e
 a

 H
o
u
s
in

g
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 t

o
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 
fi
n
d
in

g
s
 

a
n
d
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h

 
o
th

e
rs

 

L
e
a
d

: 
S

D
C

 H
o

u
s
in

g

•
 

W
e
s
t 
K

e
n
t 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 

•
 

M
o
a
t 

•
 

L
a
n
d
lo

rd
s
 

•
 

K
C

C

•
 

S
D

C
 P

la
n
n
in

g

4
.3

.2
  

P
ro

v
id

e
 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 t

o
 

m
e
e
t 

id
e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 n
e
e
d

s
 

o
f 

v
u

ln
e
ra

b
le

 g
ro

u
p

s
 

•
 

W
o
rk

 w
it
h
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 t
o
 r

e
m

o
d
e
l 

a
n
d
 r

e
fu

rb
is

h
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 t

o
 p

re
s
e
rv

e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g

 
s
to

c
k
 a

n
d
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 

•
 

U
ti
lis

e
 S

1
0
6
 a

ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 g

a
in

s
 t

o
 

m
a
k
e
 b

e
s
t 
u
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 s

to
c
k
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 

n
e
e
d
s
  

L
e
a
d

: 
S

D
C

 H
o

u
s
in

g

•
 

W
e
s
t 
K

e
n
t 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 

•
 

M
o
a
t 

•
 

L
a
n
d
lo

rd
s
 

•
 

K
C

C

4
.3

.3
 W

o
rk

 w
it

h
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
rs

, 
la

n
d

lo
rd

s
 

•
 

W
o
rk

 w
it
h
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
rs

 t
o
 d

e
s
ig

n
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 t

h
a
t 
c
a
n
 

s
u
s
ta

in
 t
e
n
a
n
c
ie

s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 a

ll 
lif

e
 s

ta
g
e
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

L
e
a
d

: 
S

D
C

 H
o

u
s
in

g

•
 

W
e
s
t 
K

e
n
t 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 55



S
E

V
E

N
O

A
K

S
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 ‘
M

IN
D

 T
H

E
 G

A
P

’ 
P

L
A

N
 -

  
B

u
ild

in
g
 b

ri
d
g
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
tt
e
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

4
6

 

A
c
ti

o
n

H
o

w
 

K
e

y
 P

a
rt

n
e
r(

s
)

P
ro

g
re

s
s
/T

a
rg

e
ts

a
n

d
 o

w
n

e
r-

o
c
c
u

p
ie

rs
 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 

s
u

it
a
b

le
 f

o
r 

a
ll
 

d
e
m

o
g

ra
p

h
ic

s
 

lif
e
ti
m

e
 h

o
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 w

h
e
e
lc

h
a
ir
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 h

o
m

e
s
 

•
 

In
s
p
e
c
t 
a
n
d
 a

c
c
re

d
it
 p

ri
v
a
te

 r
e
n
te

d
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 t
o
 

p
ro

m
o
te

 g
o
o
d
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 q

u
a
lit

y
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 

•
 

S
D

C
 t

o
 b

ri
n
g
 H

o
m

e
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

A
g

e
n
c
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

in
-h

o
u
s
e
 a

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 m

a
d
e
, 
a
s
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 O

ld
e
r 

P
e
rs

o
n
s
 S

u
rv

e
y
. 

•
 

M
o
a
t 

•
 

L
a
n
d
lo

rd
s
 

•
 

K
C

C

•
 

H
IA

5
.1

  
 R

e
d

u
c

e
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s

n
e

s
s
 a

n
d

 i
ts

 n
e

g
a

ti
v
e

 i
m

p
a
c

t 
fo

r 
th

o
s

e
 l

iv
in

g
 i

n
 t

e
m

p
o

ra
ry

 a
c

c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti

o
n

5
.1

.1
 I

n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

y
o
u
n
g

 p
e
o
p
le

 
e
s
p
e
c
ia

lly
 a

ro
u
n
d
 

m
e
n
to

ri
n
g
 o

n
 b

u
d
g
e
ti
n
g

 
a
n
d
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 

•
 

T
h
e
 H

e
ro

 p
ro

je
c
t 
to

 h
e
lp

 a
n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 y
o
u
n
g

 p
e
o
p
le

 
w

it
h
 t

h
e
ir
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
s
k
ill

s
 t

o
 b

u
d
g

e
ti
n
g
. 
 

•
 

T
h
ro

u
g

h
 t
h
e
 t
ro

u
b
le

d
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
, 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

to
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 y
o
u
n
g
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 t

o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e

 
lik

e
lih

o
o
d
 o

f 
h
o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
. 
  

•
 

W
e
s
t 
K

e
n
t 
E

x
tr

a
 t
o
 o

ff
e
r 

s
ta

rt
 u

p
 p

a
c
k
s
 w

it
h
 

e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
. 
 

L
e
a
d

: 
S

e
v
e
n

o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o

u
n

c
il
 

•
 

W
e
s
t 
K

e
n
t 
E

x
tr

a
 

•
 

K
C

C
 

•
 

L
a
n
d
lo

rd
s
  

5
.1

.2
 T

ra
in

in
g
 f
o
r 

fr
o
n
t 

lin
e
 w

o
rk

e
rs

 o
n
 t
h
e
 

w
e

lf
a
re

 c
h
a
n
g

e
 

•
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 S

e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

to
 w

o
rk

 m
o
re

 c
lo

s
e
ly

 a
n
d
 o

rg
a
n
iz

e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 

C
it
iz

e
n
s
 A

d
v
ic

e
 B

u
re

a
u
. 

L
e
a
d

:

•
 

S
e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

•
 

C
it
iz

e
n
 A

d
v
ic

e
 B

u
re

a
u
 

•
 

W
e
s
t 
K

e
n
 H

o
u
s
in

g
  

5
.2

  
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

 o
u

r 
c

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s

 t
o

 b
e

 h
e

a
lt

h
y
 p

la
c

e
s

5
.2

.1
 M

a
in

ta
in

 
c
le

a
n
lin

e
s
s
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 

a
n
d
 s

e
e
k
 t
o
 r

e
m

o
v
e
 

in
c
id

e
n
ts

 o
f 
fl
y
 t

ip
p
in

g
 

a
s
 s

o
o
n
 a

s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
  

•
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 U

n
it
 a

n
d
 T

a
s
k
 a

n
d
 C

o
-o

rd
in

a
ti
n
g
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 G

ro
u
p
 t

o
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 m

o
n
th

ly
 E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
V

is
u
a
l 
A

u
d
it
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

in
 c

o
n
ju

n
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 

lo
c
a
l 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 t
o
 d

e
a
l 
w

it
h
 l
it
te

r 
a
n
d
 

in
v
e
s
ti
g

a
te

 w
a
y
s
 f

o
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 t
o
 r

e
c
y
c
le

 m
o
re

 i
n
 p

u
b
lic

 
p
la

c
e
s
. 

•
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 U

n
it
 c

a
m

p
a
ig

n
 t

o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 

F
ly

 T
ip

p
in

g
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 p

u
b
lic

 p
e
rc

e
p
ti
o
n

 
th

ro
u
g

h
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 m

e
d
ia

. 

•
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g

a
te

 C
o
u
n
ty

 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

 c
h
a
rg

e
s
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 f

o
r 

w
a
s
te

 
m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
s
o
lu

ti
o
n
s
 

L
e
a
d

:

•
 

S
e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

•
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 U

n
it
 

•
 

K
e
n
t 

P
o
lic

e
 

•
 

K
C

C
 

•
 

D
ir
e
c
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

5
.2

.2
 W

o
rk

 w
it
h
 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 o
n
 t
h
e
 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 o
f 
h
e
a
lt
h
y
 

p
la

c
e
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 p

a
rk

s
, 

•
 

S
e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

d
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 
to

 w
o
rk

 w
it
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

a
g

e
n
c
ie

s
 a

n
d
 T

o
w

n
 a

n
d
 P

a
ri
s
h
 c

o
u
n
c
ils

 t
o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 
A

O
N

B
 a

n
d
 o

p
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
s
. 

L
e
a
d

:

•
 

S
e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

•
 

T
o
w

n
 a

n
d
 P

a
ri
s
h
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 56



S
E

V
E

N
O

A
K

S
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 ‘
M

IN
D

 T
H

E
 G

A
P

’ 
P

L
A

N
 -

  
B

u
ild

in
g
 b

ri
d
g
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
tt
e
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

4
7

 

A
c
ti

o
n

H
o

w
 

K
e

y
 P

a
rt

n
e
r(

s
)

P
ro

g
re

s
s
/T

a
rg

e
ts

a
n
d
 o

p
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
s
  

•
 

D
e
liv

e
r 

c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
p
ro

je
c
ts

 t
o

 
im

p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 f

o
r 

lo
c
a
l 
p
e
o
p
le

 t
o
 p

a
rk

s
 a

n
d
 

o
p
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 N

a
tu

ra
lly

 A
c
ti
v
e
, 

o
u
td

o
o
r 

g
y
m

s
 e

tc
. 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

•
 

N
W

K
C

P
 

5
.3

  
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 S

a
fe

 (
H

ig
h

 p
ri

o
ri

ty
 f

o
r 

S
e

v
e

n
o

a
k

s
 D

is
tr

ic
t)

5
.3

.1
 C

o
n

s
u

lt
 w

it
h

 
a
n

d
 i

n
v
o

lv
e
 l

o
c
a
l 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 i
n

 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 s

a
fe

ty
 

a
n

d
 c

ri
m

e
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 t

h
a
t 

a
ff

e
c
t 

th
e
m

 

•
 

P
A

C
T

 p
a
n
e
ls

 t
o
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
 t

h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 i
n
 

lo
o
k
in

g
 a

t 
s
o
lu

ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 A

n
ti
 S

o
c
ia

l 
B

e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

a
n
d
 

s
h
a
ri
n
g
 g

o
o
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
.

•
 

P
ro

m
o
te

 t
h
e
 s

p
e
e
d
w

a
tc

h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 

m
e
d
ia

 s
tr

e
a
m

s
. 
 

•
 

D
a
ily

 T
a
s
k
in

g
, 
C

S
U

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 P

o
lic

e
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
e
 t

h
e
 

m
o
b
ile

 C
C

T
V

 i
s
 u

s
e
d
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 t
o
 d

e
te

r 
c
ri
m

e
 a

n
d
 

a
n
ti
-s

o
c
ia

l 
b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r.

  

•
 

P
o
s
it
iv

e
ly

 p
ro

m
o
te

 t
h
e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 
th

e
 C

S
U

 t
o
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 t
o
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

 
c
ri
m

e
.

L
e
a
d

: 
S

e
v
e
n

o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o

u
n

c
il
 

•
 

P
A

C
T

 

•
 

L
o
c
a
l 
C

h
a
m

p
io

n
s
 

•
 

C
S

U
 

•
 

A
S

B
 C

o
o
rd

in
a
to

r 

•
 

K
e
n
t 

P
o
lic

e
 

5
.3

.2
W

o
rk

in
g

 w
it

h
 

F
ir

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d

 
h

o
u

s
in

g
  

to
 t

a
rg

e
t 

m
o

s
t 

v
u

ln
e
ra

b
le

 
h

o
u

s
e
h

o
ld

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 

•
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

 t
o
 w

o
rk

 p
ro

a
c
ti
v
e
ly

 w
it
h
 K

e
n
t 

F
ir
e
 &

 
R

e
s
c
u
e
 t

o
 m

a
k
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 l
in

k
s
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 
p
e
o
p
le

 

•
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

 t
o
 w

o
rk

 t
o
g

e
th

e
r 

to
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 r

is
k
s
 o

f 
fi
re

, 
fa

lls
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

h
a
z
a
rd

s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 h

o
m

e
 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

L
e
a
d

: 
K

e
n

t 
F

ir
e
 &

 

R
e
s
c
u

e
 

•
 

S
D

C
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 T

e
a
m

 

•
 

W
e
s
t 
K

e
n
t 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 

•
 

K
C

C
 

•
 

S
D

C
 C

S
U

 

5
.4

  
 R

e
d

u
c

e
 F

u
e

l 
P

o
v
e

rt
y
 b

y
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

w
a

rm
 h

o
m

e
s

5
.4

.1
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 
v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 g
ro

u
p
s
 w

h
o
 

fi
n
d
 i
t 

d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 t

o
 h

e
a
t 

th
e
ir
 h

o
m

e
s
  

•
 

S
e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

to
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 H

o
m

e
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
A

g
e
n
c
y
 t

o
 o

ff
e
r 

g
ra

n
ts

 t
o
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
ls

 
th

a
t 
a
re

 i
n
 n

e
e
d
. 

•
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 U

n
it
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 g
ro

u
p

s
 

a
n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
 h

o
m

e
s
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 o

f 
th

e
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 W

a
rd

e
n
s
 a

n
d
 P

C
S

O
 t
o
 g

iv
e
 a

d
v
ic

e
 

•
 

S
D

C
 t

o
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 l
a
n
d
lo

rd
s
 t
o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 t

h
e
 

L
a
n
d
lo

rd
 A

c
c
re

d
it
a
ti
o
n
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 b

y
 o

ff
e
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
m

 
fu

n
d
s
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
ir
 h

o
m

e
s
. 
 

•
 

S
e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

to
 r

u
n
 r

e
g

u
la

r 
c
a
m

p
a
ig

n
s
 

to
 p

ro
m

o
te

 e
n
e
rg

y
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 a

n
d
 f

u
e
l 
p
o
v
e
rt

y
. 
  

L
e
a
d

: 
S

e
v
e
n

o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o

u
n

c
il
 

•
 

L
a
n
d
lo

rd
s
 

•
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 U

n
it
 

•
 

K
e
n
t 

P
o
lic

e
 

•
 

P
C

S
O

 

•
 

K
C

C
 

•
 

H
IA

 

•
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 W

a
rd

e
n
s
 

•
 

S
e
n
io

rs
 A

c
ti
o
n
 F

o
ru

m
 

5
.4

.2
 E

n
s
u
re

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

d
h
e
re

 t
o
 

•
 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 T

e
a
m

s
 t
o
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 t
o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

le
g

is
la

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 r

e
la

te
d
 t

o
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 

L
e
a
d

: 
S

D
C

 P
la

n
n

in
g

•
 

S
D

C
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 57



S
E

V
E

N
O

A
K

S
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 ‘
M

IN
D

 T
H

E
 G

A
P

’ 
P

L
A

N
 -

  
B

u
ild

in
g
 b

ri
d
g
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
tt
e
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

4
8

 

A
c
ti

o
n

H
o

w
 

K
e

y
 P

a
rt

n
e
r(

s
)

P
ro

g
re

s
s
/T

a
rg

e
ts

a
ll 

g
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

le
g

is
la

ti
o
n
s
  

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g
 h

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
 

6
.1

  
Im

p
ro

v
e

 a
c

c
e
s

s
 t

o
 s

c
re

e
n

in
g

6
.1

.1
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
 e

a
rl
y
 

d
ia

g
n
o
s
is

 o
f 

d
e
m

e
n
ti
a
 

a
n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

a
n
d
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t

o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 
s
u
ff

e
re

rs
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 

c
a
re

rs
 

•
 

K
C

H
T

 a
n
d
 S

e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

to
 d

e
liv

e
r 

N
H

S
 H

e
a
lt
h
 C

h
e
c
k
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 d

is
tr

ic
t 
to

 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 
th

o
s
e
 w

h
o
 m

ig
h
t 
b
e
 a

t 
ri
s
k
. 

•
 

V
o
lu

n
ta

ry
 g

ro
u
p
s
 t
o
 w

o
rk

 t
o
g

e
th

e
r 

to
 c

o
-o

rd
in

a
te

 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 s
e
s
s
io

n
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 d

e
m

e
n
ti
a
 c

a
fe

s
 a

n
d
 d

ro
p
-i
n
s
 

•
 

G
P

 s
u
rg

e
ri
e
s
 w

o
rk

in
g

 a
lo

n
g

s
id

e
 t
h
e
ir
 P

P
G

 g
ro

u
p
’s

 
to

 r
u
n
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 e

v
e
n
ts

 a
ro

u
n
d
 D

e
m

e
n
ti
a
 a

n
d
 

im
p
ro

v
e
 e

a
rl
y
 d

ia
g

n
o
s
is

. 

•
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 w

it
h
 K

C
C

 d
e
m

e
n
ti
a
 f
ri
e
n
d
ly

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 

p
ro

je
c
t 

in
 t

h
e
 D

is
tr

ic
t.
 

L
e
a
d

: 
S

e
v
e
n

o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o

u
n

c
il

 &
 K

C
H

T
 

•
 

S
e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 A

re
a
 M

IN
D

 

•
 

S
e
n
io

rs
 A

c
ti
o
n
 F

o
ru

m
 

•
 

K
C

C
 

•
 

C
C

G
’s

 

•
 

P
P

G
’s

 

•
 

K
e
n
t 

L
ib

ra
ri
e
s
  

•
 

A
g

e
 U

K
 

•
 

A
lz

h
e

im
e
r’
s
 &

 
D

e
m

e
n
ti
a
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
  

•
 

A
lz

h
e

im
e
r’
s
 

A
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 

6
.1

.2
 P

ro
m

o
te

 s
e
n
s
ib

le
 

d
ri
n
k
in

g
 a

n
d
 e

n
s
u
re

 
tr

e
a
tm

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 

fo
r 

a
ll 

•
 

P
ro

m
o
te

 s
e
n
s
ib

le
 d

ri
n
k
in

g
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 D

is
tr

ic
t 
th

ro
u
g

h
 

th
e
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 A

U
D

IT
-C

 

•
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 o

f 
w

h
a
t 

c
o
n
s
ti
tu

te
s
 u

n
s
a
fe

 
d
ri
n
k
in

g
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
a
m

p
a
ig

n
s
 

•
 

P
ro

m
o
te

 a
lc

o
h
o
l 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 U

n
it
 

L
e
a
d

: 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 S

a
fe

ty
 

U
n

it

•
 

H
A

T
 

•
 

K
e
n
w

o
o
d
 T

ru
s
t 

•
 

C
R

I 

•
 

S
D

C
 C

S
U

 

6
.1

.3
 I

n
c
re

a
s
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 

to
 s

e
x
u
a
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

C
h
la

m
y
d
ia

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 f

o
r 

y
o
u
n
g

 p
e
o
p
le

 

•
 

D
e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 S

e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 
T

e
e
n
a
g

e
 P

re
g

n
a
n
c
y
 

L
IG

 A
c
to

n
 P

la
n
 

•
 

U
s
e
 ‘
T

h
e
 B

lu
e
 B

u
s
’ 
a
s
 a

 m
o
b
ile

 s
c
re

e
n
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 t

o
 

ta
k
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

o
 r

u
ra

l 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 g

ro
u
p
s
 o

f 
y
o
u
n
g

 p
e
o
p
le

. 
  

•
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 s

ig
n
p
o
s
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 f
ro

m
 o

th
e
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

L
e
a
d

: 
T

e
e
n

a
g

e
 

P
re

g
n

a
n

c
y
 L

IG

•
 

S
e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

 

•
 

K
C

C
 

•
 

K
C

H
T

 

•
 

S
e
x
u
a
l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 n

u
rs

e
s
 

•
 

S
c
h
o
o
l 
n
u
rs

e
s
 

•
 

S
c
h
o
o
l 
S

R
E

 L
e
a
d
s
 

•
 

K
e
n
t 

Y
o
u
th

 P
ro

v
id

e
rs

 

•
 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 C
e
n
tr

e
s
 

•
 

W
e
s
t 
K

e
n
t 
E

x
tr

a
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 58



S
E

V
E

N
O

A
K

S
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 ‘
M

IN
D

 T
H

E
 G

A
P

’ 
P

L
A

N
 -

  
B

u
ild

in
g
 b

ri
d
g
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
tt
e
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

4
9

 

A
c
ti

o
n

H
o

w
 

K
e

y
 P

a
rt

n
e
r(

s
)

P
ro

g
re

s
s
/T

a
rg

e
ts

6
.2

  
 R

e
d

u
c

e
 t

h
e

 g
a

p
 i
n

 h
e

a
lt

h
 i

n
e

q
u

a
li

ti
e
s

 a
c

ro
s
s

 t
h

e
 s

o
c

ia
l 
g

ra
d

ie
n

t 
 (

H
ig

h
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 f
o

r 
S

e
v
e

n
o

a
k

s
 D

is
tr

ic
t)

6
.2

.1
 R

e
d

u
c
e
 t

h
e
 

p
re

v
a
le

n
c
e
 o

f 
s
m

o
k
in

g
, 

p
a
rt

ic
u

la
rl

y
 

in
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 
d

e
p

ri
v
a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 

•
 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
e
o
p
le

 s
m

o
k
in

g
, 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

•
 

M
a
k
e
 i
t 

h
a
rd

e
r 

fo
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 t
o
 t

a
k
e
 u

p
 s

m
o
k
in

g
, 

re
d
u
c
e
 p

re
v
a
le

n
c
e
, 

a
d
v
e
rt

is
in

g
, 
s
m

o
k
in

g
 a

re
a
s
 e

tc
.

•
 

R
u
n
 s

to
p
 s

m
o
k
in

g
 c

lin
ic

s
 l
o
c
a
lly

•
 

T
h
e
 s

to
p
 s

m
o
k
in

g
 t
e
a
m

 t
o
 r

u
n
 w

o
rk

s
h
o
p
s
 i
n
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 
a
n
d
 a

tt
e
n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 e

v
e
n
ts

 t
o
 r

e
a
c
h
 

L
e
a
d

: 
K

C
H

T
 S

to
p

 
S

m
o

k
in

g
 T

e
a
m

 

•
 

N
H

S
 

•
 

S
e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

H
A

T
 

•
 

G
P

’s
 

•
 

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 

•
 

K
e
n
t 

Y
o
u
th

 P
ro

v
id

e
rs

 

6
.2

.2
 R

e
d

u
c
e
 t

h
e
 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
 p

re
v
a
le

n
c
e
 

o
f 

T
y
p

e
 2

 d
ia

b
e
te

s
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 e

a
rl

y
 

d
e
te

n
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 

p
re

v
e
n

ti
o

n
 

•
 

D
e
liv

e
r 

ta
rg

e
te

d
 N

H
S

 H
e
a
lt
h
 C

h
e
c
k
s
 t

o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 
p
e
o
p
le

 a
t 
ri
s
k
, 
p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
fo

c
u
s
 o

n
 t
h
e
 m

o
s
t 
d
e
p
ri
v
e
d
 

w
a
rd

s
 

•
 

A
tt

e
n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 e

v
e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
 h

e
a
lt
h
y
 

lif
e
s
ty

le
 a

n
d
 h

e
a
lt
h
y
 e

a
ti
n
g
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 

•
 

P
ro

m
o
te

 w
e
ig

h
t 
m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 e

x
e
rc

is
e
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 

L
e
a
d

: 
S

e
v
e
n

o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o

u
n

c
il

•
 

K
C

H
T

 

•
 

K
C

C
 

•
 

4
 H

e
a
lt
h
y
 W

e
ig

h
t 

•
 

S
e
n
c
io

 

•
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 C

h
e
f 

6
.2

.3
 D

e
li
v
e
r 

a
c
ti

v
it

ie
s
 

to
 p

ro
m

o
te

 t
h

e
 

b
e
n

e
fi

ts
 o

f 
in

c
re

a
s
e
d

 
p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 

a
c
ti

v
it

y
 a

n
d

 
re

d
u

c
e
 o

b
e
s
it

y
 

•
 

D
e
liv

e
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 w

e
ig

h
t 
m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 d

is
tr

ic
t 

•
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
 r

e
fe

rr
a
l 
p
a
th

w
a
y
s
 i
n
to

 w
e
ig

h
t 
m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 

•
 

D
e
liv

e
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
y
 l
iv

in
g

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 i
n
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 a
ro

u
n

d
 

h
e
a
lt
h
y
 l
if
e
s
ty

le
 

•
 

S
e
n
c
io

 t
o
 r

u
n
 a

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
e
x
e
rc

is
e
 a

n
d
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 o

ff
e
r 

c
o
n
c
e
s
s
io

n
s
 f

o
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 

d
is

a
b
ili

ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 o

n
 l
o
w

 i
n
c
o
m

e
/o

ld
e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 

L
e
a
d

: 
S

e
v
e
n

o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o

u
n

c
il

•
 

K
C

H
T

 

•
 

K
C

C
 

•
 

S
e
n
c
io

 

•
 

G
P

’s
 

6
.3

  
 P

ro
v
id

e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 m
e

n
ta

l 
 

il
ln

e
s
s

 a
n

d
 r

a
is

e
 a

w
a
re

n
e

s
s

 o
f 

m
e

n
ta

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 i
s

s
u

e
s
 (

H
ig

h
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 f
o

r 
S

e
v
e

n
o

a
k

s
 D

is
tr

ic
t)

6
.3

.1
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 

v
u

ln
e
ra

b
le

 p
e
o

p
le

 t
o

 
m

a
n

a
g

e
 l
o

n
g

-t
e
rm

 
m

e
n

ta
l 

h
e
a
lt

h
 

c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
 

•
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

 t
o
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 

d
e
liv

e
r 

ta
rg

e
te

d
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

iv
e
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 

•
 

E
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 g
ro

u
p
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 W

e
s
t 
K

e
n
t 

H
o
u
s
in

g
’s

 L
if
e
w

a
y
s
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 G
ro

u
p
s
 

L
e
a
d

: 
S

e
v
e
n

o
a
k
s
 A

re
a
 

M
in

d
 

•
 

W
e
s
t 
K

e
n
t 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 

6
.3

.2
 R

a
is

e
 

a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
 o

f 
m

e
n

ta
l 

h
e
a
lt

h
 i

s
s
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 
s
ig

n
p

o
s
t 

in
to

 r
e
le

v
a
n

t 

•
 

S
e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 A

re
a
 M

in
d
 t

o
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
 r

a
n
g

e
 

o
f 

m
e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 w

o
rk

s
h
o
p
s
. 

•
 

S
e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

to
 r

u
n
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 

w
o
rk

s
h
o
p
s
 t
o
 f
ro

n
t 
lin

e
 s

ta
ff

 t
o
 e

q
u
ip

 t
h
e
m

 w
it
h
 

L
e
a
d

:
S

e
v
e
n

o
a
k
s
 A

re
a
 

M
in

d

•
 

S
e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

Agenda Item 7

Page 59



S
E

V
E

N
O

A
K

S
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 ‘
M

IN
D

 T
H

E
 G

A
P

’ 
P

L
A

N
 -

  
B

u
ild

in
g
 b

ri
d
g
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
tt
e
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

5
0

 

A
c
ti

o
n

H
o

w
 

K
e

y
 P

a
rt

n
e
r(

s
)

P
ro

g
re

s
s
/T

a
rg

e
ts

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

v
a
lu

a
b
le

 s
k
ill

 t
o
 h

e
lp

 p
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 m

e
n
ta

l 
ill

 h
e
a
lt
h
  

•
 

A
c
ti
v
e
ly

 p
ro

m
o
te

 t
h
e
 ‘
fi
v
e
 w

a
y
s
 t

o
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
’,
 W

o
rl
d
 

M
e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 D

a
y
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 l
o
c
a
l 

c
a
m

p
a
ig

n
s
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

 

•
 

H
A

T
 

•
 

K
C

C
 

6
.4

  
G

ro
w

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

n
ts

 a
n

d
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
s

 t
o

 f
in

d
 n

e
w

 w
a

y
s

 t
o

 t
a

rg
e

t 
a

n
d

 d
e

li
v
e

r 
s

e
rv

ic
e

s
6
.4

.1
 W

o
rk

 w
it
h
 H

e
a
lt
h
 

&
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
 B

o
a
rd

s
 t
o
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

k
e
y
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 s

e
t 

o
u
t 

in
 

th
e
 h

e
a
lt
h
 i
n
e
q

u
a
lit

ie
s
 

a
g

e
n
d
a
 

•
 

S
D

C
 t

o
 a

tt
e
n
d
 r

e
g

u
la

r 
C

C
G

 H
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
 

B
o
a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 c

o
-o

rd
in

a
te

 t
h
e
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

H
e
a
lt
h
 A

c
ti
o
n
 

T
e
a
m

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 M

e
m

b
e
r 

H
e
a
lt
h
 A

c
ti
o
n
 G

ro
u
p
 

•
 

W
o
rk

 p
ro

a
c
ti
v
e
ly

 t
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 f

ro
m

 
s
u
b
-g

ro
u
p
s
 o

f 
th

e
 H

e
a
lt
h
 &

 W
e
llb

e
in

g
 B

o
a
rd

s
 

•
 

A
c
ti
v
e
ly

 p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

 i
n
 w

o
rk

 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d

 
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 a

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 f
o
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

. 

L
e
a
d

: 
S

e
v
e
n

o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o

u
n

c
il

•
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 &

 W
e
llb

e
in

g
 

b
o
a
rd

s
 

•
 

C
lin

ic
a
l 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 G

ro
u
p
 

•
 

S
e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

H
A

T
 

•
 

K
e
n
t 

S
o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

6
.4

.2
 C

o
-o

rd
in

a
te

 t
h
e
 

S
e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

H
e
a
lt
h
 A

c
ti
o
n
 T

e
a
m

 f
o
r 

o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 t
o
 

w
o
rk

 h
o
lis

ti
c
a
lly

  

•
 

S
e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

to
 c

o
-o

rd
in

a
te

 q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g

s
 o

f 
th

e
 H

A
T

 

•
 

‘M
in

d
 T

h
e
 G

a
p
’ 
H

e
a
lt
h
 I
n
e
q

u
a
lit

ie
s
 P

la
n
 t
o
 b

e
 

d
e
liv

e
re

d
, 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
e
d
 a

n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 a

t 
q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g

s
 

•
 

In
v
it
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 d

e
liv

e
ri
n
g

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

re
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 t
h
e
 h

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 w

o
rk

 i
n
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 t
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 b

e
tt
e
r 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 d

u
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
  

L
e
a
d

: 
S

e
v
e
n

o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o

u
n

c
il

 H
A

T
 

•
 

S
e
n
io

rs
 A

c
ti
o
n
 F

o
ru

m
 

•
 

S
e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 A

re
a
 M

in
d

 

•
 

T
o
w

n
 &

 P
a
ri
s
h
 

C
o
u
n
c
ils

 

•
 

K
C

C
 

•
 

K
C

H
T

 

•
 

C
C

G
 

•
 

V
o
lu

n
ta

ry
 G

ro
u
p
s
 

•
 

R
o
y
a
l 
B

ri
ti
s
h
 L

e
g

io
n
 

•
 

S
e
n
c
io

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

L
e
is

u
re

  

6
.4

.3
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
 t

h
e
 “

B
e
 

In
s
p
ir
e
d
, 
B

e
 A

c
ti
v
e
” 

le
g

a
c
y
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
  

•
 

M
a

x
im

is
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 l
e
g

a
c
y
 o

f 
th

e
 2

0
1
2
 

G
a
m

e
s
 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 s

p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 c

y
c
lin

g
, 
d
is

a
b
le

d
 s

p
o
rt

s
 a

n
d
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
ri
n
g

L
e
a
d

: 
S

e
v
e
n

o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o

u
n

c
il
 

•
 

S
e
n
c
io

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

L
e
is

u
re

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 60



S
E

V
E

N
O

A
K

S
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 ‘
M

IN
D

 T
H

E
 G

A
P

’ 
P

L
A

N
 -

  
B

u
ild

in
g
 b

ri
d
g
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
tt
e
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

5
1

 

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e
s
  

K
e
n

t’
s
 J

o
in

t 
S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 N
e
e
d

s
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
2
0
1
1
 a

v
a
il

a
b

le
 a

t 
h

tt
p

:/
/w

w
w

.k
m

p
h

o
.n

h
s
.u

k
/j
s
n

a
/

•
 

C
a
m

p
b
e
ll 

F
.(

e
d
) 

 2
0

1
0
. 
T

h
e

 S
o
c
ia

l 
d
e
te

rm
in

a
n
ts

 o
f 
h

e
a

lt
h
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 r

o
le

 o
f 

lo
c
a

l 
g
o
v
e
rn

m
e

n
t.
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n

d
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
A

g
e
n
c
y
. 

‘[
O

n
lin

e
]’
 

A
v
a
ila

b
le

 f
ro

m
 h

tt
p
:/
/w

w
w

.i
d
e
a
.g

o
v
.u

k
/i
d
k
/a

io
/1

7
7
7

8
1
5

5
 [
a
c
c
e
s
s
e
d
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0

1
1
] 

•
 

D
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 
o
f 

H
e
a

lt
h
. 
(2

0
1

0
) 

H
e
a

lt
h
 P

ro
fi
le

 2
0

1
0
: 

K
e

n
t 
‘[
O

n
lin

e
]’
A

v
a

ila
b
le

 f
ro

m
 h

tt
p
:/
/w

w
w

.a
p

h
o
.o

rg
.u

k
/r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
/v

ie
w

.a
s
p
x
?

R
ID

=
9
2

2
2
1

[a
c
c
e
s
s
e
d
  

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
2
] 

•
 

D
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 
o
f 

H
e
a

lt
h
 (

2
0
1

0
) 

‘H
e

a
lt
h
y
 L

iv
e
s
, 

H
e
a

lt
h
y
 P

e
o

p
le

’‘[
O

n
lin

e
]’
 A

v
a

ila
b
le

 f
ro

m
 h

tt
p
:/
/w

w
w

.d
h
.g

o
v
.u

k
/e

n
/A

b
o
u
tu

s
/F

e
a
tu

re
s
/D

H
_

1
2

2
2
5
3

  
[a

c
c
e
s
s
e
d
  
S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1

1
] 

•
 

D
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 
o
f 

H
e
a

lt
h
 (

2
0
1

0
) 

H
e
a

lt
h
 I

n
e

q
u
a

lit
y
 N

a
ti
o
n

a
l 
S

u
p

p
o
rt

 T
e
a
m

 –
 ‘
[O

n
lin

e
]’
 A

v
a

ila
b

le
 f

ro
m

 
h
tt
p
:/
/w

w
w

.d
h
.g

o
v
.u

k
/e

n
/P

u
b
lic

h
e
a

lt
h
/N

a
ti
o
n

a
lS

u
p

p
o
rt

T
e
a
m

s
/H

e
a
lt
h
In

e
q
u

a
lit

ie
s
/D

H
_
1
0

8
9
5

4
 [
a
c
c
e
s
s
e
d
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
] 

•
 

F
ri
e
d
li,

 L
. 
(2

0
0
9
) 

M
e
n
ta

l 
h
e

a
lt
h

, 
re

s
ili

e
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 i
n
e

q
u
a

lit
ie

s
 –

 a
 r

e
p

o
rt

  
fo

r 
W

H
O

 E
u

ro
p
e
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 M

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 F
o
u
n
d

a
ti
o
n
. 

L
o

n
d
o

n
/C

o
p
e

n
h
a
g

e
n
: 

M
e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h
 F

o
u
n

d
a
ti
o
n

 a
n
d
 W

H
O

 E
u
ro

p
e
‘[
O

n
lin

e
]’
 A

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
ro

m
 h

tt
p
:/
/w

w
w

.e
u
ro

.w
h
o

.i
n
t/
d

a
ta

/a
s
s
e
ts

/p
d
f_

fi
le

/0
0
1
2

/1
0

0
8
2

1
/E

9
2
2

2
7
.p

d
f

•
 

M
a
rm

o
t 
M

. 
(C

h
a
ir
).

 2
0
1

0
. 
T

h
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
H

e
a

lt
h
 I

n
e
q

u
a

lit
ie

s
: 
F

a
ir
 S

o
c
ie

ty
, 
H

e
a

lt
h
y
 L

iv
e
s
. 
S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 r
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
h
e

a
lt
h
 i
n
e
q

u
a

lit
ie

s
 i
n
 E

n
g
la

n
d

 
p
o
s
t-

2
0
1

0
. 

P
u
b

lis
h

e
d
 b

y
 T

h
e
 M

a
rm

o
t 
R

e
v
ie

w
 T

e
a
m

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

0
.

•
 

K
e
n
t 

C
o
u

n
ty

 C
o

u
n
c
il 

(2
0

0
9

) 
H

e
a
lt
h
 I
n

e
q

u
a
lit

y
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 ‘
 [
O

n
lin

e
]’
 A

v
a

ila
b

le
 f

ro
m

 
h
tt
p
:/
/d

e
m

o
c
ra

c
y
.k

e
n
t.
g

o
v
.u

k
/m

g
C

o
n
v
e
rt

2
P

D
F

.a
s
p
x
?
ID

=
1

3
3
3

3
&

IS
A

T
T

=
1
#
s
e
a
rc

h
=

%
2

2
h

e
a
lt
h
%

2
0
in

e
q

u
a
lit

y
%

2
2
 [
a
c
c
e
s
s
e
d
 A

u
g
u
s
t 
2

0
1

1
] 

•
 

N
a
ti
o
n
a

l 
In

s
ti
tu

te
 f

o
r 

H
e
a

lt
h

 a
n
d
 C

lin
ic

a
l 
E

x
c
e
lle

n
c
e
 (

2
0
1
0
) 

U
s
in

g
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 o

n
 c

o
s
t 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e

n
e
s
s
, 
c
o
s
t 
im

p
a
c
t 
a
n
d

 r
e
tu

rn
 o

n
 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

to
 i
n

fo
rm

 l
o
c
a

l 
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
. 

‘[
O

n
lin

e
]’
 A

v
a

ila
b
le

 f
ro

m
 h

tt
p
:/
/w

w
w

.n
ic

e
.o

rg
.u

k
/o

u
rg

u
id

a
n
c
e
/o

th
e
rp

u
b

lic
a
ti
o
n
s
/c

o
s
ti
m

p
a
c
ti
n
v
e

s
tm

e
n
tr

e
tu

rn
.j
s
p
/ 
[a

c
c
e
s
s
e
d

 O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
1

] 

•
 

N
a
ti
o
n
a

l 
M

W
IA

 C
o
lla

b
o
ra

ti
v
e
 (

E
n

g
la

n
d
) 

2
0
1
1

. 
M

e
n
ta

l 
W

e
ll-

b
e
in

g
 I
m

p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

–
‘[
O

n
lin

e
]’
 A

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
ro

m
 

h
tt
p
:/
/w

w
w

.a
p
h

o
.o

rg
.u

k
/r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
/i
te

m
.a

s
p
x
?
R

ID
=

9
5
8
3

6
[a

c
c
e
s
s
e
d
  
O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0

1
1
] 

•
 

N
IC

E
 2

0
0

7
 B

e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

c
h

a
n

g
e
 a

t 
p
o

p
u
la

ti
o
n
, 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 a

n
d
 i
n
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
le

v
e
l-
 h

tt
p
:/

/g
u
id

a
n
c
e

.n
ic

e
.o

rg
.u

k
/P

H
6
/G

u
id

a
n
c
e
/p

d
f/

E
n
g

lis
h

 

•
 

K
e
n
t 

C
o
u

n
ty

 C
o

u
n
c
il 

(2
0

1
0

) 
B

o
ld

 S
te

p
s
 f

o
r 

K
e

n
t‘
 [
O

n
lin

e
]’
 A

v
a

ila
b
le

 f
ro

m
 

h
tt
p
:/
/w

w
w

.k
e
n
t.
g

o
v
.u

k
/y

o
u

r_
c
o
u
n
c
il/

p
ri

o
ri
ti
e
s
,_

p
o
lic

ie
s
_
a
n
d

_
p

la
n
s
/p

ri
o
ri

ti
e
s
_

a
n
d

_
p
la

n
s
/b

o
ld

_
s
te

p
s
_
fo

r_
k
e
n
t.
a
s
p
x
 

•
 

K
e
n
t 

P
u
b
lic

 H
e

a
lt
h
 (

2
0

0
8
)K

C
C

 a
n

d
 N

H
S

P
u
b

lic
 H

e
a
lt
h
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
R

e
p
o
rt

 2
0
0
8

. 
‘[
O

n
lin

e
]’
 A

v
a

ila
b
le

 f
ro

m
 

h
tt
p
:/
/w

w
w

.k
m

p
h
o
.n

h
s
.u

k
/E

a
s
y
s
it
e
W

e
b
/g

e
tr

e
s
o
u
rc

e
.a

x
d
?
A

s
s
e
tI
D

=
8

6
0

7
5
&

ty
p

e
=

F
u
ll&

s
e
rv

ic
e
ty

p
e

=
A

tt
a
c
h
m

e
n

t 
[a

c
c
e
s
s
e
d
 1

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

1
] 

•
 

K
M

P
H

O
 a

n
d
 N

H
S

 (
2

0
0
9
) 

S
m

o
k
in

g
 i
n
 K

e
n
t:

 D
e
a

th
s
, 
d

is
e
a
s
e
 a

n
d
 e

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 l
o
s
s
 a

tt
ri
b
u
ta

b
le

 t
o
 t

o
b

a
c
c
o
 s

m
o
k
in

g
‘[
O

n
lin

e
]’
A

v
a

ila
b
le

 f
ro

m
 

h
tt
p
:/
/w

w
w

.k
m

p
h
o
.n

h
s
.u

k
/l
if
e
s
ty

le
-a

n
d
-b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r/

s
m

o
k
in

g
/ 
[a

c
c
e
s
s
e
d
 1

8
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
1

] 

•
 

S
e
x
to

n
 J

. 
D

r,
 B

a
rl
o

w
 J

. 
2
0

1
0
. 
T

re
n
d
s
 I

n
 H

e
a
lt
h
 I
n

e
q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 I
n
 K

e
n
t 

A
n
d
 M

e
d
w

a
y
: 

C
o
n
v
e
rg

e
n
c
e
 A

n
d
 D

iv
e
rg

e
n
c
e
 1

9
9
9
-2

0
1
0
. 

E
a
s
te

rn
 a

n
d
 C

o
a
s
ta

l 
K

e
n
t 

P
C

T
, 
N

H
S

. 
(P

D
F

) 
‘[
O

n
lin

e
]’
  

A
v
a
ila

b
le

 a
t 
h

tt
p
:/

/w
w

w
.k

m
p
h
o
.n

h
s
.u

k
/h

e
a
lt
h
-i
n

e
q
u
a

lit
ie

s
/l
if
e
-e

x
p
e
c
ta

n
c
y
/?

a
s
s
e
td

e
te

s
c
tl
2
2
6

4
8

9
3

=
9
6

3
4
8
 [
a
c
c
e
s
s
e
d
 

9
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
0
} 

•
 

S
u
ta

ri
a
 S

 D
r.

  
E

s
ti
m

a
ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
e
 b

u
rd

e
n
 o

f 
d
is

e
a
s
e
 c

a
u

s
e
d
 b

y
 a

ir
 p

o
llu

ti
o
n
 a

c
ro

s
s
 K

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 M

e
d
w

a
y
 E

a
s
te

rn
 a

n
d
 C

o
a
s
ta

l 
K

e
n
t 

P
ri
m

a
ry

 C
a
re

 T
ru

s
t 

Agenda Item 7

Page 61



S
E

V
E

N
O

A
K

S
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 ‘
M

IN
D

 T
H

E
 G

A
P

’ 
P

L
A

N
 -

  
B

u
ild

in
g
 b

ri
d
g
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
tt
e
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

5
2

 

G
L

O
S

S
A

R
Y

: 
 

A
P

H
O

 
- 

A
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 o

f 
P

u
b
lic

 H
e
a
lt
h
 O

b
s
e
rv

a
to

ri
e
s
 

A
S

B
 

- 
A

n
ti
 S

o
c
ia

l 
B

e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

C
&

Y
P

 
- 

C
h
ild

re
n
 &

 Y
o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p
le

’s
 

C
A

B
 

- 
C

it
iz

e
n
s
 A

d
v
ic

e
 B

u
re

a
u
 

C
C

G
 

- 
 C

lin
ic

a
l 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 G

ro
u
p
 

C
D

A
P

 
- 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 D

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 A

b
u
s
e
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 (

P
e
rp

e
tr

a
to

rs
) 

C
S

U
 

- 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 U

n
it
 

D
A

V
S

S
 

- 
D

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 A

b
u
s
e
 V

o
lu

n
te

e
r 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 

D
G

S
 

- 
D

a
rt

fo
rd

, 
G

ra
v
e
s
h
a
m

 &
 S

w
a
n

le
y
 

G
P

 
- 

G
e
n
e
ra

l 
P

ra
c
ti
ti
o
n
e
r 

 

H
A

T
 

- 
H

e
a
lt
h
 A

c
ti
o
n
 T

e
a
m

 

H
IA

 
- 

H
e
a
lt
h
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

A
g

e
n
c
y
 

H
IN

S
T

 
- 

D
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 
o
f 

H
e
a
lt
h
 I
n
e
q

u
a
lit

ie
s
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
S

u
p
p
o
rt

 T
e
a
m

 

IS
V

A
  

- 
In

d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
S

e
x
u
a
l 
V

io
le

n
c
e
 A

d
v
is

o
rs

 

K
C

C
 

- 
K

e
n
t 

C
o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

K
C

H
T

 
- 

K
e
n
t 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 H

e
a
lt
h
 T

ru
s
t 

K
IA

S
S

 
- 

K
e
n
t 

In
te

g
ra

te
d
 A

d
o
le

s
c
e
n
t 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 

K
M

P
H

O
  

- 
K

e
n
t 

&
 M

e
d
w

a
y
 P

u
b
lic

 H
e
a
lt
h
 O

b
s
e
rv

a
to

ry
 

L
IG

  
- 

L
o
c
a
l 
Im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 G

ro
u
p
 

M
W

IA
 

- 
M

e
n
ta

l 
W

e
ll-

b
e
in

g
 I
m

p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

N
H

S
 

- 
N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 

N
IC

E
 

- 
N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
In

s
ti
tu

te
 f

o
r 

H
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 C

lin
ic

a
l 
E

x
c
e
lle

n
c
e
 

P
A

C
T

 
- 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
n
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 T

o
g

e
th

e
r 

P
C

S
O

 
- 

P
o
lic

e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

P
S

H
E

 
- 

P
e
rs

o
n
a
l,
 S

o
c
ia

l 
&

 H
e
a
lt
h
 E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

S
D

C
  

- 
S

e
v
e
n
o
a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

S
R

E
 

- 
S

e
x
 &

 R
e
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

s
 E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

V
A

W
K

 
- 

V
o
lu

n
ta

ry
 A

c
ti
o
n
 W

it
h
in

 K
e
n
t 

W
K

 
- 

W
e
s
t 
K

e
n
t 

Y
A

P
 

- 
Y

o
u
n
g

 A
c
ti
v
e
 P

a
re

n
ts

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 62



S
E

V
E

N
O

A
K

S
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 ‘
M

IN
D

 T
H

E
 G

A
P

’ 
P

L
A

N
 -

  
B

u
ild

in
g
 b

ri
d
g
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
tt
e
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

5
3

 

F
o

r 
F

u
rt

h
e

r 
In

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 p
le

a
s
e

 c
o

n
ta

c
t:

 

H
a

y
le

y
 B

ro
o

k
s
 

H
e

a
lt
h

 &
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 M

a
n

a
g
e

r 
S

e
v
e

n
o

a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o
u

n
c
il 

E
m

a
il:

 h
a

y
le

y
.b

ro
o

k
s
@

s
e

v
e

n
o

a
k
s
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

W
e
b
s
it
e

: 
w

w
w

.s
e

v
e

n
o

a
k
s
.g

o
v
.u

k
/h

e
a

lt
h
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 63



Page 64

This page is intentionally left blank



Health Liaison Board – January 2014 

Swanley Dementia Friendly Communities Project – Briefing Note 

 

Lead Organisation 

Kent County Council (Dementia Friendly Communities) – Tracey Schneider 

Swanley Town Council – Liz Davies 

Seniors Action Forum – Geoff Parsons 

 

Supporting Organisations 

Sevenoaks District Council, GP practices, KCC Libraries, KCC Community Warden, 

West Kent Housing, NHS Kent, local voluntary organisations. 

 

Swanley’s dementia friendly community has been spearheaded by Tracey Schneider 

from KCC who organised the first meeting in Swanley on the 13th August 2013. All 

partners involved in health was to look at and map the existing services and provision 

in Swanley, what are the gaps, who is missing from the meeting that should be here, 

and possible actions or projects. 

 

As a result of the first meeting in August, Geoff Parson set up a dementia friendly 

community swanley blog to highlight the existing services offering dementia support 

and awareness for residents.    

 

As a collective group from the first meeting they where able to identify organisations 

who should be involved for Tracey to invite them at the next meeting held on Thursday 

28th November 2013.  

 

The areas listed below are what were being looked at during the meeting. 

- Looking at the results from the Swanley survey 

- Discussing various options and potential projects 

- Look at what we can do individually and collectively 

- Deciding on next steps for Swanley 

 

To gain an insight into the awareness of dementia across Swanley, they asked people 

to complete some insight gathering surveys. They received 81 responses from 

residents including some affected by dementia, and 29 from local providers and 

organisations. 

 

Below I have highlighted some of the results from the survey; 

 

We asked what they knew about the types, signs and symptoms of dementia (Top five 

answers) 

 

Residents told us: Memory loss, short term memory loss, forgetfulness, confusion, not 

recognising friends and family. 

 

We asked what they knew of in the local area that would help or assist anyone 

affected by dementia (Top five answers) 

 

Agenda Item 8

Page 65



Residents told us: nothing, don’t know, support groups, GP surgery, Age UK. 

 

Service and Organisations told us: Dementia café, age UK, carers learning group, 

Alzheimer’s society, day centre. 

 

We asked what they felt was needed to make the community or organisation 

dementia friendly (Top 5 answers)   

 

Residents told us: Support, awareness, groups, training, and carers. 

 

Services and Organisations told us: awareness, frontline staff training, customer care 

training, information, and awareness via press. 

 

The results from the insight survey was used as a gathering exercise during the 

meeting so organisations could look at the main issues from the survey and what can 

each do individually and  collectively to make it more dementia friendly. 

 

Below are some of the suggestions; 

What do you feel,  are the main issues arising from the insight gathering exercise? 

Lack of awareness of dementia support and pathways within local voluntary , community 
and business organisations, A lot of people thought there was nothing to support 
Low expectations about quality of life with dementia 

Financial struggles of households affected by dementia  
Lack of 1:1 support/advice 
Lack of information available 

No clear access to information 
Mind Gym and positive therapeutic need 

How to keep activity updated 
Many don’t feel part of a community, how to include those who do not mix or join in  
People do not always refer correctly 

Lack of understanding about the functions of available services etc 

What can we do individually? 

Bring information up at Town council 
Invicta advocacy to provide information in regards services 

Bring up at cedars forum 
Provide info and awareness raising about lewey bodies 
Help link to national initiatives 

Focus on promoting services, resources, signposting 
Feedback to CLS leads in regards possible support courses 
Continue with the Swanley dementia Diary, blogs and pages 

Provide Dementia Friends Information sessions 
Take people along to suggested groups such as dementia café, rather than just referring. 

Use existing relationships to help bridge gaps  
 

What can we do collectively and with whom? 

Develop library as a support hub for people affected by dementia, with many other 
agencies  

Initial xmas event to be arranged with the DFC team, town council and local support 
groups (maybe orchards school)  

Dementia awareness and forward planning sessions for asda and other employers, with 
Geoff and other dementia friends champions  

Agenda Item 8

Page 66



WKHA officers given info sessions after team meetings  
Town and district counsellors to be dementia friends  

Possible development of courses to compliment the ‘carers courses ‘ 
Look at availability of finance assistance and those able to advise, maybe short courses 
on finance management etc  

All to gain better understanding of local services so that referrals may be made 
appropriate,, consideration given to accompanying individuals to groups etc in the first 
instance.  

A youth involvement aspect  
Work with the Cedars PPG and also wider CCG to promote awareness 

Town shops and businesses to become involved through an awareness scheme  

 

As to the future of the group they suggested forming a Swanley ‘Dementia Action 

Alliance’ 

 

A Local Dementia Action Alliance is a collection of stakeholders brought together to 

improve the lives of people with dementia in their area. They would usually include a 

range of organisations within a community and examples would include bus 

companies, taxi firms, police forces, fire and rescue services, high streets, local 

authorities, charities, care providers and health trust, faith groups, local associations 

or schools. 

 
Through organisations and communities joining together to form Local Dementia 

Action Alliances we hope to create dementia friendly communities, where there is a 

greater awareness and understanding of dementia and individuals with dementia and 

their carers feel supported to remain independent and have choice and control over 

their lives.  

 

Involving people living with dementia, their carers and families in your Local Alliance is 

central to ensuring your Alliance meets the needs within that community and becomes 

dementia friendly.  

 

Members can include:  

• Local people with dementia, carers, people with an interest in supporting the 

Alliance  

• Local businesses leaders and retailers  

• Local Authority, Public Services & Voluntary Organisations (eg Local Councillors, 

Police, Fire, Leisure Centre, Library, Age UK, Red Cross)  

• Health and Social Care Providers (eg GP’s, residential homes, memory clinics)  

 

Hayley Brooks 

Health & Communities Manager 

Agenda Item 8

Page 67



Page 68

This page is intentionally left blank



Annual Public Health Report 2013

Your life

Kent health

Agenda Item 9

Page 69



“Kent County Council 
promotes public 
health by enabling 
people to keep active”

“Ultimately, the health 
of Kent lies in the 
hands of its residents”

Agenda Item 9

Page 70



1

Annual Public Health Report 2013

This is my opportunity to provide 
an independent report on the 
health of the people of Kent. 
This year my report focuses on improving health by 

exploring innovative approaches to developing healthy 

communities. An asset based approach concentrates on 

reinforcing what is good about a community, rather than 

looking at what it lacks – a glass half-full approach rather 

than a glass half-empty. Another positive approach is 

building up resilience to increase people’s ability to cope 

under pressure, which helps to maintain their health and 

wellbeing. A further approach is the six ways to wellbeing 

which could have a big impact on Kent’s population.

A signi!cant change occurred on 1 April 2013. Public 

Health responsibilities, including my responsibility for 

producing an Annual Public Health Report moved from 

the NHS to Kent County Council (KCC).

What changes might you see as 
a result of Kent County Council 
taking responsibility for Public 
Health?
It’s a welcome change, which could have a once-in-a-

generation signi!cance. Kent County Council has broad 

responsibilities for all sorts of areas that a#ect health and 

wellbeing, such as roads, housing, social care, children’s 

services and the environment. Public understanding 

of health issues is invariably related to hospitals and 

primary care, yet we know that long term health is more 

related to healthy behaviour and social circumstance. 

Now that Kent County Council is responsible for the 

public’s health there is a wonderful opportunity to focus 

on individuals, communities and things we can do to 

prevent illness and increase healthy life expectancy.

Through the work that provides country parks and 

maintains highways and byways, Kent County Council 

promotes public health by enabling people to keep 

active – contributing to a healthier county. Also vitally 

important are the links the council builds with partners 

and agencies, such as Sport England, bringing sport to 

young and old, and voluntary organisations, such as  

Age UK, which help older people avoid isolation and  

stay active.

Public Health aims to transform knowledge of healthy 

lifestyles into action, so that changes in behaviour 

are encouraged, not just on an individual level, but in 

terms of the whole Kent community. The link between 

those individual choices and the health of the county is 

summed up in the title of this report:  

Your Life – Kent Health.

Ultimately, the health of Kent lies in the hands of its 

residents. With support, encouragement and the right 

services provided by Kent County Council I am excited 

about how residents will step on to the road that has a 

healthier Kent as its destination.

Health trends in Kent 
The vast majority of Kent health trends are reported in 

the Kent Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (available 

from www.kmpho.nhs.uk/JSNA). The statistics and data 

analysis in this series of reports inform and support 

health and wellbeing boards, clinical commissioning 

groups, Kent County Council, district councils and many 

other voluntary and private sector organisations, in 

making decisions that have an impact on health.

Annual Public Health Report 2013

 

ng  

Meradin Peachey Director of Public Health, Kent

Agenda Item 9

Page 71



2

Annual Public Health Report 2013

Last year my annual public health report investigated 

health inequalities, the role of primary care in prevention, 

long term conditions, and the challenges of children’s 

social care. This report details below progress on the 

recommendations in the last report.

Health inequalities
Reducing the health inequalities that still exist in 

di#erent areas of Kent is at the heart of all of the 

collaborative work that we do.

Mind the gap: building bridges to better health for all1 is a 

health inequalities action plan produced by Kent County 

Council in collaboration with public health and district 

councils. The plan is based on the principles of Marmot’s 

life-course approach2 and has been aligned to the 

Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) priorities and 

relevant policies and plans.

As part of this approach, Professor Chris Bentley, a 

leading expert on health inequalities, has visited 

a number of Kent local authorities and clinical 

commissioning groups (CCGs), as well as the Kent 

Health and Wellbeing Board, over the last year. He has 

demonstrated a number of approaches to understanding 

the health inequalities gap. The Public Health Intelligence 

Team has compared small geographical areas, or 

lower level super output areas (LSOAs) to help CCGs 

understand where the avoidable variations are.

Progress since the last report

Long term conditions 
Managing people with multiple long term conditions is 

recognised across Kent as a real priority, indeed the Kent 

health and wellbeing strategy supports this.

Our collective aim is to develop an integrated approach 

where health and social care services work together 

to support people with multiple long term conditions. 

In this way they are helped to manage their care 

themselves, with support provided in the community.

Kent has been nationally recognised for its progress in 

implementing this integrated care approach. As a result 

of this, Kent has been invited to work on the Year of Care 

programme, a new way of providing care to people with 

longterm conditions.

Role of primary care in 
prevention
The NHS health check programme is now fully 

implemented across Kent. The programme invites 

eligible people for a check at their local GP surgery. The 

service can also be delivered in community settings that 

target those people who are not registered with a GP.

This makes sure that those at risk are able to access the 

support services they need to change lifestyles, in order 

to reduce their risk of future health problems.

1 Kent County Council. Mind the gap: building bridges to better health for all. Kent: KCC; 2012.
2 Marmot M, Atkinson T, Bell J. Fair society, healthy lives London : UCL; 2010.

“The NHS health check programme is 
now fully implemented across Kent. 
The programme invites eligible people 
for a check at their local GP surgery”

Agenda Item 9

Page 72



3

Annual Public Health Report 2013

Challenges of a modern 
children’s social care service
In 2010, OFSTED rated Kent children’s social services as 

inadequate. Since then Kent County Council has been 

inspected in the areas of safeguarding (January 2013), 

adoption (June 2013) and children in care (August 2013) 

– all of which have been assessed as adequate, with good 

capacity to improve. This re$ects the hard work that has 

gone on during the last three years to improve children’s 

social services in Kent. 

Underpinning this hard work is an emphasis on changing 

the culture of children’s social services, moving to a more 

e#ective way of working. Kent has developed a social 

work contract which puts emphasis on authoritative 

practice, enabling social workers to exercise professional 

judgement by being:

• analytical

• thoughtful

• able to make independent judgements

• able to build e#ective working relationships with 

vulnerable families.

“Kent has been 
nationally 
recognised for 
its progress in 
implementing 
the integrated 
care agenda”

“An asset 
approach looks 
at all the positive 
and useful things 
available to us”

As part of this contract Kent Children’s Social Services are 

committed to providing:

• improved supervision

• managed caseloads

• investment in a new IT system that focuses less 

on completing tick box questions and more on a 

dialogue between the social worker, families and 

children, enabling a more analytical and re$ective 

approach to identifying problems and issues.

Kent has commissioned !ve social work master classes – 

which include training sessions from leading experts in 

children’s social care; Eileen Munro and Isabelle Trowler, 

bridging the gap between those who make policy and 

frontline sta#. This is in addition to the appointment 

of two principle practitioners, whose role is to provide 

a bridge between frontline sta#, management and 

politicians, as recommended in the Munro report.

Children’s social work is a labour intensive activity and as 

with all services we need to ensure best value for money 

in these times of economic austerity. A move towards 

a more quality-assured approach will enable a more 

e#ective and e%cient service, resulting in better quality 

care, long term savings and a reduction in the time that 

children spend in care. 

Agenda Item 9

Page 73



4

Annual Public Health Report 2013

April 2013 marked the beginning of a new era of public 

health within local government. Moving responsibility 

for the public’s health out of the National Health 

Service (NHS) into local government o#ers a greater 

opportunity to focus on preventing ill-health, by building 

on the partnerships developed within the NHS and 

concentrating on the primary factors that can change an 

individual’s ability to live a healthy life. 

Through a joined-up, or integrated approach, Kent 

County Council will make sure that the people of Kent 

have access to a good standard of education, a clean, 

safe and sustainable environment in which to live, with 

good employment opportunities, and will work with 

local businesses to ensure good workplace health and 

accessible services that are relevant to the needs of the 

people that live in Kent.

As individuals we all have to take some responsibility for 

our own wellbeing. Kent, the Garden of England, with 

miles of coastline, many country parks and green spaces, 

provides opportunities for improving physical activity, 

helping people feel connected with the environment 

that they live in. 

Public health traditionally assesses need by looking at 

what we lack – be it health or access to services. However  

an asset approach turns this on its head and looks at 

all the positive and useful things available to us - from 

buildings, services, communities and networks that we 

can use along our health journey.

Mapping all these assets can help people to identify 

what activities and facilities are available in their area. 

It helps the person planning services – because it 

enables them to make better decisions based on the 

way people live. These assets can be social, !nancial, 

physical, environmental, or human resources – for 

example employment, education, and supportive social 

networks3. Each community has di#erent resources at its 

disposal, which can help to boost that community’s level 

of wellbeing.  

Public health: a new era

3 Harrison D, Ziglio E, Levin L, Morgan A. Assets for health and development: developing a conceptual framework. Venice: 

European O%ce for Investment for Health and Development, WHO; 2004. 
4  Dahlgren G, Whitehead M. Policies and strategies to promote social equity in health. Copenhagen: WHO; 1991.
5  Schroeder SA. We can do better—improving the health of the American people. N Engl J Med 2007;357(12):1221-1228.

Dahlgren and Whitehead’s Social Model of Health 

(1991)4 describes the layers of in$uence on health. This 

model maps the relationship between the individual, 

their environment and disease. Individual people are at 

the centre with a !xed set of genes. Surrounding them 

are in$uences on health that can be modi!ed. The !rst 

layer is personal behaviour and ways of living that can 

promote or damage health, for example the choice 

to smoke or not smoke. The next layer is social and 

community in$uences, which provide mutual support for 

members of the community in unfavourable conditions, 

such as times of austerity. However, they can also provide 

no support or have a negative e#ect. The third layer 

includes structural factors: housing, working conditions, 

access to services and provision of essential facilities.

Changing people’s lifestyle and behaviour has a big 

impact on reducing premature deaths5.

Many ways to influence wellbeing

“Kent, with miles 
of coastline, 
many country 
parks and green 
spaces, provides 
opportunities 
for physical 
activity”

Agenda Item 9

Page 74



5

Annual Public Health Report 2013

In

dividual lifestyle factors

So
cia

l a
nd community networks

Living and working
 conditions

G
en

era
l s

ocio-economic, cultural and environmental conditionsWork 

environment

Education

Agriculture 

and food 

production

Housing

Healthcare 

services

Water and 

sanitation

Unemployment

Age, sex and 
constitutional 

factors

Dahlgren and Whitehead’s Social Model of Health (1991)6 

Wider determinants of health
We each have a responsibility for our own health as 

individuals by making informed choices on the  

lifestyles that we lead. We also have a responsibility to 

our community.

Communities play an important part in our health and 

our wellbeing. The !rst community we encounter is (in 

most cases) a supportive and loving family. As we grow 

we go to school, move on through to further education 

or employment, develop hobbies and social groups, and 

form friendships. For some of us, wider communities 

such as faith groups become a central focus, while others 

!nd their focus in neighbours or the wider community 

where they live. 

Communities are crucial to people because fundamentally 

we are social creatures that thrive on social interactions. It 

is these interactions which enable us to be more resilient 

during times of change or hardship.

People in the UK believe their wellbeing should be 

measured in terms of health, friends, families and job 

satisfaction7. This informed the National Happiness Index 

which complements other economic measures. 

6 Dahlgren G, Whitehead M. Policies and strategies to promote social equity in health. Copenhagen: WHO; 1991.
7 Self A, Thomas J, Randall C. Measuring national well-being: life in the UK, 2012. London: ONS; 2012.

“In general the 
population of Kent 
has a higher rate 
of wellbeing than 
the UK average”

Agenda Item 9

Page 75



6

Annual Public Health Report 2013

S
a
ti
sf

a
ct

io
n

W
o
rt

h
w

h
il
e
n
e
ss

W
o
rt

h
w

h
il
e
n
e
ss

H
a
p
p
in

e
ss

H
a
p
p
in

e
ss

A
n
xi

e
ty

A
n
xi

e
ty

S
a
ti
sf

a
ct

io
n

0%

10%

21.3 15.7 26.5 37.8 24.1 20.0 28.9 39.9

78.7 84.3 73.6 62.2 75.9 80.0 71.1 60.1

30%

20%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

LowLevel of wellbeing

Kent England

High

Satisfaction, worthwhileness and happiness are measured by the 
following scoring system:

High score (7-10)

Low score (0-6)

Anxiety

High score (4-10)

Low score (0-3)

Source: O"ce of National Statistics subjective wellbeing APS Mar 2011 – Apr 2012 crown copyright.

Measuring wellbeing
The government introduced a measure of wellbeing which includes indicators on life satisfaction, how worthwhile life 

is considered to be, happiness and anxiety. In general, the population of Kent has a higher rate of wellbeing across the 

components with the exception of anxiety, where the level for Kent is slightly higher than that for England. 

Wellbeing index components 2011-2012

Agenda Item 9

Page 76



7

Annual Public Health Report 2013

Being resilient is one of the key factors of wellbeing, reducing stress, building supportive networks of people who can 

help us, knowing where to go for help and ultimately knowing how to change things for the better.

This resilience is vital to individual and community wellbeing, and consequently many of the assets that create 

the conditions for wellbeing – and more widely for health - lie within the social context of people’s lives. These 

characteristics therefore have the potential to contribute to reducing health inequalities8. 

For individuals and communities to be resilient, a number of factors need to be in place – these are those basic 

elements that all individuals require as a stable platform, such as: 

• adequate housing 

• a safe environment 

• healthy diet

• access to fresh air. 

Indicators that point to a less resilient community may include an increase in the fear of crime and rates of suicide. 

There was a decline in the rate of suicide prior to 2008, since then there has been an increase. This coincides with the 

economic downturn and an increase in unemployment.

Resilience: coping and thriving

D
ir
e
ct

ly
 a

g
e
 s
ta

n
d
a
rd

is
e
d
 r
a
te

 p
e
r 
1
0
0
,0

0
0
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n

Kent

England

1993-95

0.0

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

1994-96 1995-97 1996-98 1997-99 1998-00 1999-01 2000-02 2001-03 2002-04 2003-05 2004-06 2005-07 2006-08 2007-09 2008-10

Source: Information Centre, indicator portal

8 McLean J. Asset based approaches for health improvement: redressing the balance. Glasgow: Glasgow Centre for Population 

Health; 2011.

Mortality rate from suicides 1993-2010, three year rolling averages

Agenda Item 9

Page 77



8

Annual Public Health Report 2013

S
p

e
ci

"
c 

a
p

p
ro

a
ch

e
s

Actions

The framework shown below identi!es some of the core elements that enable adults to be more resilient.

Resilience framework

Adapted from original model – Resilience Framework (Adults) by Hart, Blincow and Cameron www.boingboing.org.uk 

Basics

Good enough 

housing

Enough money to 

live

Being safe

Access and 

transport

Healthy diet

Excercise and fresh 

air

Enough sleep

Leisure and work 

occupations

Actions

Belonging

Find somewhere to 

belong

Help understand 

place in the world, 

and that others 

may face similar 

situations

Tap into good 

in$uences (e.g. peer 

support)

Keep relationships 

going (e.g. 

educators/support 

partners/carers/

family)

Take what you can 

from relationships 

where there is some 

hope

Get together people 

you can count on

Give a sense of 

purpose

Focus on good 

times and places

Make an e#ort 

to understand 

someone else’s 

background – 

where they are 

coming from

Predict a good 

experience of 

someone or 

something new

Make friends and 

mix

Learning

Make work 

and learning as 

successful as 

possible

Engage mentors

Map out career or 

life plan

Develop 

organisation skills

Highlight 

achievements

Coping

Understanding 

boundaries and 

keeping within 

them

Encourage a 

positive outlook 

and reframe your 

perspective

Develop interests

Re$ect and remain 

calm

Minimise time spent 

worrying about 

things outside of 

your control

Take the support 

o#ered to you

Say yes to 

opportunities to 

have fun

Try not to 

blame yourself 

unnecessarily

Core self

Encourage positive 

thinking

Promote 

understanding of 

others

Identify your own 

motivations and 

barriers

Promote personal 

responsibility

Develop your 

talents and skills

Make use of existing 

tried and tested 

approaches and 

treatments

Accepting
Interpersonal skills – 

empathy

Conserving
Interpersonal skills – trust

Commitment
Ongoing support

Enlisting
Self, family, friends, GP,  

mental health professionals

Agenda Item 9

Page 78



9

Annual Public Health Report 2013

There is a strong and growing body of evidence that community-based approaches to 
improving health and providing care and support can be cost effective, deliver better 
outcomes and help to prevent health and social care needs arising9. 

Through our public consultation and engagement events, a strong and constant message has emerged – people 

accessing adult social care want a life and not a service. 

Kent residents have told us that they want to attend and participate in a wide range of activities in their community 

and that they want to be able to live in their own homes for as long as possible. 

As we seek to do more with less, and face the pressures of reduced public spending, we are working to understand 

how we can support community development and answer the following questions:

• can a strong and supportive community meet the needs of those who live within it? 

• will this reduce or delay the need for traditional social services? 

• what services need to be available to support individual, family and community resilience and the ability to  

self care? 

• how do we move forward and get the right balance between contracting for a range of services and 

facilitating/supporting individuals and communities to !nd their own solutions? 

• how should the council intervene to support greater independence and control within communities to !nd 

their own solutions?

As we develop future commissioning strategies and approaches to the delivery of social care, we will be asking: what 

is the best way to develop our understanding of social capital and focus on the skills, talents and enthusiasm of local 

people, in order to develop community based approaches that deliver better outcomes with fewer resources? 

In order to strengthen resilience in the community, the assets (i.e. !nance, networks etc.) and the elements that make 

up a thriving community, need to be mapped, understood and developed.

Emma Hanson
Head of Strategic Commissioning,  
KCC Families and Social Care Adult Community Services 

Why build community capacity?
– a social care commissioner’s questions

9 Think local act personal. Leadership of empowered and healthy communities programme. 2013

“In order to strengthen resilience in the community, 
the assets (i.e. finance, networks etc.) and the 
elements that make up a thriving community, need 
to be mapped, understood and developed”

Agenda Item 9

Page 79



10

Annual Public Health Report 2013

In order to capture the impact of how we are addressing 

health inequalities, we use health impact assessment 

methodology, one of a number of key public health tools.

The Mind the Gap Health Inequalities and Wellbeing 

Impact Assessment Toolkit (HIWIA)10 is a tailor-made 

tool, adapted from the Mental Health and Wellbeing 

Impact Assessment toolkit. The HIWIA tool is being used 

with partners in local authorities across Kent, as a key 

approach to identifying community assets and services 

that contribute to reducing health inequalities. 

The HIWIA has been used effectively to identify 
where specific and existing services can be 
enhanced to make sure that inequalities issues 
are being met. Some services that can be 
accessed by all such as HOUSE are required to 
tailor aspects of delivery to meet the needs of 
more vulnerable young people whose behaviour 
involves risk taking. Applying the screening 
toolkit has identified where further targeting and 
support should be delivered. 

There is more than one way to identify and articulate 

these assets. Di#erent investigative approaches can 

discover the value of the assets in Kent that work to 

provide antidotes to su#ering, and keep people well11.

Mind the gap – partnership working

10 Cooke A, Friedli L, Coggins T, Edmonds N, O’Hara K, Snowden L, et al. The mental wellbeing impact assessment toolkit. London: 

NMHDU; 2011. 

11  Foot J, Hopkins T. A glass half-full: how an asset approach can improve community health and well-being. London: 

Improvement and Development Agency; 2010.

Agenda Item 9

Page 80



11

Annual Public Health Report 2013

Source: Cooke A, Friedli L, Coggins T, Edmonds N, O’Hara K, Snowden L, et al. The mental wellbeing impact assessment 

toolkit. London: NMHDU; 2011. 

Screening – deciding should you carry out an HIWIA?
Making an initial assessment of your proposal and deciding if 
further investigation is required

Action planning and implementation

Scoping – how will you carry out the HIWIA?
Initial policy appraisal, community profile, options for 
geographical boundaries and assessment of impacts.

Identification of indicators

For monitoring impacts of your proposal on health inequalities,  
wellbeing and implementation of recommendations

Identification of potential positive or negative impacts

Identification of recommendations and report

Appraisal process – gathering and assessing 
the evidence

Community profiling
Stakeholder and key informant – HIWIA workshop
Research such as literature review

Overview of Health Inequalities and Wellbeing Impact Assessment process
(adapted from the Mental Health and Wellbeing Impact Assessment toolkit)

Agenda Item 9

Page 81



12

Annual Public Health Report 2013

include encouraging more young people to stay on in 

school, undertake an apprenticeship or be a volunteer. 

Kent County Council, in conjunction with partners, has 

developed the HOUSE project, which gives younger 

people a space to meet outside of school, with access to 

health and social care professionals. This is an example 

of how we can identify some of the resources that exist 

within communities, which help people take the lead in 

improving their health and wellbeing.  

Community engagement
The health inequalities and wellbeing impact assessment 

toolkit is a type of community engagement. Focus groups, 

listening and engagement events with key groups and 

businesses are other important ways of understanding, 

identifying and building community assets. 

In Kent there are many young people who are not 

engaging with education and are facing high levels of 

unemployment. 18 to 24 year-olds represent almost 

a third of the total number of unemployed persons 

within Kent. The highest levels of youth unemployment 

are in Thanet, Swale, Dover, Gravesham and Shepway. 

A conventional government antidote to this might 

0

5,000

Ja
n

 0
3

M
a

y
 0

3

S
e

p
t 

0
3

Ja
n

 0
4

M
a

y
 0

4

S
e

p
t 

0
4

Ja
n

 0
5

M
a

y
 0

5

S
e

p
t 

0
5

Ja
n

 0
6

M
a

y
 0

6

S
e

p
t 

0
6

Ja
n

 0
7

M
a

y
 0

7

S
e

p
t 

0
7

Ja
n

 0
8

M
a

y
 0

8

S
e

p
t 

0
8

Ja
n

 0
9

M
a

y
 0

9

S
e

p
t 

0
9

Ja
n

 1
0

M
a

y
 1

0

S
e

p
t 

1
0

Ja
n

 1
1

M
a

y
 1

1

S
e

p
t 

1
1

Ja
n

 1
2

M
a

y
 1

2

M
a

y
 1

3

S
e

p
t 

1
2

Ja
n

 1
3

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

30,000

35,000

18-24 unemployed

Research and Evaluation, Kent County Council

Source: ONS Claimant count

All other employment

Trend in Kent unemployment rates January 2003 to May 2013

Agenda Item 9

Page 82



13

Annual Public Health Report 2013

18 to 24 year-old unemployment rate by district 
authorities as at May 2013

0
.0

2
.0

4
.0

6
.0

8
.0

1
0

.0
1
2

.0
1
4

.0

T
h

a
n

e
t

1
8

-2
4

 y
e

a
r 

o
ld

 u
n

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
ra

te

S
w

a
le

D
o

v
e

r

G
ra

v
e

s
h

a
m

S
h

e
p

w
a

y

M
a

id
s
to

n
e

A
s
h

fo
rd

D
a

rt
fo

rd

T
o

n
b

ri
d

g
e

 a
n

d
 M

a
ll

in
g

S
e

v
e

n
o

a
k

s

C
a

n
te

rb
u

ry

T
u

n
b

ri
d

g
e

 W
e

ll
s

18 to 24 year-old 
unemployment rates in 
the South East June 2013

KCC districts

GB average

“Resources that 
exist within 
communities 
help people 
take the lead in 
improving their 
own health and 
wellbeing”

Agenda Item 9

Page 83



14

Annual Public Health Report 2013

One of our greatest assets is the Kent countryside
The Kent countryside is in itself a great asset, economically, culturally and socially. From the Channel Tunnel to picnics 

on the white cli#s at Dover, health walks in the many Kent country parks, to groups of volunteers who gather together 

to improve their green spaces, right through to small numbers of people with mental health problems who go 

walking together, the countryside is important. Given this abundance of natural resource, we think mapping this for 

health and wellbeing is important.

The outdoors and mental health
Research shows the value of exercise in reducing mild symptoms of depression and anxiety12. Regardless of what 

activity suits you best, the evidence is clear that doing any physical activity is better than none, in terms of mental 

wellbeing. Getting started is the most important thing. 

Realising the positive opportunities in our outdoor environment is a fundamental factor in promoting health. Whether 

we live in an urban environment or in the countryside, the natural environment is the basis of our economic, social 

and personal wellbeing.

12 Glenister D. Exercise and mental health: A review. The Journal of the Royal Society for the Promotion of Health 1996;116(1):7-13.

Case study: health improvement in young people

The House Project

HOUSE is an innovative campaign 

that was developed by Kent County 

Council, M&C Saatchi and young 

people. Aiming to get public health 

messages over to teenagers in a 

way that was accessible to them, 

a pilot project demonstrated how 

the approach empowered young 

people to make informed choices 

in relation to their health, wellbeing 

and lifestyle. Those choices in turn 

led to a large number of positive 

outcomes. Looking forward, Kent’s 

public health team is working with 

district councils and other partners 

to develop permanent HOUSE 

projects and to continue HOUSE on 

the Move (HOTM). 

Agenda Item 9

Page 84



15

Annual Public Health Report 2013

Residents of West Kingsdown are amongst those taking steps to improve their !tness and 

wellbeing with a local health walk.

Many retired people participate if they feel they need to stay active, because walking is 

one of the best and cheapest forms of exercise available. Walks last about one hour and 

are a great way to start to get !t, especially for those recovering from an illness  

or operation.

Taking part in these walks is not just about the health bene!ts; it’s also about the 

opportunity to socialise and meet new people.

Living in a village can be a wonderful experience. But in many rural areas, people often 

get about by car so meeting others can be a challenge. Taking part in health walks helps 

people make new friends.

The district’s health walks are run by local volunteers who are trained and supported by 

Sevenoaks District Council, in partnership with Kent County Council.

West Kingsdown health walks

Case study:

Agenda Item 9

Page 85



16

Annual Public Health Report 2013

0.0

2.0

4.0

6.0

8.0

10.0

12.0

14.0

16.0

18.0

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 (
%
)

Dover 

Sevenoaks

Cante
rb

ury

Sw
ale

Kent

Tonbrid
ge a

nd M
alli

ng

Engla
nd

Shepw
ay

M
aid

st
one

Thanet

Ash
fo

rd

Tunbrid
ge W

ells

Gra
vesh

am

Dart
fo

rd

Outdoor spaces: supporting physical health 
Many chronic diseases are linked to lack of physical 

activity. These include common health problems, such 

as cardiovascular disease, diabetes, some cancers 

and osteoporosis, all of which are a major cost to our 

healthcare system. 

Measures of physical activity in England consistently 

show that most people do not reach the nationally 

recommended levels for adults – 30 minutes of moderate 

intensity activity, !ve times per week. Only 11.2% of 

adults in England meet the recommended levels, Kent 

is slightly better at 11.4%. Dover district has the highest 

level of participation of the 12 Kent districts. 

Access to nature can encourage participation in physical 

activity. Going out for a stroll or to  get some fresh air 

inspires people of all ages to be active. Evidence suggests 

that being outdoors in nature is an important factor that 

helps to maintain people’s motivation to keep !t. 

For example, many join schemes such as Green 

Gyms for their health, but they stay because of their 

environment13. Many participants in health walks say 

the changing seasons and variety of wildlife are a major 

encouragement to continue attending14. These examples 

of green exercise – physical activity undertaken in the 

outdoors – provide a virtuous cycle between nature and 

exercise in their local area.

Adult participation in physical activity 2009-2011

13 Heron C, Bradshaw G. Walk this way: recognising 

the value in active health prevention. London: 

Local Government Information Unit, Natural 

England; 2010. 
14 Molteno S, Morris J, O’Brien L. Public access to 

woodlands and forests: a rapid evidence review. 

London: Forest Research; 2012. 

“The changing seasons and 
variety of wildlife are a 
major encouragement to 
continue walking”

Source: Health Pro!les 2012

Agenda Item 9

Page 86



17

Annual Public Health Report 2013

www.walkingforhealth.org.uk/walk!nder/south-east/east-kent-health-walksEast Kent health walks

Sittingbourne

Sheerness

Herne Bay

Ramsgate

Margate

Canterbury

Folkestone

Dover

Deal

Tenterden

Wittersham

Charing

Smarden

http://edition.pagesuite-professional.co.uk//launch.

aspx?pbid=54246325-d046-441e-8b5f-564a7078069b

Explore Kent has developed a number of walks 

and cycle rides that take in natural and cultural 

elements of Kent. 

“Being outdoors 
in nature helps to 
maintain people’s 
motivation to 
keep fit”

Agenda Item 9

Page 87



18

Annual Public Health Report 2013

We know our mental health and physical health are 

connected. When we feel stress for long periods of time 

the hormones that get released into our body (cortisol) 

can be harmful to our immune system and slow down 

our healing, in some cases even causing illness15. 

There are two main factors to mental wellbeing: feeling 

good and functioning well. 

People have control over their own wellbeing to some 

extent, by creating positive mental approaches to health 

and wellbeing and shaping how we feel. Many people 

know they have the capacity to stay well, improve their 

health and in particular their wellbeing16 using their 

personal energy and resources – material, social or 

psychological – to cope with stress and challenges17.

One of the roles of public health is to develop 

community assets to support people’s wellbeing.

There is no health

without mental wellbeing

15 Dhabhar F S. Enhancing versus suppressive e#ects of stress on immune function: implications for immunoprotection and 

immunopathology. Neuroimmunomodulation 2009;16(5):300-317.
16 Antonovsky A. The salutogenic model as a theory to guide health promotion. Health Promotion Internation 1996;11(1):11-18.
17 Lindström, B, Eriksson, M. Salutogenesis. Journal of Epidemiology and Community Health, 2005: 59:440-442

“Mental 
health and 
physical 
health are 
connected”

Agenda Item 9

Page 88



19

Annual Public Health Report 2013

Looking further forwards, a developing part of the vision for 
public health is the recognition that positive mental health 
and wellbeing is also a product of wider societal factors; the 
presence or absence of mental health is therefore, above 
all, a social indicator and requires community, as well as 
individual solutions18. The more deprived a community, the 
more likelihood there is for stresses and life events to cause 
major !nancial and emotional problems. As an example, 
research shows that keeping well is dependent on a range 
of factors such as secure employment and a sustainable 
income19. Signi!cantly higher numbers of people on low 
incomes face anxiety and depression as they struggle to 

keep themselves and their families well20. This is likely to be 
made worse as welfare reform changes are implemented. 

The following map shows the proportion of people in 
Kent and Medway by small geographical areas (lower 
layer super output areas LSOA), aged 16-64 who were 
claiming any of the Department of Work and Pensions 
(DWP) bene!ts as at November 2012. Those areas 
coloured pink indicate the 20% of LSOAs which have the 
highest proportion of 16-64 year old people claiming 
DWP bene!ts. The highest numbers of people claiming 
bene!ts are generally in areas of greater deprivation.

The Marmot Report: Fair Society Healthy Lives has shown 

the widening gap in health outcomes amongst di#erent 

communities21. We want to identify community resources 

or assets that can help to keep that community well and 

narrow this gap.

An important role for health and local government is to 

identify what supports social networks and the practice 

that sustains a community’s strength to bounce back 

against challenges – its resilience22. Mental health and 

wellbeing, as we have noted, is very much a factor 

of social networks. We need to help government, 

communities and individuals understand how to make 

the most of what is available. 

18 Friedli L. Mental health: resilience and inequalities. Copenhagen, Denmark: WHO Regional O%ce for Europe; 2009. 
19 Dahlgren G, Whitehead M. Policies and strategies to promote social equity in health. Copenhagen:  WHO 1991.
20 Marmot M, Wilkinson R. social determinants of health. 2nd ed.Oxford:Oxford UP; 2006
21 Marmot M, Atkinson T, Bell J. Fair society, healthy lives. : UCL; 2010. 
22 Friedli L, Carlin M. Resilient relationships in the North West: what can the public sector contribute. Manchester: NHS North West 

and Department of Health; 2009. 

“Higher 
numbers 
of people 
on low 
incomes face 
anxiety and 
depression”

Agenda Item 9

Page 89



20

Annual Public Health Report 2013

Six ways to wellbeing in Kent

The relationships we have with other people are very important. Research by the New Economics Foundation23, included 

in Kent’s Live It Well strategy, focuses on how individuals can improve their positive mental health or wellbeing through 

the !ve ways to wellbeing24: In Kent we have added a sixth way – Grow your world: economy and sustainability.

You will notice that many of the six ways interact with each other to create even more possibilities to stay well. 

Kent can o#er assets to support all of the six ways to wellbeing. What’s crucial is that achieving small changes across 

the population will have a big impact,  and through these six ways, Kent County Council can work with its partners 

and communities to ensure we all get a chance to thrive. 

Connect with the people around you. With family, friends, colleagues and 

neighbours – at home, work, school or in your local community. Think of them 

as the cornerstones of your life and invest time in developing connections 

with them. Building these connections will support and enrich you every day.

Go for a walk or run. Step outside. Cycle. Play a game. Garden. Dance. 

Exercising makes you feel good. Most importantly, discover a physical activity 

you enjoy and that suits your level of mobility and !tness.

Be curious. Catch sight of the beautiful. Remark on the unusual. Notice the 

changing seasons. Savour the moment, whether you are walking to work, 

eating lunch or talking to friends. Be aware of the world around you and what 

you are feeling. Re#ecting on your experiences will help you appreciate what 

matters to you.

Try something new. Rediscover an old interest. Sign up for that course. Take on 

a di$erent responsibility at work. Fix a bike. Learn to play an instrument or 

how to cook your favourite food. Set a challenge you will enjoy achieving. 

Learning new things will make you more con!dent as well as being fun.

Do something nice for a friend, or a stranger. Thank someone. Smile. Volunteer 

your time. Join a community group. Look out, as well as in. Seeing yourself, 

and your happiness, linked to the wider community can be incredibly 

rewarding and creates connections with the people around you.

Look after your local surroundings. Get involved with a community group or 

invest your time in a green or small business initiative where you live. Share your 

own knowledge with people in your area to develop your community's skills. 

Plant some seeds or grow vegetables. Recycle where you can. Save energy.

Connect

Be active

Take notice

Keep learning

Give

Grow

23 Aked J. Five ways to wellbeing: new applications, new ways of thinking. London: New Economics Foundation; 2011. 
24 NHS Kent and Medway. Live it well: a strategy for improving the mental health and wellbeing of people in Kent and Medway. 

Kent: NHS Kent and Medway; 2010.

Agenda Item 9

Page 90



21

Annual Public Health Report 2013

Describing the six ways to wellbeing

1. Connect – with family, friends, colleagues, neighbours
Research shows that at society level, social cohesion can have a powerful e#ect on health, over and above individual 

social relationships. This has implications for improving the health of communities26. Religious communities and ethnic 

groups along with vulnerable communities such as carers or veterans can feel marginalised, fearful, insecure, excluded, 

and unable to in$uence decisions or participate fully in society. Connecting is crucial to addressing these issues.

26 Marmot M, Wilkinson R. Social determinants of health. 2nd ed. Oxford: Oxford University Press; 2006. 

Case study: 
C2 Connecting Communities 
– Newington Community Unity 

Over the last year, Public Health has sponsored Connecting 

Communities (C2)  within two Thanet communities, 

Newington and Cliftonville, supporting local residents and 

public services to improve health and wellbeing and bring 

transformation to areas with the most challenges. C2 is a 

time-limited, seven step intervention, leading to  

resident-led, multi-agency partnerships. Newington 

Community Unity is chaired by a local resident and 

addresses local issues; providing continuous feedback, 

celebration of successes and challenges to longstanding 

barriers. This promotes improved community con!dence, 

connections, local volunteering and momentum towards 

change. Exchange visits across the country have connected 

like-minded people, all passionate about improving their 

neighbourhood through connecting and learning. 

Connecting communities works in the following ways: 

• encouraging networks and co-operation amongst 

local residents

• building a parallel community of interest with service 

providers and public agencies 

• sharing inspiration between communities

• giving people greater control over their own  

lives, so they are more likely to adopt health 

enhancing behaviours

• allowing people to co-operate to improve their 

shared conditions

• helping residents converse with service agencies, 

making them more accountable and responsive 

• increasing resilience for communities and individuals

• providing an enabling context for behaviour change

• improving e#ectiveness of patient and public 

involvement

• improving commissioning and delivery though  

co-design of services

• future impact on health inequalities and long  

term conditions.

“Social cohesion can have a powerful effect on health”

Agenda Item 9

Page 91



22

Annual Public Health Report 2013

2. Be active 
The natural environment provides us with essentials such as clean air, fresh water, and food. But it also gives us 

enjoyment, inspiration, opportunities to get active and also to relax. 

Kent has a huge diversity of parks, forests and special environments. The natural environment draws large  

numbers of visitors each year and o#ers the people of Kent huge opportunities for an active lifestyle. The land in 

Kent is very productive, with about two-thirds of the land under agriculture. Bedgebury Pinetum had 235,000 visitors 

during 2012-13.

Healthcare professionals can signpost their patients to outdoor physical activity, including self-directed green exercise 

opportunities such as gardening, walking and cycling, or participation in organised outdoor exercise such as health 

walks or conservation management. The Healthy Club website (https://www.healthyclub.nhs.uk) provides healthcare 

professionals with the information to support their patients and clients to make changes to their lifestyles.

Case study: 
reducing diabetes through exercise

Canterbury student Frazer Edwards, 20, has reduced 

his regular medication and feels great, all thanks to a 

very simple prescription – exercise.

Frazer is a second year student studying Geography at 

Canterbury Christ Church University. When he arrived 

in Kent from his native Su#olk he found that pain in his 

leg from a childhood injury was being exacerbated by 

his new student lifestyle. In addition his blood sugar 

levels were becoming more and more erratic. 

“When I !rst got to uni I was diagnosed as diabetic,” 

explains Frazer: “I used to get hypos all the time as a 

teenager and would regularly fall asleep at school. 

When I came to Canterbury the nerve damage to 

my leg also meant that I was in constant discomfort, 

particularly during lectures, and my blood sugar levels 

were all over the place. My GP prescribed metformin 

to control my blood sugar and also pregabalin for the 

pain in my leg, but neither of them were very e#ective. 

I felt dosed up to my eyeballs and not any better.” 

After a conversation with his dad back home, Frazer 

decided to see if any help was available to him to help 

him to increase his activity levels. He went back to his 

GP who recommended the Exercise Referral Scheme 

from Kent Community Health NHS Trust.

“I met Karen, my personal exercise assistant, at 

Kingsmead Leisure Centre in Canterbury which isn’t far 

from me. She took all my information down and then got 

me using the equipment. Having someone there to help 

and support you to get yourself moving really helps.”

Frazer started exercising three times a week for around 

an hour each time. He says the results have been 

dramatic. “I saw some good results almost immediately 

so that really spurred me on. After just a few weeks I 

was able to come o# the medication for both my leg 

pain and my diabetes. My energy levels have increased 

and I feel brilliant – no more afternoon naps for me! 

My body used to control me but thanks to the exercise 

referral scheme I am back in control of my own body.”

Agenda Item 9

Page 92



23

Annual Public Health Report 2013

Studies suggest that the most e#ective interventions to increase activity levels involve walking from home, rather 

than attendance at a facility27. Research has also begun to explore appropriate dose levels for the bene!ts of green 

exercise, following evidence that the length of stay in nature is the strongest determinant of the  

restorative experience28.

Walking for health encourages people to become physically active in their local communities. In Kent there are 

nine walking-for-health schemes, o#ering regular, short, easy walks with trained volunteer walk leaders. District 

councils o#er health walk schemes, with Kent Community Health Trust providing training to health walk leaders. The 

countryside is freely available to everyone; green gyms have no joining fees and cost nothing to use. Some activities 

are individual, but others can also be a way of meeting other people. Local health walk schemes can be found 

throughout England. There is no need to spend on gym membership when there are opportunities to get active in the 

great outdoors.

Walking for health  
schemes in Kent

East Kent Health Walks

Maidstone Health walks

Bedgebury Health Walks

Sevenoaks District Health Walks

Tonbridge and Malling Health Walks 

Dartford Health Walks

Medway Health Walks

Gravesend: The Gr@nd’s Wednesday Walk

Tunbridge Wells Health Walks 

27 Hillsdon M, Thorogood M. A systematic review of physical activity promotion strategies. Br J Sports Med 1996;30(2):84-89.
28 Reid L, Hunter C. State of understanding report 1: personal well-being and interactions with nature. London: Economic and 

Social Research Council; 2011.

“Healthcare professionals 
can signpost their patients 
to outdoor physical activity”

 7,391
registered 

walkers

Women
76.4%

(5,645)

Men
23.6%

(1,746)

Agenda Item 9

Page 93



24

Annual Public Health Report 2013

3. Take notice – be curious, reflect on experiences

Isolation, introspection and internalising of emotions 

can be contrary to wellbeing. Where individuals are 

aware of the world around them, what they are feeling, 

and re$ect on their experiences, they will have a greater 

appreciation of what matters to them. This awareness 

is essential in recognising and addressing challenges in 

their lives. 

Reading can help keep people well and research shows 

that people see their library as a safe, trusted and non-

stigmatised place to go for help29. 

Research also shows that reading for leisure, and having 

the chance to discuss reading with a group of friends, 

helps promote personal wellbeing and reduce stress. 

Libraries support more than 600 reading groups across

 

Kent, and o#er collections of mood-boosting books 

including uplifting novels, poetry and non-!ction, all 

recommended by readers. 

Case study: read yourself well

Kent County Council’s library and archive services 

have always played a key role in supporting the 

health and wellbeing of people in Kent. 

Health professionals are placing more and more 

emphasis on early intervention and prevention to 

reduce mental ill health, and research demonstrates 

the bene!ts of reading, community networks and 

social capital in keeping healthy. We are developing 

new partnerships and services to help people look 

after their health.

Part of the national Reading Well – Books on 

Prescription scheme, launched in June 2013, 

Kent’s libraries provide self-help reading for adults 

experiencing mild to moderate mental health  

issues such as anxiety, depression, phobias and  

eating disorders.

GPs and other health professionals prescribe books to 

their patients from a core national booklist selected 

by experienced mental health practitioners. This 

encourages people to go to their local library and 

borrow the book, all for free. Patients don’t even need 

to have a prescription to borrow these titles. They are 

available to everyone, from 45 libraries across Kent.

well

rvices 

the 

more 

ion to 

strates 

 and 

loping 

 look 

dults 

and 

ooks to 

elected 

This 

 and 

en need 

hey are 

Kent.

29 The Reading Agency. Reading Well. 2013; Available at: http://readingagency.org.uk/adults/quick-guides/reading-well/. 

Accessed 16/8/2013.

“Isolation and 
introspection 
can be contrary 
to wellbeing”

Agenda Item 9

Page 94



25

Annual Public Health Report 2013

4. Keep learning – try something new

Learning new things helps make us more con!dent, as 

well as raising levels of wellbeing. The skills or knowledge 

learned should, crucially, be something we enjoy.

We can achieve this by simply trying something new, or 

rediscover an old interest for example signing up for a 

course, or taking on a di#erent responsibility at work. The 

activity could also be manual – !xing a bike, learning to 

play an instrument or how to cook a favourite food. 

Kent’s mental wellbeing website – www.liveitwell.org.uk 

has a lot of information on opportunities to keep 

learning and to try something new. It is constantly 

updated with new opportunities. In addition, information 

and advice can come from self-help sites, o#ering people 

great ideas on how to keep well. For example, for parents 

there are at least two support sites – Mumsnet30 and 

Netmums31 that support parents to engage in healthy 

activities and connect with each other about the things 

that interest them. 

A Netmums survey32 
found that their 
members tend to make 
their resolutions not 
in the New Year but in 
September, when the 
kids go back to school. 
Something about that 
fresh new term seems 
to get mums thinking 
about turning a new leaf, 
trying something new 
and finally fulfilling those 
dreams and ambitions 
we’ve been putting off 
for too long. Our survey 
found that 47% of mums 
would love to learn 
something new during the 
forthcoming school year.

A Netmums survey
fou

ing new during the 
coming school year.

ing new during the 
coming school year.

30 Mumsnet. 2013; Available at: www.mumsnet.com/info/aboutus. Accessed 16/8/2013.
31 Netmums. 2013; Available at: www.netmums.com/. Accessed 16/8/2013.
32 Netmums. Learning something new. 2013; Available at: www.netmums.com/activities/active-family-fun/things-for-mums-to-

do/learning-something-new. Accessed 16/8/2013. 

“Learning new things helps make us 
more confident, as well as raising 
levels of wellbeing”

Agenda Item 9

Page 95



26

Annual Public Health Report 2013

5. Give – doing something for others

There are many opportunities to get involved in volunteering across Kent. According to research, people who 

volunteer for voluntary organisations generally have healthier lives33,34. Breastfeeding peer supporters are an excellent 

example of the volunteer ethos and they have helped many people in Kent. Kent County Council o#ers sta# a day a 

year to volunteer.

Case study: breastfeeding peers support scheme 

A project funded by Kent County Council but delivered by a community interest company, PS Breastfeeding 

CIC, has enabled more than 85 women to train as breastfeeding peer supporters in Kent. The peer supporters 

work with groups of mothers who want to breastfeed their children, but need support and guidance to cope 

with the challenges. 

The peer supporters work with groups meeting at children’s centres, village halls or other places in the 

community, providing information and support – and not just on breastfeeding. 

Peer Supporter Zara Hayes got involved with the scheme when she had her son, Mason. She said: “The 

scheme was a lifeline. I was struggling with breastfeeding because it can be seen as not a normal thing; there 

are adverts for formula milk everywhere! The group really helped me – and the social element was really 

important, too. So when the opportunity came to train as a supporter myself, I got involved because I wanted 

to give something back.”

Katey Lakey, another peer supporter added: “The bene!ts of breastfeeding are really clear – but it can be quite 

a lonely journey. You spend a lot of time sitting still, on your own, so a lot of people give up. Being able to 

meet with other people going through the same things can be really helpful in keeping going. Breastfeeding 

doesn’t have a marketing industry selling it to mothers.” 

There’s lots of evidence that breastfeeding is good 

for children’s health – but there are also bene!ts for 

the mother. Beverley Smith, who is also a trained peer 

supporter said “It’s the only job that doesn’t generate any 

knock-on activity! There’s no washing up afterwards and 

none of the stress that comes along with formula”. Zara 

adds that “it’s free – which means cash can go on other 

important things!”

The peer support groups are well established in East 

Kent, and will be starting in the west of the county. 

Beverley, who got involved with a group in Folkestone 

after the birth of her son Milo, says the social aspect 

was really important. “I got to meet other people who 

were breastfeeding. It was really reassuring to !nd that 

other people were !guring out the same problems and 

challenges that I was. You don’t need an appointment to 

talk to someone who can point you towards advice, or 

who has been through the same things as you!”

33 Kawachi I, Kennedy BP, Lochner K, Prothrow-Stith D. Social capital, income inequality, and mortality. Am J Public Health 1997 

Sep;87(9):1491-1498. 
34 Wilkinson R, Pickett K. The spirit level: why equality is better for everyone. London: Penguin; 2009.p.78.

Agenda Item 9

Page 96



27

Annual Public Health Report 2013

Case study: living well, Dartford allotments

From brambles to bloom; a small, half-acre allotment 

project has brought healthy living to young and old, 

right across the community in Dartford.

Buried under six feet of prickles, the majority of the 

Cedar Road allotment was entirely out of use until 

November 2009 when a Healthy Living Centre project 

began in the local area. Now, thanks to the hard work 

of volunteers the site has been transformed and the 

Cedar Road allotments have become a real focus 

for community and healthy activity. Regular visitors 

include people with health problems, school age 

children, as well as local residents. 

Sharon Phillips, Healthy Living Centre Manager, got 

the project going and has overseen its progress.

She said: “There have been a lot of di#erent people 

involved in getting the project to where it is now. It 

started with a community grant from Kent County 

Council, which made it possible to start work and 

!nd volunteers to join in. We’ve had local residents, 

community payback groups and even 40 BT managers 

on a team building day. But the foundation are the 

local volunteers, who do so much.

The allotment scheme is all about healthy living, but 

wider impacts ripple out way beyond those who live 

on the doorstep and have a vegetable patch.

Now, with marked paths, organised drainage, a pond 

and a well-equipped tool shed, the allotment has 

become an oasis in its urban surroundings.

Even the homeowners who live around its edge have 

played their part – with one man regularly donating 

water from his pond into an ingenious irrigation 

system, whilst others donate power for community 

events. The houses that look in from every side are 

part of this community project.

Graham Laidlaw, the site’s volunteer groundsman, is 

a computer programmer who cycles in most days in 

the summer – not just to keep the site ticking over, but 

also to make improvements. From water collection and 

pumping to a pond, decking and even clearing stones, 

it seems there’s nothing he hasn’t turned his hand to.

“We’re surrounded by houses, and our neighbours 

really feel part of things. We’ve saved fencing from a 

neighbour that would have gone on a bon!re, and 

we’ve got a grassed area, which is great for socialising 

and barbecues.

“Ultimately, it’s the outcome that matters – it’s about 

what it gives people.”

Steve Grimsey, Health and Sport Development O%cer, 

has seen the allotment become a key location in  

his work.

“As well as individuals, groups are bene!ting from 

the project. We’re working with the pupil referral 

unit, so have had children in who can !nd the normal 

classroom quite challenging. Then there’s a children’s 

home that have come down and done some planting. 

Later, we’ve gone back to them and shown them, with 

the community chef, how to use what they’ve planted 

and cook the produce.

“With healthy living and weight reduction, just being 

here can be helpful – and educational. It’s about 

learning in a di#erent way. Having the allotment 

here o#ers an opportunity for learning outside the 

classroom.

“It’s about trying to help them learn about healthy 

living and the environment as well as !ve-a-day.”

eers, who do so much.

t scheme is all about healthy living, but 

s ripple out way beyond those who live 

tep and have a vegetable patch.

rked paths, organised drainage, a pondndndnd  

quipped tool shed, the allotment has 

oasis in its urban surroundings.

omeowners who live around its edge havave e e e e 

 part – with one man regularly donating g 

is pond into an ingenious irrigation 

st others donate power for community 

houses that look in from every side are 

ommunity project.

aw, the site’s volunteer groundsman, is 

rogrammer who cycles in most days in 

 not just to keep the site ticking over, butututututut 

mprovements. From water collection andndndndndnd 

 pond, decking and even clearing stonenenes,s,s,s,s, 

re’s nothing he hasn’t turned his hand to.

unded by houses, and our neighbours 

rt of things. We’ve saved fencing from a 

at would have gone on a bon!re, and 

grassed area, which is great for socialisingngngngngng 

ues.

Agenda Item 9

Page 97



28

Annual Public Health Report 2013

6. Grow your world: economy and sustainability

There is a strong association between the economy, the 

labour market, environment and health. The impact of 

poor housing, lack of green spaces, fuel consumption, 

unemployment, poor quality employment and low paid 

work all lead to poorer health outcomes and  

health inequalities. 

These factors cannot be satisfactorily addressed by 

any single agency alone, which is why we are working 

in partnership with local business, public sector 

organisations and Kent chambers of commerce,  

among others.

Regenerating Kent
Regeneration activities aim to reverse economic, social, 

and physical decline in areas where market forces will not 

do this without support from government (Department 

of Communities and Local Government (DCLG)). 

Regeneration needs to: 

• secure long-term change, by tackling barriers 

to growth and reducing worklessness – moving 

communities and individuals from dependence  

to independence

• improve places and make them more attractive to 

residents and investors, allowing new and existing 

businesses to prosper

• foster ambition and unlock potential in the most 

deprived areas by breaking cycles of poverty 

 

• enable everyone in society to gain more  

power in decisions made which a#ect them, and to 

take advantage of the economic opportunities that 

regeneration brings

• supplement (not replace) and help to improve the 

$exibility and targeting of mainstream government 

services in underperforming areas 

• deliver sustainable development which 

contributes to people’s satisfaction with where 

they live as well as wider government goals

• open up opportunities to create more equal 

communities35. 

There have been several projects across Kent that have 

successfully brought economic growth and employment 

opportunities, alongside improved transport links. 

Examples include Thanet Earth, a greenhouse project 

near Monkton which uses the latest e%cient hydroponic 

growing techniques; Eureka Business Park at Ashford; 

The Bridge Project at Dartford; Bluewater Shopping and 

Leisure facility; Westwood Cross shopping centre, the 

High Speed Rail link and Fast Track bus services.

35 Gov.uk. Department for Communities and Local Government. 2013; Available at: https://www.gov.uk/government/

organisations/department-for-communities-and-local-government. Accessed 16/8/2013.

“The impact of poor housing, lack 
of green spaces, fuel consumption, 
unemployment, poor quality employment 
and low paid work all lead to poorer 
health outcomes and health inequalities”

Agenda Item 9

Page 98



29

Annual Public Health Report 2013

Case study:

what have we done to engage with SMEs?
A small pilot project was conducted during 2012-

2013, mainly using existing providers, to test business 

interest and engagement. The pilot included ad-hoc 

interventions, one-to-one engagement and support 

(particularly looking at a Kent programme), a web 

based questionnaire, 

and a county-wide event 

to promote workplace 

health and wellbeing. 

A full evaluation was 

completed in Summer 

2013, but a small interim 

sample shows high 

interest from businesses 

in further work around 

sta# wellbeing.

A clearer picture is evolving of employers’ needs to 

improve sta# health and wellbeing; crucially, no one-

size-!ts-all solution will su%ce, and $exibility will be 

important to business engagement. 

The role of regeneration in reducing health inequalities

Successful regeneration projects will bring health 

improvement, created and determined by where people 

live, work, learn and play.  Public health will support 

regeneration in an advisory role through health and 

wellbeing boards. As population demographics change 

and grow, the public health team’s input will help ensure 

su%cient services are delivered in the right place, for the 

right people. 

Working with businesses to improve 

employee health

Good employment has an impact not only on quality 

of life, but also length of life. People from lower socio-

economic groups, with fewer quali!cations and skills, or 

those with disabilities, or poor mental ill-health are more 

likely to be in low paid, poor quality employment. These 

people, on average, live 17 years less disability-free life 

and on average die seven years earlier36. 

Employment opportunities in Kent

The public sector is still the largest employment sector 

in Kent, although a diverse economy of small and 

medium enterprises (SMEs) exists. 50,000 SMEs in Kent 

are registered for VAT, of which 98% have fewer than 100 

employees. Identifying and engaging with this group of 

businesses is a challenge for Kent, but there are several 

channels which are already being used, e.g. the Small 

Business Federation.

District councils, in particular environmental health and 

health and safety services, have good knowledge of, and 

frequently interact with, the majority of local businesses. 

In addition, the Kent Chamber of Commerce, trade unions 

and other organisations provide information and services.

36 Marmot M, Atkinson T, Bell J. Fair society, healthy lives. : UCL; 2010.

Agenda Item 9

Page 99



30

Annual Public Health Report 2013

“Tonbridge and 
Malling Council 
challenged its own 
staff to eat less 
and move more”

Case study: workplace 
wellbeing in Tonbridge and 
Malling Borough Council

Tonbridge and Malling Borough Council launched 

their !rst Workplace Wellness Event in September 

2010. The council challenged its own sta# to ‘eat less 

and move more’, o#ering many opportunities to make 

small changes to lifestyle to improve long-term health 

through the Change4Life campaign. 

They progressed this to target ‘hard-to-reach’ routine 

and manual workplaces. So far they have worked with 

sta# from over 20 businesses across the public sector, 

retail sector and construction industry. 

They have worked with over 1,000 individuals 

through their workplaces and delivered:

400
Wellbeing or 

NHS health 

checks 100+
Stop 

smoking 

referrals300+
Registered 
smokefree 

homes 
awards

50+
Adult weight 
management 

referrals

1,000+
 Intervention 

and brief advice 

(IBAs) for 

smoking and safe 

use of alcohol

Agenda Item 9

Page 100



31

Annual Public Health Report 2013

Next steps

This report sets out, with numerous examples, some of 

Kent’s great assets, from the natural environment, and 

physical geography, right through to the people and 

communities that live and work in Kent.

Health is not just about access to health services 

(although clearly important for people who are ill and 

require clinical treatment services) but also about 

lifestyle and social circumstances.

Now that Kent County Council is responsible for the 

public’s health, there is a real opportunity to assess the 

health impacts on the complete totality of what the 

council provides, as part of the process of agreeing and 

operating Kent strategies and policies.

In current austere times, resilience and connectedness of 

communities are important elements that signi!cantly 

in$uence health and wellbeing. The traditional model of 

public services provided for people and communities, 

based on a de!cit model of need, has failed our most 

deprived communities, the very communities that are 

neither connected nor resilient. These communities also 

show the worst comparative health outcomes, such as 

low life expectancy and high rates of premature deaths 

(which we consider preventable).

We are calling for councils and public services to work 

with communities, to develop their connectedness, 

improve their resilience and deliver local improvements. 

The example of Connecting Communities shows what 

can be achieved if the work is done together.

We are also very clear that most people have 

responsibility for their own health and wellbeing, that 

parents have responsibility for their children’s health 

and wellbeing and that the basic assets of resilient 

communities include lifestyle behaviours such as eating 

healthy diets and exercising more.

“We are calling for 
councils, public services 
and communities 
to deliver local 
improvements together”

We are calling on the people of Kent to:

• connect

• be active

• take notice

• keep learning

• give

• grow.

Agenda Item 9

Page 101



32

Annual Public Health Report 2013

Acknowledgements

Public Health
Andrew Scott-Clark, Director of Public Health Improvement, Kent County Council

Dr Abraham George, Public Health Consultant, Kent County Council

Jessica Mookherjee, Public Health Consultant, Kent County Council

Marion Gibbon, Public Health Consultant, Kent County Council

Malti Varshney, Public Health Consultant, Kent County Council

Ivan Rudd, Public Health Specialist, Kent County Council

Kas Hardy, Public Health Specialist, Kent County Council

Terry Hall, Senior Public Health Programme Manager, Kent County Council

Jay Edwins, Head of Partnerships, Kent County Council

Natasha Roberts, Head of Public Health Intelligence, Kent County Council

Jack Baxter, Public Health Information O%cer, Kent County Council

Julie Bullass, Project Coordinator, Kent County Council

Louise Holden, Public Health Workforce Development Programme Manager, Kent County Council

Jill Rutland, Public Health Library Manager, Kent County Council

Debbie Smith, Public Health Specialist, Kent County Council

Kent County Council
Kevin Day, Sport and Physical Activity Manager

Sarah Anderson, Climate Change Programme Manager

Emma Hanson, Head of Strategic Commissioning KCC FSC Adult Community Services

Peter Keeling, Business Intelligence Manager (Economy), Research and Evaluation

Steve Charman, Head of Consultation and Engagement

Mark Gurrey, Assistant Director Safeguarding and QA, Families and Social Care

Oscar Plummer, Interim Communications Manager

Lisa Clinton, Campaigns and Marketing O%cer

Mike Sherburn, Deputy Press O%ce Manager

Polly Alpin, Graphic Designer

Phil Houghton, Photographer

Partners
Hayley Brooks, Health, Leisure & Tourism Manager, Sevenoaks District Council

Jane Heeley, Chief Environmental Health O%cer, Tonbridge and Malling Borough Council

Sharon Phillips, Manager, Healthy Living Centre Dartford

Steve Humphrey, Director of Planning, Housing and Environmental Health, Tonbridge and Malling Borough Council

Andy Dunleavy, Senior Public Health Advisor,Stockport Metropolitan Borough Council

Tony Coggins, Head of Mental Health Promotion, South London and the Maudsley

Ben McGannan, Managing Director, Wellbeing People 

Peter Hobbs, Chief Executive, Kent Channel Chamber of Commerce

Lynn Marchant, Workplace Wellbeing Specialist, Mindful Employer

Agenda Item 9

Page 102



Annual Public Health Report 2013

This publication can be made available in alternative formats and can be explained in a 

range of languages. Please call 0300 333 5670 for details. 

Text relay: 18001 03000 41 41 41

Agenda Item 9

Page 103



Page 104

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

   

Overview  

August 2013 

Agenda Item 12

Page 105



!"##$%&'()*'+,(,-*!"#$%#&$'!%$("%)!!.!!*!

 

 

!"#$%&'%(#))&*+%$",%-.$./,0!

Mapping the Future is a project that will modernise health and care services for the 

463,730 people who live across the boroughs of Tonbridge and Malling, Tunbridge Wells, 

Maidstone and most of the Sevenoaks district in west Kent.  

Mapping the Future will produce a future picture of the modern, efficient health and care 

services that we will need to provide in order to meet the changing needs of people in west 

Kent.  

!"#$%&$%'(#)(*+$%'$,-..%'/$0"*$12023*4!

Mapping the Future is being coordinated by NHS West Kent Clinical Commissioning Group 

(CCG), the main organisation that plans and buys healthcare services for the area.  

The other organisations that either pay for or provide services to people in west Kent are 

also involved in the project, including: 

• Kent County Council’s Social Services 

• Maidstone and Tunbridge Wells NHS Trust 

• Kent Community Health NHS Trust 

• South East Coast Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust 

• Kent and Medway NHS and Social Care Partnership Trust 

• Integrated Care 24 (IC24) 

• Voluntary organisations 

• GPs. 

We want EVERYONE who has an interest in west Kent’s health and care services, whether 

they are representing an organisation, or are a local resident, to let us have their views on 

this future picture. 

 !

Agenda Item 12

Page 106



!"##$%&'()*'+,(,-*!"#$%#&$'!%$("%)!!.!!+!

 

 

!"#$%&$!"##$%&'()*'+,(,-*'%**.*./'!

Put simply, west Kent’s health and care services need to change as there is a widening 

gap between what people in west Kent need and the funding available. Based on current 

trends, the demand for healthcare will increase by 20 per cent over the next five years but 

there will be no increase in funding. We have to find a way to give people the quality of 

care that they want and need, which is affordable. 

NHS West Kent CCG has a budget of £471 million per year to spend on healthcare in the 

area. If we continue to deliver the services in the way we do now and meet new demands 

for care, we will have a funding gap of £62 million by 2018/19.  

By being proactive and working together the NHS can start putting changes in place now, 

so that we can continue to provide you and your family with the health and care you need 

in the future.  

!"#$%&'((%)#**'+,%$"-%./$/0-%#1"'-2-3!!

At present different organisations and individual services make their own plans. This 

creates a disjointed and inconsistent service for people who need health and care services.  

The Mapping the Future blueprint will help local health care providers develop more 

coherent plans, provide more joined-up services and reduce unnecessary spend. 

Mapping the Future will: 

• Lead to the creation of a five-year healthcare plan 

• Provide the opportunity for local people to become involved in decisions about what 

should happen 

• Enable commissioners and service providers – hospital trusts, community services, 

the mental health trust, ambulance services and social care providers – to plan 

more effectively 

• Put patients at the heart of the process so that services are planned, commissioned 

and delivered in their very best interests 

• Make it easier to coordinate care, especially for people with multiple health and/or 

social care needs 

• Ensure resources are used wisely.  

Agenda Item 12

Page 107



!"##$%&'()*'+,(,-*!"#$%#&$'!%$("%)!!.!!,!

 

 

!"#$%"#&%"#''()(*%&+%,#-.!

Between May and June 2013, four meetings took place for clinicians, health and care 

professionals, managers and patient representatives, to review the way health and care 

services are currently provided, from prevention through to recovery.  

The sessions focused on the following areas: 

• Falls and mobility

• Dementia and mental health 

• Urgent and emergency care 

• Respiratory diseases. 

 

These topics were selected because they are areas where demands for care are 

increasing, but the topics themselves were not the main focus of the exercise. It was more 

about pulling out the common themes of how things are currently done and how they could 

be done in the future, to improve services. 

People attending the sessions identified some of the current challenges to be overcome 

through the Mapping the Future project:  

• Missed opportunities to tackle the causes of health problems 

• Missed opportunities to tackle health problems early on 

• Patient information doesn’t ‘flow’ round the different systems 

• Missed opportunities for involving voluntary and community organisations

• Services in the community are not geared to dealing with urgent care needs 

• Opening times of services don’t work together well and night and weekend access 

to services could be improved 

• Providers of services don’t know what other services are available, making it 

difficult to inform or steer people to the right place for help 

• Professionals and the organisations they work in are concerned to protect their own 

interests but this can result in costly care that is not always best for the people that 

need care 

• Lack of diagnostic services or consultant advice anywhere other than in hospital

• Not enough is done to learn from each other or share in identifying solutions 

• The quality and performance of services delivered in the community is inconsistent 

• Patients and carers aren’t given enough information for them to be more actively 

involved in their care. 

Agenda Item 12

Page 108



!"##$%&'()*'+,(,-*!"#$%#&$'!%$("%)!!.!!-!

 

 

 

Participants heard the evidence about how other areas have tried different ways of 

organising health and care services. And they’ve used this information and their experience 

and judgement to describe what the future health and care system in west Kent might look 

like. 

The information gathered from these sessions highlighted some common themes around 

the way health and care services should be delivered going forward in west Kent. A draft 

plan, known as a ‘blueprint’ was developed and then shared with everyone who had input 

to the four meetings.  

This blueprint is now being refined in readiness for other health and care staff, voluntary 

and community organisations, patients and the public to comment on. 

!"#$%&'()%$"(%!!"#$!"#$%&'("'!)*$!!""#$

!"#$!!

 !

Agenda Item 12

Page 109



!"##$%&'()*'+,(,-*!"#$%#&$'!%$("%)!!.!!.!

 

 

!

At the heart of the blueprint are the people who need health and care. A health and 

wellbeing system ensures that all opportunities are taken to tackle important health risks 

such as tobacco, drugs and alcohol and enable people to choose healthy lifestyles. The 

majority of care is delivered by a new primary care system. This comprises pharmacists, 

GPs, community nurses, mental health and social care working together as a team, 

operating round the clock and working closely with specialist medical, nursing and therapy 

services in hospitals. More use is made of paramedics treating people at the point where 

they are ill. And mental health care is threaded through all of these aspects. 

/01234!156!70228095:!;<;30=!

• All organisations involved in health and wellbeing will work together to tackle risks 

to health and to improve the health and wellbeing of local people.  

>02?!156!95?@A=12!B1A0!

• Patients and carers will be supported to take responsibility for their health and care 

through education, peer support, and signposting so they know what services are 

available, including voluntary and community options 

• People will be encouraged to make early decisions about how they prefer to be 

treated 

• People will be supported to stay independent and at home for as long as possible. 

C07!DA9=1A<!B1A0!

• GP practices, community services and social workers will be more joined-up and 

able to respond to patient needs round the clock 

• Appointments or meetings with people will be provided face-to-face or over the 

phone and there will be longer opening times 

• A consistent range of services will be available across west Kent and operating at 

weekends and nights 

• Everyone will use the same patient record system 

• GPs will have access to advice from hospital specialists so they can manage their 

patient’s care without sending them to hospital unnecessarily  

• Primary care teams will take a more proactive approach to tackling health risks and 

conditions early on, so they can help prevent people’s health deteriorating  

Agenda Item 12

Page 110



!"##$%&'()*'+,(,-*!"#$%#&$'!%$("%)!!.!!E!

 

 

• Primary care teams will ‘own’ their patients’ care. They will make sure patients 

receive specialist care if needed and help plan their return home as quickly as 

possible 

• Professional teams will have advanced skills in diagnosis and treatment of patients 

with long-term conditions. 

F@8920!B2959B12!;0AG9B0!

• NHS 111 will provide valuable advice and help to patients and carers by phone and 

online as part of the health and care system  

• Call handlers will be fully briefed on local services and have access to ‘live’ 

information 

• Mobile clinical services that comprise paramedics and other health professionals, 

will provide care to the patient at the place where they become ill rather than 

bringing the patient to the services as a matter of course  

• Mobile clinical services will have access to the same information as other health 

and care professionals (such as patient records) and there will be a clear system in 

place to transfer people back to the care of their primary care team. 

HA:053!3A15;?0A!;0AG9B0!

• The traditional ambulance service will continue to transfer patients with urgent care 

needs where necessary. They may provide a range of treatments and diagnostic 

tests to patients on the way, providing effective handover to specialist hospital 

services 

• The same health and care protocols will be used across the system 

• There will be access to the same information as other health and care 

professionals (e.g. patient records and awareness of what medicines people may 

need to take to hospital with them) 

• The transfer service may take people to other care locations such as community 

hospitals or  care homes as well as acute hospitals.  

I@5;J23153K206!;0AG9B0;!L!;D0B9129;3!6@B3@A;M!5JA;0;!156!

340A1D9;3;!!

• Hospital-based urgent and planned care will complement each other but will be 

managed separately to ensure they work as efficiently as possible 

• Some consultant-led services will be concentrated in larger centres where there is 

evidence that this can improve quality and offer more cost-effective care 

Agenda Item 12

Page 111



!"##$%&'()*'+,(,-*!"#$%#&$'!%$("%)!!.!!N!

 

 

• There will be closer links with primary, community and mobile clinical services, with 

greater sharing of responsibilities, a culture in which there is clear accountability for 

care which stretches across organizational boundaries, supported by one single 

patient record system. People should experience more joined-up care as a result 

• Information about patient needs and service activity will be constantly analysed to 

make sure resources are in the right place 

• Hospital-based services will help people to make positive changes in their health 

behavior, e.g. around smoking or alcohol consumption 

• There will be better linkages between the treatment of physical and mental health 

conditions 

• Primary and specialist clinicians will work together to agree when it is appropriate to 

refer patients to specialist centres outside of west Kent and work to establish the 

same culture of shared care with clinicians in specialist centres. 

!"#$%#&'%$"'%(')$%*$'+*,!

The draft blueprint will be ready to share with the public in September 2013, and local 

people and organisations will be invited to submit their views through a dedicated Mapping 

the Future website and a range of engagement events.  

!"#$%&'($!

We would welcome your response to the following questions. Responses can be submitted 

via our online questionnaire: http://www.surveymonkey.com/s/mappingthefuture 

1. What are your comments on how we tackle west Kent’s challenges of rising demand 

and limited resources for health and care? 

+O If we all took responsibility for our own health what would we need to help us do that?!

,O How can we make health and social care services more efficient (less wasteful)?!

4. How can we ensure the person’s experience of receiving services is more coordinated 

and joined-up? 

 

 

Agenda Item 12

Page 112



  

Health Liaison Board Work Plan 2013/14 

9 January 2014  2 April 2014 July 2014 October 2014 

Autism and Asperger 

Syndrome  

111 – Health telephone 

service 

Annual report 

‘Mind the Gap’ Action Plan  

Mapping the Future 

Older people’s housing 

strategy  

Update of Dementia Friendly 

Communities  

Carers First  

Speakers from the Dartford, 

Gravesham and Swanley CCG and 

West Kent CCG.  

 Annual Report 2013/14 

 

A
genda Item

 13

P
age 113



P
age 114

T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	3 Actions from the last meeting of the Board
	6 Older People's Housing Strategy - Brief Update
	7 'Mind the Gap' Action Plan
	8 Update on Dementia Friendly Communities
	9 Annual Report
	12 Mapping the Future
	13 Workplan

